
CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
TUESDAY, MARCH 13, 2018- 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL ANNEX 
520 MAIN STREET 

AGENDA 

I. CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE- Councilman Van Winkle 

III. ROLL CALL 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

One motion, non-debatable, to approve the "recommendations" noted. Any member of the 
Council may ask for an item to be taken from the consent agenda for discussion and separate 
action. 

A. Motion approving the minutes of the February 27, 2018, regular meeting and March 
6, 2018, City Council Special Meeting. 

Page6 

V. PERSONAL APPEARANCES 

VI. ORDINANCES 

A. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2018-09, as amended: 
An ordinance approving a renewed and upgraded service agreement between the 
City of Belton, Missouri and NSI Holdings of Kansas, Inc. to provide remote data 
backup and disaster replication services for City Hall, Annex, Fire Stations 1&2, 
Park, and Water/Street departments. 

This ordinance has been amended to include the Park Department in the contract. 

Page 12 

B. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2018-11: 
An ordinance approving a contract between the City of Belton and Earthworks 
Excavation and Associates, LLC to provide demolition of dangerous residential 
structures services on an as needed basis. 

Page 29 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avpilable for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



C. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2018-12: 
An ordinance amending sections 1-5; 4-1 (d) (10); 6-4 (h); 26-4 (g); 26-5 (4); 26-8 (b); 
40-1 (h); 40-3 (5); 40-4 (3); and 40-4 (14) of the Unified Development Code to 
eliminate inconsistencies and provide language that is easier to understand for all 
users of the code. 

D. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-13: 
An ordinance of the City of Belton, Missouri authorizing and approving a 
construction service agreement with SAK Construction, LLC for the 30", 27", and 
18" interceptor lining in a not-to-exceed amount of $1,167,949.50. 

Page 31 

E. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-14: 
An ordinance authorizing and approving the City of Belton, Missouri through its 
fire department to enter into a professional services agreement for medical director 
services with Dr. Erik J. Stamper, D.O. 

Page 85 

F. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-15: 
An ordinance approving the proposed fiscal year 2019 City budget, as revised, and 
appropriating funds from the revenues of the City. 

Page 93 

G. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-16: 
An ordinance approving the participating course agreement with the Club 
Membership, LLC for individual and corporate club membership benefits at the 
Eagles' Landing Golf Course. 

Page 96 

H. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-17: 
An ordinance amending sections: 42-36, Rates inside the City; 42-38, Water rates 
for approved water districts or local governments; 42-39, Rates for water consumed 
outside city; 42-296, Sewer system user rates; of the unified development code of the 
City of Belton, Missouri. 

Page 103 

I. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-18: 
An ordinance of the City of Belton, Missouri, as a participating agency, authorizing 
and approving a Cooperative Agreement one-year extension including Addendum 
#1 adding and expanding the scope of work for the City of Belton with Superior 
Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the 2017 Street Preservation Project Overlay 
finalized in January 2018. 

Page 110 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are av~ilable for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



J. Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-19: 
An ordinance approving the reappropriation & revision of the City of Belton Fiscal 
Year 2018 Adopted City Budget. 

This is the final budget amendment for fiscal year 2018 and amends the annual budget to 
appropriate interfund transfers for the Park Sales Tax fund and Major City Construction 
fund, appropriate revenues and expenditures in the newly created Solid Waste Disposal 
fund, appropriate bond proceeds from the 2017 bond refunding issuances in the Capital 
Improvement Sales Tax fund, Park Sales Tax fund, GO Bond Debt Service fund, Street 
Capital Projects fund and Golf fund and appropriate additional revenues that were 
received in the General Capital fund, Mayor's Christmas Tree fund, Cedar Tree TIF fund, 
Y Highway Market Place TIF fund, Y Belton Plaza TIF fund and Southtowne Plaza TIF 

fund throughout the year. 

Page 139 

VII. RESOLUTIONS 

A. Motion approving Resolution R2018-16: 
A resolution providing an endorsement for the renovation of Granada Senior 
Apartments by Wallick Communities and providing a letter of support to the 
Missouri Housing Development Commission in the City of Belton, Cass County, 
Missouri. 

Page 146 

B. Motion approving Resolution R2018-17: 
A resolution approving Task Agreement 2018-01 with Earthworks Excavation and 
Associates, LLC, under the contract. 

Page 158 

VIII. CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

IX. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

X. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

A. Finance Department recognition 

Page 168 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are avajlable for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



Maid1 & April 2018 meetings 
3/27 regular session- 7:00 pm 
4/3 work session - 7:00 pm 
4/10 regular session- 7:00 pm 
4/17 special meeting - 6:30 pm 
4/24 regular session - 7 :00 pm 

XI. MOTIONS 

XII. OTHER BUSINESS 

XIII. Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining to Legal Actions, according 
to Missouri Statute 610.021.1, and matters pertaining to the hiring, firing, disciplining or 
promotion of personnel, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.3, and that the record be 
closed. 

XIV. ADJOURN 

Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are av!ilable for public inspection at the City Clerk's office, 
506 Main Street, Belton, MO. 64012. 



. SECTION IV 
A 

5 



MINUTES OF THE 
BELTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FEBRUARY 27, 2018 
CITY HALL ANNEX, 520 MAIN 520 MAIN STREET 

BELTON, MISSOURI 

Mayor Davis called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

Councilman Trutzel led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

Councilmembers present: Mayor Jeff Davis, Councilmen Ryan Finn, Jeff Fletcher, Gary Lathrop, 
Bob Newell, Councilwoman Lorrie Peek, Councilmen Tim Savage, and Chet Trutzel. Absent: 
Councilman Dean Van Winkle. Also present: Alexa Barton, City Manager; Megan McGuire, City 
Attorney; and Patti Ledford, City Clerk. 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Councilman Savage moved to approve the consent agenda consisting of a motion approving the 
minutes of the February 13, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting; a motion approving the 
January 2018 Municipal Police Judge's Report; and a motion approving a temporary 
liquor permit for the Fraternal Order of Eagles, 312 Main Street, for a beer garden in their 
parking lot for the St. Patrick's Day Parade on March 17, 2018, contingent upon obtaining 
their state liquor permit. Seconded by Councilwoman Peek. All present voted in favor. 
Councilman Van Winkle absent. Consent agenda approved. 

ORDINANCES: 

Patti Ledford, City Clerk gave the final reading of Bill No. 2018-08: An ordinance approving a 
renewed and upgraded service agreement between the City of Belton, Missouri and 
Charter Communications Operating, LLC to support the internet services and 
interconnections at and between multiple city department locations. Presented by 
Councilman Newell, seconded by Councilwoman Peek. There was some discussion pertaining to 
the totals. Ms. Barton explained the charges and the savings. Vote on the final reading was 
recorded; Ayes: 8, Councilmen Newell, Finn, Trutzel, Mayor Davis, Councilmen Lathrop, 
Fletcher, Peek and Savage; Noes: None; Absent: 1, Councilman VanWinkle. Bill No. 2018-08 
was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2018-4410, subject to Mayoral 
veto. 

Ms. Ledford read Bill No. 2018-09: An ordinance approving a renewed and upgraded service 
agreement between the city of Belton, Missouri and NSI Holdings of Kansas, Inc. to 
provide remote data backup and disaster replication services for City Hall, Annex, Fire 
Stations 1&2, and Water/Street departments. Presented by Councilman Lathrop, seconded by 
Councilman Savage. Mayor Davis asked if this includes all departments. Ms. Barton said the 
police have their own separate system. Councilman Trutzel asked if the park department is part 
of this. Ms. Barton said she will verify but it does not appear to be. Vote on the first reading was 
recorded with all present voting in favor. Councilman Van Winkle absent. First reading passed. 

Ms. Ledford read Bill No. 2018-10: An ordinance authorizing the Chief of Police to submit 
6 



grant applications to the Missouri Department of Transportation (MoDot) Division of 
Highway Safety for 2018-2019. Presented by Councilman Newell, seconded by Councilwoman 
Peek. Police Chief James Person requested both readings due to the March 1st deadline. This is 
for the annual traffic safety grants through the Missouri Department of Transportation Highway 
Safety Grants. The DUI funds are still available but not for sobriety check points. Vote on the 
first reading was recorded with all voting in favor. Councilman Van Winkle absent. 
Councilwoman Lathrop moved to hear the final reading. Councilman Trutzel seconded. All 
present voted in favor. The final reading was read. Presented by Councilwoman Peek, seconded 
by Councilman Savage. The Council was polled and the following vote recorded; Ayes: 8, 
Councilwoman Peek, Mayor Davis, Councilmen Finn, Lathrop, Newell, Trutzel, Savage, and 
Fletcher; Noes: None; Absent: 1, Councilman Van Winkle. Bill No. 2018-10 was declared passed 
and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2018-4411, subject to Mayoral veto. 

Ms. Ledford read Bill No. 2018-11: An ordinance approving a contract between the City of 
Belton and Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC to provide demolition of 
dangerous residential structures services on an as needed basis. Presented by Councilman 
Finn, seconded by Councilwoman Peek. There was discussion about the bid as it relates to 
asbestos removal square foot vs. lineal foot. Jim Brown, Building Official, explained square foot 
is for siding and those types of things; lineal foot for example is for glazing around windows. 
Councilman Savage asked about liquidated damages. Mr. Brown said it is $250.00 per day. Mr. 
Brown also said this is comparable pricing. The cost of asbestos abatement continues to rise and 
we don't have any control over that. There was some Council concern that 9 contractors showed 
up for the pre-bid meeting, but only one contractor bid on the project. Mr. Brown said that for 
many of the contractors this is not how they make a living. When there is plenty of work the bids 
are few and far between. When the economy is bad there are more bids. Councilman Savage 
asked when we are abating does it go against the property owner. Mr. Brown said yes. 
Councilman Savage asked about the landfill cost. Mr. Brown said it is for a 90 cubic foot vessel 
load at $2,011.96. Councilman Savage said he doesn't see it in the contract and asked that it be 
added for the final reading. Mr. Brown said it would be added. Councilman Trutzel asked who 
will make the initial assessment. Mr. Brown said the Department of Natural Resources will be 
the point of contact and make the initial assessment. Vote on the first reading was then recorded 
with all voting in favor. Councilman Van Winkle absent. First reading passed. 

Ms. Ledford read Bill No. 2018-12: An ordinance amending sections 1-5; 4-1 (d) (10); 6-4 (h); 
26-4 (g); 26-5 (4); 26-8 (b); 40-1 (h); 40-3 (5); 40-4 (3); and 40-4 (14) of the Unified 
Development Code to eliminate inconsistencies and provide language that is easier to 
understand for all users of the code. Presented by Councilwoman Peek, seconded by 
Councilman Savage. Vote on the first reading was recorded with all voting in favor. Councilman 
Van Winkle absent. First reading passed. 

CITY COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS: 

Councilwoman Peek, Park Board Liaison, said resumes are in for the Park Director position and 
the Park Board did approve the budget presented to City Council. 

MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS: 

Mayor Davis announced that Fire Chief Norman Larkey was nominated by Smokey Dire, and 
elected to serve as the Missouri State Fire Chiefs Association Regional Director. 

7 



CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

Ms. Barton informed the Council with approval of the Use Tax being placed on the April ballot, 
factual based information will be corning from an article from the Mayor and a press release. She 
said she received a call from KMBZ radio station regarding the Use Tax and the intent of what 
Belton wants to do with that money. It will air in the morning on 98.1 and loop from 6:00 A.M-
10:00 A.M. 

Ms. Barton said she and the Mayor will be attending the academies confere1.1ce in Nashville for 
the school district and observe what the school is doing based around the FORD NGL program. 
Ms. Barton provided the Council with an Economic Development report prepared by Carolyn 
Y atsook, Economic Development Director: 

GRAND OPENINGS: 
Five Below- Grand Opening this Friday, March 2nd_ 10:00 a.m. ribbon cutting 

Party City- Grand Opening this Friday, March 2nd - 9:30 a.m. no ribbon cutting per Party City 

Marshalls-Tentative Grand Opening next Thursday, March gth 

Petco - Tentative Grand Opening next Saturday, March 1 ott, 
Ross-To Be Determined 

ACTMTY THIS WEEK: 
Calvary University held ribbon cutting for new Student Life Center yesterday - Congratulations 

Main Street Appreciation Coffee was held this a.m. 

CURRENT PROJECTS 
Hawaiian Bros - Doing fantastic 

Cracker Barrel 

• The sale of the property officially closed last week 

• Subcontractor for KCP&L is doing the groundwork for preparation of electrical infrastructure 

• Permit for construction is ready for pickup 

• Anticipated groundbreaking date is April 161
h 

Panera Bread 
• Project valuation is $580K 

• Actively working on the interior demolition 

• Interior renovation expected to begin next month 
Fairfield Inn 

• Waiting on developer's subcontractors to get business licenses 

Ms. Barton said the City hosted a Main Street event this morning. There was great attendance 
and she is hopeful it will open the lines of corrununication between the City and the Main Street 
businesses. She said she is proud of Carolyn Yatsook, Economic Development Director, for 
pulling this event together. 

Fire Chief Norman Larkey announced Cracker Barrel is starting construction. 

March 2018 meetings 
3/6 budget work session & work session- 6:30 pm 
Depending upon what happens hopefully finish budget 
3/13 regular session- 7:00 pm 
3/27 regular session- 7:00 pm 

8 



OTHER BUSINESS: 

Councilman Savage expressed concern pertaining to the trash service. Jim's Disposal has started 
picking up late in the evening and he is receiving complaints. He asked why we are continuing to 
have trash issues. Trash cans are staying out all week long and being left where they lay after the 
trash is picked up. He said he has to take some of the blame for this. He said Jim's Disposal has 
not started out on a good foot. He wants to see it fixed. He would like the trash company off the 
streets by 7:00 P.M. and get the trash picked up. 

Councilman Lathrop said also has been receiving emails and calls about the time the trash 
company is picking up trash. Mayor Davis said they do have to get better. Councilman Lathrop 
asked if they don't get it fixed, what our options are. Mayor Davis said it is in the contract they 
receive a 60 days' notice. He admitted we can't keep letting this go. Councilman Finn asked if 
the phone calls are slowing down and things are improving. Ms. Barton said things were 
improving until the ice storm last week. We are seeing an overall improvement. Part of the 
problem is educating people on trash. 

At 7:43 P.M., Councilman Lathrop moved to enter Executive Session to discuss matters 
pertaining to the hiring, firing, disciplining or promotion of personnel, according to Missouri 
Statute 610.021.3, and matters pertaining to the leasing, purchase or sale of Real Estate, 
according to Missouri Statute 610.021.2, and that the record be closed. Councilwoman Peek 
seconded. The following vote was recorded; Ayes: 8, Mayor Davis, Councilmen Fletcher, 
Trutzel, Savage, Lathrop, Newell, Councilwoman Peek, and Councilman Finn. Absent: 
Councilman Van Winkle. 

The Council returned from Executive Session at 10:41 P.M. Being no further business, 
Councilman Lathrop moved to adjourn. Councilwoman Peek seconded. All present voted in 

Councilman Van Winkle absent. Meeting adjourned. 

Jeff Davis, Mayor 

9 



MINUTES OF THE 
BELTON CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 

MARCH 6, 2018 
CITY HALL ANNEX, 520 MAIN STREET 

BELTON, MISSOURI 

Mayor Pro Tern Fletcher called the special meeting to order at 7: 13 P.M. 

Councilman Newell led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

Councilmembers present: Mayor Pro Tern Fletcher, Councilmen Ryan Finn, Gary Lathrop, Bob 
Newell, Councilwoman Lorrie Peek, Councilmen Tim Savage, Chet Trutzel, and Dean 
Van Winkle. Absent: Mayor Jeff Davis. Also present, Sheila Ernzen, Finance Director, Megan 
McGuire, City Attorney; and Patti Ledford, City Clerk. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

Mayor Pro Tern Fletcher recognized Bryan Price, a Paralympic on the Nordic Team, is from 
Belton. 

Mayor Pro Tern Fletcher announced the ribbon cutting for Five Below was well attended. Party 
City is open but did not have a ribbon cutting. Marshalls ribbon cutting will be March 8 from 
7:45 -8:00 AM., and Petco ribbon cutting will be March 10. Panera Bread is remodeling. 

The Use Tax flyer is published and will be placed in the water bills. It will also be on the city 
website and Facebook page. Councilman Lathrop said the information on the flyer shows 
estimated revenue from the use tax to be between $200,000-$300,000. However, when the 
information was presented to the Council the estimated revenue was said to be $400,000. He 
asked why the difference. Sheila Ernzen, Finance Director, said the figure is based on out of state 
sales. The estimated amount was based on figures from Cass County which we then estimate and 
translate into what Belton would receive. Some years it will be lower, some years higher. 

At 7:19 P.M. Councilman Trutzel moved to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining 
to the hiring, firing, disciplining or promotion of personnel, according to Missouri Statute 
610.021.3, and that the record be closed. Councilman Lathrop seconded. The following vote was 
recorded: Ayes: 8, Mayor Pro Tern Fletcher, Councilmen Trutzel, Savage, Lathrop, Newell, 
Van Winkle, Finn, and Councilwoman Peek; Noes: None; Absent: 1, Mayor Davis. 

The Council returned from Executive Session at 7:47 P.M. Being no further business, 
Councilwoman Peek moved to adjourn. Councilman Newell seconded. All voted in favor. Mayor 
Davis absent. Meeting adjourned. 

Mayor Pro Tern Fletcher 

10 



SECTION VI 
A 

11 

.. 



BILL NO. 2018-09 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A RENEWED AND UPGRADED SERVICE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AND NSI HOLDINGS 
OF KANSAS, INC. TO PROVIDE REMOTE DATA BACKUP AND DISASTER 
REPLICATION SERVICES FOR CITY HALL, ANNEX, FIRE STATIONS 1&2, PARK, 
AND WATER/STREET DEPARTMENTS. 

WHEREAS, NSI Holdings of Kansas, Inc., d/b/a NetStandard, (hereinafter "NSI"), is the 
City's current data backup service provider; and 

WHEREAS, the new Master Service Agreement, herein attached as Exhibit "A" to this 
ordinance, provides the City of Belton with backup services and new pricing structures, herein 
attached as Exhibit "B" to this ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the IT Department has worked over the last several months to assess the needs 
of backup and recovery services for City Hall, Annex, Fire Stations 1 &2, Park, and Water/Street 
Departments as to continued quality and reliability of service; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes this Service Agreement is in the best interest of the 
City to ensure that departments are productive with minimal downtime should file loss or 
malware attacks occur on individual or server computers. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby approves the Service Agreement, herein attached as 
Exhibit "A," and the cost of services, herein attached as Exhibit "B" to this ordinance. 

Section 2. That the City Manager is authorized and directed to execute the Service Agreement on 
behalf of the City. 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 

Section 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

READ FOR FIRST TIME: February 27, 2018 

READ FOR SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

12 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



Approved this __ day of ___ , 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 271h day of February, 2018, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2018-__ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on the __ day of , 2018, after the second reading thereof by the 
following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 
NOES: COUNCILMEN: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

13 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
Of the City of Belton, Missouri 



EXHIBIT 

A 
NetStandard Inc. 

Master Services Agreement 

This Information Technology Services Agreement(' Agreement") is made this 5thth day of February, 2018 (''Effective Date") 
between NSI Holdings of Kansas, Inc. ("NSI"), d/b/a NetStandard, (hereinafter "NSI") with a principle office at 2000 Merriam Lane, 
Kansas City, KS 66106 (NS1 may also be referred to as "Company"), and City of Belton ("Customer") with a principle office at 506 
Main Street, Belton, MO 64012, may also be referred to as "Customer") ("Company" and "Customer" are collectively referred to as the 
"Parties"). 

WHEREAS, Company is engaged in the business of providing a range of information technology services; and 

WHEREAS, Customer desires to retain Company to perform information technology services and functions; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and agreements contained herein, the Parties have agreed 
and do agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Contracted Services. This Agreement shall apply to the delivery of information technology services, support, functions 
and/or products as further described in one or more Service Attacbment(s), Statement(s) of Work or Product Order(s) that may 
be proposed. and approved in writing by the Parties. Any such approved Service Attachment(s), Statement(s) of Work or 
Product Order(s) shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the services and functions described in any 
Service Attachment and/or Statement of Work shall be referred to as the "Services;" the products described in any Product 
Order shall be referred to as the "Products"). The term " Agreement" shall include this Master Service Agreement as well as 
any and all Service Attachment(s), Statement(s) of Work, and Product Order(s) incorporated herein by reference. Absent the 
execution of a Service Attachment, Statement of Work or Product Order, this Agreement does not, in and of itself, represent a 
commitment by Company to provide any Services or Products to Customer or a requirement that Customer pay any fees to 
Company. 

2. Term of Agreement 

(a) This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date set forth above and will continue in full force and effect until 
terminated by either party as provided herein, or until Company is no longer obligated to provide any Services or 
Products to Customer pursuant to an attached Service Attachment, Statement of Work or Product Order. In the event 
that a Service Attachment provides for a different term, the Service Attachment term will control for that specific Service 
Attachment only. 

(b) Company shall have the option to terminate this Agreement, without cause, by providing thirty (30) days notice of its 
intent to terminate the Agreement without cause. 

(c) In the event that there is a continuing need for the provision of any Services or Products identified in a Service 
Attachment, Statement of Work or Product Order after the expiration or temtlnation of this Agreement, and Customer 
requests in writing to have Company complete the Services or provide Product, this Agreement will automatically renew 
for the period of time that it takes for the completion of such Services or delivery of such Products . Customer 
acknowledges that it will be responsible for all fees, costs, and expenses incurred by Company for Services rendered or 
Products delivered after expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

(d) The Agreement can be terminated for cause, as defined in paragraph 14(a) herein, at any time provided: (1) the alleged 
breaching party is notified in writing and given an opportunity to cure the alleged breach in the manner set forth in 
paragraph 14(a) below; and (2) the alleged breach was not caused by a condition described in paragraph lS(e). 

3. Fees aod Payment Terms 

(a) In exchange for the Services performed or Products delivered by Company, as set forth in any Service Attachment(s), 
Statement(s) of Work or Product Order(s), Customer agrees to compensate Company at the rates identified in the fee 
schedule set forth in the Service Attachment(s), Statement(s) of Work or Product Order(s). Customer shall also be 
responsible for payment of any federal, state, or local sales or use taxes, or any other taxes or fees assessed on, or in 
connection with, any of the Services or Products provided pursuant to this Agreement. Customer will pay all invoices 
within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof. Customer's failure to remit payment due within thirty (30) days of receipt of 

NetStandard Inc. Page 1 of 9 
Published 7/25/2017 

2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 

14 



an invoice shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement subject to accelerated termination pursuant to 
paragraph 14( a) of this Agreement. Customer shall be responsible for reimbursing Company for any actual costs, 
including attorney's fees, related to -resolving any unpaid balance. 

(b) Company reserves the right to charge a late payment fee of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month on all unpaid 
balances. 

(c) In addition, Customer shall reimburse Company its actual out-of-pocket expenses as reasonably incurred by Company 
in connection with performance of Services or delivery of Products. Additional expenses for materials, services, training 
and hardware may only be incurred by Company and charged to Customer if prior written approval from Customer has 
been obtained. 

4. Additional Products and Services 

(a) NetStandard shall perform the Services set forth in the Service Attachment(s) in accordance with the Service Level 
Agreements identified in the respective Service Attachment(s) and other terms and conditions of this Agreement and 
any attached Service Attachment(s). 

(b) Company and Customer may from time to time mutually agree to additional products and/or services not covered by an 
existing Service Attachment, Statement of Work or Product Order. In the event Customer desires to add products or 
services not covered by an existing Service Attachment, Statement of Work or Product Order, Company and Customer 
shall execute a new Service Attachment, Statement of Work or Product Order regarding the desired additional products 
and/or services. Such Service Attachment Statement of Work or Product Order shall be attached hereto and incorporated 
fully herein by reference. 

( c) In the event Customer desires to make changes to Serv.ices provided pursuant to an existing Service Attachment, 
Customer shall notify Company in writing of its proposed changes. Company shall have five (5) days from the receipt 
of Customer's request to either accept or reject the proposed changes. If Company accepts Customer's proposed changes 
to a Service Attachment, Company shall notify Customer in writing of the acceptance, and the proposed changes shall 
automatically become an addendum to the affected Service Attachment. If Company rejects Customer's proposed 
changes, this Agreement and any attached Service Attachment shall remain unchanged. 

( d) Customer acknowledges that Company may, from time to time and without notice, make nominal or incidental changes 
to the Services provided in order to conform to Customer's use of the Services. 

5. Products. Company may from time to time, in connection with the provision of Services to Customer, offer certain Products 
for sale to Customer. This paragraph 5 shall set forth the terms and conditions for the purchase of any Products by Customer. 

(a) lnvoicing and Payment. Products will be invoiced to Customer upon Company's acceptance of a Product Order. 
Company's invoice will include all Products available at the time of order acceptance. Back ordered items will be 
separately invoiced on the date shipped. Shipping, handling and insuranee charges will be added to the invoice amount. 
If Customer has entered into an agreement for Services to be provided by Company, those Services will be separately 
invoiced to Customer. Payment is due thirty (30) days from invoice date. In no event shall the due date of a Product 
invoice be extended on account of back ordered items or status of Service completion. Company reserves the right to 
charge a late payment fee of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month on all unpaid balances. 

(b) Title. Company shall retain title and ownership in and to Products sold to Customer until full payment of the purchase 
price is received by Company, whereupon both shall automatically pass to Customer. Until title and ownership passes 
to Customer, Customer agrees to maintain Products in good operating condition. 

( c) Delivery. Shipping dates are approximate and deliveries are subject to unavoidable delays. Company shall not be liable 
for damages caused by delay in delivery, installation or furnishing of Services. 

( d) Returns. All returns must be accompanied by a Company assigned Return Merchandise Authorization (RMA) number. 
Customer must provide Company with an invoice number and Product serial number when requesting an RMA number. 
No returns on memory after 15 days from date ofinvoice; no returns on other Products after 30 days from date ofinvoice. 
All returns subject to a 15% restocking fee. Returned Products must be in new and working condition in original 
package, including all manuals. Special ordered items will not be accepted for return. No returns on software or memory 
that has been opened. All returns are subject to the terms and conditions of the manufacturer's return policy. 

Published 7 /2S/2017 
Madlned 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 

NetStandard Inc. Page 2 of 9 

2000 Merriam Lane• Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

15 



(e) Taxes. Customer shall pay all federal, state and local sales, use, property, excise, or other taxes imposed on or with 
respect to the purchase price of the Products, unless customer is not subject to such sales or other taxes. 

(f) Risk of Loss. Risk of loss or damage to Product(s) purchased by Customer shall pass to Customer upon signed 
acceptance of delivery. 

(g) Warranty Disclaimer. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT ANY PRODUCTS PURCHASED FROM 
COMPANY ARE SUBJECT ONLY TO THE MANUFACTURER'S ORIGINAL WARRANTY. ALL PRODUCTS 
ARE PURCHASED "AS IS" AND "WITH ALL FAULTS." SOFTWARE IS SUBJECT TO SUCH WARRANTIES 
AS THE MANUFACTURER MAY MAKE UNDER THE LICENSE AGREEMENT ACCOMPANYING SUCH 
SOFTWARE. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CUSTOMER TO ENSURE THAT ALL ITS DATA FILES 
ARE ADEQUATELY DUPLICATED AND DOCUMENTED. COMPANY WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR 
CUSTOMER'S FAILURE TO DO SO, NOR FOR THE COST OF RECONSTRUCTING DAT A STORED ON FIXED 
DISKS, MAGNETIC TAPES, MEMORIES, OR ANY OTHER STORAGE MEDIA AND/OR DEVICES. COMPANY 
MAKES NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR 
MERCHANTABILITY. COMPANY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOSS OF PROFITS OR OTHER 
ECONOMIC LOSS ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE SALE OF PRODUCTS TO 
CUSTOMER. THE PRICES AND DISCOUNTS APPLICABLE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT TAKE INTO 
ACCOUNT THIS LIMITED WARRANTY AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 

6. Protection of Rights 

(a) Customer acknowledges that, pursuant to this Agreement, no right, title, or interest in or to any copyrights, trademarks, 
or other proprietary or intellectual property rights owned or held by NSI are transferred to Customer. Further, NSI 
acknowledges that, pursuant to this Agreement, no right, title, or interest in or to any copyrights, trademarks, or other 
proprietary or intellectual property rights owned or held by Customer are transferred to NSI. 

(b) Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties, any hardware or software optionally purchased by Customer shall be 
the sole property of Customer. Customer agrees to be bound by all vendor-specific software licenses and/or end user 
license agreements for all software modules sold, installed and/or managed by NSI. NetStandard is not responsible for 
any damages to Customer resulting from Customer's violation of or failure to comply with any vendor-specific licenses 
or end user license agreements. Customer may not grant to any third party a sub-license, lease, or sub-lease of equipment, 
hardware, or software serviced by NSI without the express written consent ofNSI. 

( c) NSI provides some of its Services under this Agreement via the Internet. Customer acknowledges that the Internet is 
not owned, operated, managed by, or in any way affiliated with NSI, but is instead a separate network of computers 
independent ofNSI. Customer's use of the internet is solely at Customer's oWn risk and is subject to aU applicable local 
state, national and international laws and regulations. Customer's ability to access the Internet or NSI Services via the 
Internet is beyond NSI's control. Unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Parties, Customer assumes all risk and 
responsibility for the content of information transferred across the Internet by Customer. 

7. Independent Contractor. The Parties enter into this Agreement, including any attached Service Attachment(s), Statement(s) 
of Work or Product Orders, as independent contractors and nothing within this Agreement shall be construed to create a joint 
venture, partnership, agency, or other employment relationship between the Parties. All Company employees who are assigned 
to perform services at any Customer owned or leased facility shall be considered to be an employee of Company only and will 
not be considered an agent or employee of Customer for any purpose. Company will be solely responsible for payment of all 
compensation owed to its employees, including all applicable federal, state and local employment taxes and will make 
deductions for all taxes and withholdings required by law. rn no event will any Company employee be eligible for or entitled 
to any benefits of Customer. 

8. Confidential Information 

(a) Customer understands and acknowledges that Company may, from time to time, disclose "Confidential Information" to 
Customer. For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Confidential lnformation'' shall include but not be limited to any 
nonpublic and/or proprietary information or materials relating to Company's promotional and/or marketing strategy and 
activity, Company's pricing information (including but not limited to rates, margins and budgets), Company's financial 
and budget information Company's customer lists, information about the education, background, experience, and/or 

Published 7/25/2017 
Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 

NetStandard Inc. Page 3 of 9 

2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

16 



skills possessed by Company employees, Company employee compensation information, Company's service and/or 
sales concepts, Company's service and/or sales methodology, Company ' s service and/or sales techniques, Company 's 
customer satisfaction data or sales information, or any information which Company marks or identities as "confidential" 
at the time of disclosure or confirms in writing as confidential within a reasonable time (not to exceed thirty (30) days) 
after disclosure. Subject to the requirements of the Missouri Sunshine Jaw, Customer will not disclose Company's 
Confidential Information to any third party at any time wHbout the prior written consent of Company and shall take 
reasonable measures to prevent any unauthorized disclosure of Company's Confidential Information by its employees, 
agents, contractors, or consultants. Further, Company' s Confidential Information shall include the terms set forth in this 
Agreement, all of which shall remain the property of Company and shall in no event be transferred, conveyed, or assigned 
to Customer as a result of the services provided pursuant to this Agreement. The foregoing duty shall survive for a 
period of three (3) years following the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

(b) Company also understands and acknowledges that Customer may, from time to time, disclose to Company proprietary 
ideas, concepts, expertise, and technologies developed by Customer relating to computer application programming, 
installation, and operation (collectively "Customer's Confidential Information"). Customer may further provide to 
Company documentation, reports, memoranda, notes, drawings, plans, papers, recordings, data, designs, materials, or 
other forms of records or information relating to Customer's business operations (collectively "Confidential Trade 
Information"). Company agrees (i) not to use any Customer Confidential Information or Confidential Trade Information 
for its own use or for any purpose other than the specific purpose of completing the Services; (ii) not to voluntarily 
disclose any Customer Confidential Information or Confidential Trade Information to any other person or entity; and 
(iii) to take all reasonable measures to protect the secrecy of, and avoid disclosure or use of, Customer Confidential 
Information and/or Confidential Trade Information in order to prevent it from falling into the public domain or the 
possession of persons other than those persons authorized by this Agreement to have such Customer Confidential 
Information and/or Confidential Trade Information. The foregoing duty shaJI survive for a period of three (3) years 
following the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

(c) The following shaH not be considered Confidential Information for purposes of this Agreement: (a) Information which 
is or becomes in the public domain through no fault or act of the receiving party; (b) Information which was 
independently developed by the receiving party without the use of or reliance on the disclosing party s Confidential 
Information; (c) Information which was provided to the receiving party by a third party under no duty of confidentiality 
to the disclosing party; or (d) Information which is required to be disclosed by law with no further obligation of 
confidentiality, provided, however, prompt prior notice thereof shall be given to the party whose Confidential 
Information is involved. · 

( d) The Parties agree that the disclosure of any of the foregoing Confidential Information by either party shall give rise to 
irreparable injury to the owner of the Confidential Information, inadequately compensable in monetary damages. 
Accordingly, the non-disclosing party may seek and obtai'! injunctive relief against the breach or threatened breach of 
the foregoing undertakings, in addition to any other legal remedies that may be available. 

9. Nonsolicitation 

(a) Nonsolicitation of Company Personnel. Customer may not either directly or indirectly solicit, hire, contract with or 
endeavor to entice away any Company employee during the Term ofthis Agreement and for a one (1) year period 
following its termination (the "Nonsolicitation Term"). If Customer hires a Company employee without first obtaining 
the written consent of Company, Customer shall pay Company as liquidated damages an amount equal to 100% of the 
employee's annual fair market salary, as determined by Company in its sole discretion. This provision is considered a 
material term that allows for accelerated termination rights under paragraph 14 of this Agreement. 

(b) Nonsolici.tation of Company Clients. During th.e Term of this Agreement and for a one (1) year period following its 
termination, Customer shal I not solicit, interfere with, endeavor to entice away, or enter into a contract with any existing 
or prospective client ofNSI for the purposes of supplanting services provided by or to be provided by NSI. For purposes 
of this Agreement, "existing client" is defined as any client ofNSI to whom Customer was introduced or made aware of 
by virtue of Customer's business relationship with NSI. For the purposes of this Agreement, "prospective client" is 
defmed as any business prospect NSI has actively pursued and to whom Customer was introduced during the course of 
Customer's relationship with NSI. Customer acknowledges that a violation of this paragraph 9(b) may give rise to 
irreparable injury to Company, inadequately compensable in monetary damages. Accordingly, Company may seek and 
obtain injunctive relief against Customer's breach of this paragraph 9(b). 

NetStandard Inc. Page 4 of 9 
Published 7/25/2017 
Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

17 



10. Limited Warranty. Any warranty offered by Company for Services provided herein shall be set forth in the Service 
Attachment. In the absence of any warranty language in the Service Attachment, Company warrants that all Services performed 
pursuant to this Agreement will be performed in accordance with the general standards and practices of the information 
technology industry in existence at the time the Services are being performed. Security services performed will not guarantee 
a level of security for the system being assessed. IN THE EVENT THAT THERE IS NO WARRANTY SET FORTH IN THE 
SERVICE ATTACHMENT(S), THE FOREGOING EXPRESS LIMITED WARRANTY IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN, CONTRACTUAL OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE. 

11. Limitation of Liability. CUSTOMER AGREES THAT COMPANY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER, OR 
ANY THIRD PARTY, FOR: (1) ANY LIABILITY CLAIMS, LOSS, DAMAGES OR EXPENSE OF ANY KIND ARISING 
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY OUT OF SERVICES PROVIDED HEREIN; (2) ANY INCIDENTAL OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED, AND CUSTOMER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
COMPANY HARMLESS AGAINST SUCH LIABILITIES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES (CONSEQUENTIAL OR 
OTHERWISE) OR EXPENSES, OR ACTIONS IN RESPECT THEREOF, ASSERTED OR BROUGHT AGAINST 
COMPANY BY OR IN RIGHT OF THIRD PARTIES; OR (3) ANY PUNITIVE DAMAGES. FOR PURPOSES OF THIS 
AGREEMENT, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES SHALL INCLUDE, BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO, 
LOSS OF ANTICIPATED REVENUES, INCOME, PROFITS OR SAVINGS; LOSS OF OR DAMAGE TO BUSINESS 
REPUTATION OR GOOD WILL; LOSS OF CUSTOMERS; LOSS OF BUSINESS OR FINANCIAL OPPORTUNITY; OR 
ANY OTHER INDIRECT OR SPECIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND CATEGORIZED AS CONSEQUENTIAL OR 
INCIDENTAL DAMAGES UNDER THE LAW OF THE STATE OF KANSAS. CUSTOMER'S SOLE REMEDY FOR 
COMPANY'S NON-CONFORMING PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES OR DELIVERY OF PRODUCTS SHALL BE, IN 
COMPANY'S ABSOLUTE DISCRETION, RE-PERFORMANCE OF THE NON-CONFORMING SERVICES OR A 
REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR THE NON-CONFORMING SERVICE OR PRODUCTS. 
COMPANY'S LIABILITY FOR ANY DAMAGES HEREUNDER SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE TOTAL 
AMOUNT BILLED OR BILLABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR SERVICES PROVIDED BY COMPANY DURING THE 
PRECEDING TWO (2) MONTHS FROM THE DATE THE ALLEGED DAMAGES WERE INCURRED. 

12. Equal Opportunity Employer. Company is an Equal Opportunity Employer and does not discriminate in recruitment, hiring, 
transfer, promotion, compensation, development, or termination of its employees on the basis ofrace, color, sex, age, marital 
status, national origin, handicap, religious beliefs, veteran's status or other protected category as required by applicable federal, 
state and local laws. Customer likewise represents that it will not discriminate in the referral or acceptance of Company 
employees hereunder on the basis of race, color, sex, age, marital status, national origin, handicap, religious beliefs, veteran's 
status or other protected category as required by applicable federal, state and local laws. 

13. Indemnification. Subject to and without waiving the City's rights of sovereign immunity and to the extent permitted by 
Missouri law, Each party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other, its employees, principals (partners, shareholders 
or holders of an ownership interest, as the case may be) and agents, from and against any third party claims, demands, loss, 
damage or expense relating to bodily injury or death of any person or damage to real and/or tangible personal property directly 
caused solely by the negligence or willful conduct of the indemnifying party, its personnel or agents in connection with the 
performance ofthe Services hereunder. To the extent that such claim arises from the concurrent conduct of Customer, Company 
and/or any third party, it is expressly agreed that Company's liability shall be limited by the terms and provisions of paragraph 
11 herein and that, with respect to any remaining obligations to pay any third party claims, demands, losses, damages or 
expenses that are not limited by the terms and provisions of paragraph 11 herein, each party's obligations of indemnity under 
this paragraph shall be effective only to the extent of each party's pro rata share ofliability. To receive the foregoing indemnities, 
the party seeking indemnification must promptly notify the other in writing of a claim or suit and provide reasonable 
cooperation ( at the indemnifying party's expense) and full authority to defend or settle the claim or suit. The indemnifying party 
shall have no obligation to indemnify the party seeking indemnification under any settlement made without the indemnifying 
party's written consent. 

14. Termination 

( a) Termination for Material Breach. If either party believes that the other party has failed in any material respect to perform 
its obligations under this Agreement (including any Service Attachment(s), Statement of Work or Product Order attached 
hereto), then the non-breaching party shall provide written notice to the other party's representative identified in Exhibit 1 
attached hereto describing the alleged breach in reasonable detail. If the alleged breach relates to Customer's failure to pay 
any sum due and owing under this Agreement, or if Customer makes an unauthorized solicitation of a Company employee 
under the provisions of paragraph 9 herein, Customer shall have ten ( 10) business days after notice of such failure to cure the 

NetStandard Inc. Page 5 of 9 
Publi<hed 7/25/2017 
Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

18 



breach. If Customer fails to cure the breach within ten (10) business days, then Company may immediately terminate this 
Agreement, in whole or in part, for cause, by providing written notice to Customer. With respect to alJ other breaches of this 
Agreement, the non-breaching party must provide the breaching party notice in writing clearly identifying the breach. Unless 
the Parties agree in writing to a longer time, the breaching party shall have fifteen (15) days from its receipt of the written 
notice of breach to cure the breach. Jfthe breaching party fails to cure the breach within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the 
written notice of breach, then the non-breaching party may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for cause by 
providing written notice to the authorized contact identified in Exhibit 1 attached hereto and fully incorporated herein. If the 
breach is one that carmot reasonably be cured within fifteen (15) days of receiving notice, the parties shall mutually agree in 
writing to a time schedule and plan for curing the breach. lfthe breach is not cured by the mutually agreed upon deadline, 
the non-breaching party may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for cause by providing written notice to the 
authorized contact identified in Exhibit 1 to this Agreement. 

(b) Termination of Individual Services. If Customer is receiving Services under multiple Service Attachments, the 
Tennination of one Service Attachment does not affect any other Service Attachment or this Agreement. If Company 
terminates any Service Attachment due to Customer's material breach, Customer shall not be relieved of its obligation to 
remit payment for any unpaid, undisputed balance, or compensate Company its actual costs incurred as a result of Company's 
reasonable reliance upon Customer's promise to honor its obligations under the Service Attachment. 

( c) Termination for Bankruptcy. Co.mpany shall have the immediate right to terminate this Agreement, by providing written 
notice to Customer, in the event that (i) Customer becomes insolvent, enters into receivership, is the subject of a voluntary 
or involuntary bankruptcy proceeding, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or (ii) a substantial part of 
Customer's property becomes subject to any levy, seizure, assignment or sale for or by any creditor or government agency. 

( d) Payments Due. The termination of this Agreement shall not release Customer from the obligation to make payment of all 
amounts then or thereafter due and payable. 

( e) License Fees. Upon tennination of this Agreement or any Service Attachment for any reason, Customer shall be responsible 
for the unpaid balance of any license fees or similar use fees incurred by Company on behalf of Customer. 

(f) Discontinued Services. Company reserves the right, in its absolute discretion, to discontinue offering any Service(s) 
identified in any Service Attachment or Statement of Work, in whole or in part, upon sixty (60) days written notice to 
Customer. Company shall not be in breach of this paragraph l4(f) or any other provision of this Agreement if one or any of 
Company's vendors provides less than thirty (30) days notice to Company that a particufar service will no longer be available 
to its customers. 

15. Acceptable Use Policy. Customer, its employees and agents and any person or entity authorized by Customer to utilize 
Company's network shall be bound by Company's Acceptable Use Policy (the ''Use Policy") published on its website, available 
at http://www.netstandard.com/acceptable-use-policy/. Violations of this Use Policy may result in a demand for immediate 
removal of offending material, immediate temporary or permanent filtering, blocked access, suspension or termination of 
service, or other action appropriate to the violation, as determined by Company in its sole discretion. When feasible, Company 
shall give notice of the violations and allow reasonable time for them to be cured, not to exceed 10 days; however, Company 
reserves the right to act without notice when necessary, as determined by Company in its sole discretion. Company may involve, 
and will cooperate with, law enforcement if criminal activfty is suspected. Violators may also be subject to civil or criminal 
liability under applicable law. Refunds or credits are not issued in connection with actions taken for violations of this Use 
Policy. 

16. E:M:igent Circumstances. When exigent circumstances arise which threaten violation of existing Jaws, Company's Acceptable 
Use Policy or Privacy Policy, compromise of Company's network, or compromise of Customer's network, Company reserves 
the right, in its sole and absolute dfacretion, to take appropriate action without Customer consent. In such circumstances, 
Company will make reasonable efforts to contact Customer and to resolve the exigency. Examples of exigent circumstances 
include, but are not limited to, denial of service attacks, hijacking ofa Customer website or application for unlawful use by an 
unauthorized third party, or infection ofa resource within Customer's network by harmful malware. 

17. Customer Responsibilities 

(a) Customer shall promptly notify Company of any changes to the information contained in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and 
fully incorporated herein. Company is not responsible for any incorrect or inaccurate information provided on Exhibit 
1. 

NetStandard Inc. Page 6 of 9 
Published 7/25/2017 
Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 

2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

19 



(b) During the Initiation of Services Period, as this term is further defined in the attached Service Attachment( s ), Customer 
will provide Company reasonable access to Customer's network and Customer's facilities in order for Company to 
timely complete its initiation of services. Customer's failure to provide reasonable access to Company may result in 
delays in completing the initiation of services. Any such delay described in this paragraph 17(b) shall not be grounds 
for tennination by Customer. In the event Company terminates this Agreement due to a delay described in this paragraph 
17(b ), Customer shall be responsible for all actual costs and expenses incurred by Company in reliance on this 
Agreement. 

18. Miscellaneous Provisions 

(a) Non-Restrictive Relationship. Company may provide the same or similar services to other customers. 

(b) Waiver. The rights and remedies provided to each of the Parties herein shall be cumulative and in addition to any other 
rights and remedies provided by law or otherwise. Any failure in the exercise by either party of its right to terminate this 
Agreement or to enforce any provision of this Agreement for default or violation by the other party shall not prejudice such 
party's rights oftennination or enforcement for any further or other's default or violation or be deemed a waiver or forfeiture 
of those rights. 

(c) Privacy. Company is committed to protecting the privacy of all of its customers, and Company has enacted policies to 
protect certain information from disclosure to third parties (the "Privacy Policy"). A copy of Company's Privacy Policy may 
be accessed via Company's website at http://www.netstandard.com/privacy/. 

(d) Attorney's Fees. In the event Company is forced to take legal action against Customer to enforce any of the tenns of this 
Agreement or any attached Service Attachment( s ), Company shall be entitled to recover from Customer its reasonable costs, 
necessary disbursements, and attorney's fees incurred in enforcing this Agreement. 

( e) Force Majeure. Neither party will be liable to the other for failure to perform its obligations hereunder if and to the extent 
that such failure to perform results from causes beyond its control, including and without limitation: strikes, lockouts, or 
other industrial disturbances; civil disturbances; fires; acts of God; acts of a public enemy; compliance with any regulations, 
order, or requirement of any governmental body or agency; or inability to obtain transportation or necessary materials in the 
open market. 

(t) Notices. All notices required under or regarding this Agreement, including any Service Attachments, must be in writing and 
will be considered if delivered personally, mailed via registered or certified mail (return receipt requested and postage 
prepaid), given by facsimile ( confinned by certification of receipt), sent by e-mail ( confirmed by read receipt) or sent by 
courier ( confirmed by receipt) addressed to the following designated parties: 

Ifto NetStandard, Inc.: 
NetStandard, Inc. 
Attention: Account Services 
2000 Merriam Lane 
Kansas City, KS, 66106 
E-mail: admin@netstandard.com 

Ifto ______________ ~ 

See Exhibit 1, attached hereto 

(g) Contact and Billing Information. Customer's designated contact for Notices described above and billing information 
is identified in Exhibit 1 of this Agreement. 

(h) Assignment. Customer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of Company. Company may 
not assign this agreement without prior written notice to Customer. 

(i) Facility Rules and Safety Reguirements. The employees and agents of each Party, while on the premises of the other 
Party, shall be bound by any and all rules and regulations in effect, including safety and security requirements. 

U) Survival Any provision of this Agreement that contemplates performance or observance following termination or 
expiration of this Agreement, or that by its nature should continue to be effective following termination or expiration of 
this Agreement, will survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and continue in full force and effect until the 
natural termination of the particular provision. 

NetStandard Inc. Page 7 of9 
Published 7/25/2017 
Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

20 



(k) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original 
for all purposes, and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. A signature transmitted by facsimile or 
scanned from the origi.nal shall be considered an original signature for purposes of this Agreement. 

(I) Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable, the validity or 
enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected. 

(m) Captions. The section headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience ofreference and shall be given 
no effect in the construction or interpretation ofthis Agreement. 

(n) Entire Agreement. This Agreement and any Service Attachment(s) incorporated herein constitute the entire agreement 
between the Parties and supersede any prior or contemporaneous communications, representations or agreements 
between the Parties, whether oral or written, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. 

(o) Modification. Except as otherwise provided in an Service Attachment, this Agreement and any Service Attachment(s) 
may be modified only by an instrument in writing executed by the Parties hereto. Any written work order or request for 
additional services submitted by Customer shall not modify the terms of this Agreement and will only be considered an 
offer to modify the Agreement. 

(p) Supremecy. This Master Service Agreement shall replace and supercede all prior Master Service Agreements entered 
into by and between the Parties. Any Service Attachment(s) executed by the Parties after execution of this Master 
Service Agreement shall be governed only by this Master Service Agreement. The Parties acknowledge that some 
inconsistencies may exist between this Master Service Agreement and Service Attachments executed prior to this Master 
Service Agreement. The Parties agree that any inconsist1mcies or ambiguities that may arise between an existing Service 
Attachment and this Master Service Agreement shall be construed in favor of the existing Service Attachment. 

(q) Applicable Law. This Agreement is made under and will be construed in accordance with the law of Missouri without 
giving effect to that state's choice of law rules. The forum for any dispute or litigation arising out of this Agreement 
shall be in the Cass County District Court or in the Federal District Court for the state of Missouri. 

(r) Successors and Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of Company and Customer and 
any successors or assigns of Company and Customer. No third party shall have any rights hereunder. 

(s) Audit Attestation. Company is committed to protecting the data hosted in Company's data center, both physically and 
1ogicafly. Detailed controls regarding the security of hosted data are available in Company's control audit attestation 
report. Company maintains an attestation report (i.e. SSAE16, SSAE18) that may be reviewed by Customer upon 
request. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Master Services Agreement as of the Effective Date above. 

J NetStaodard, Inc. 

By 

Name 

Title 

Date 

Published 7/25/2017 
Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 

I City of Belton 

By 

Name 

Title 

Date 

NetStandard Inc. 
2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

21 

Page 8 of9 



EXHIBIT 1 • CONTACT AND BILLING INFORMATION 

Main Contact:----------------

Billing Contact: - --- -------------

Billing Phone: _ _ _ _ ____________ _ 

E-mail: _ __________ _ _ __________ _ 

D Check this box if you authorize NSI to provide official notices by e-mail 

Billing Preference: De-mail D US Postal Service 

Company: - --- - -------- --

Main Telephone#: -------------

Fax Number:--- ------- ---

Address: - -------------

City: ______ _ _____ State: ___ Zip:----

Corp D LLC D Partnership D Individual D 

EIN/SSN: _ __________ _ 

Customer Acknowledgement: 

Customer Name: ------------

By: - ------- ------

Printed Name: - ------------- - - 

Title: ----------

Date: - -----------

NetStandard Inc. 
Published 7/25/2017 
Modified 2/8/2018 9:44:00 AM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City, Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

22 

Page 9of9 



NetStandard Inc. 
DataSafe™ Remote Data Backup and 

Disaster Replication Services Attachment 

EXHIBIT 

fo 

This DataSafe™ Remote Data Backup and Disaster Replication Services Attachment ("DataSafe™ Attachment") references 
terms and conditions in a Master Services Agreement by and between NetStandard, Inc. ("NSI"), with a principle office at 2000 Merriam 
Lane, Kansas City, KS 66106 (NSI may also be referred to as "Company"), and City ofBelton with a principle office at 506 Main Street. 
Belton MO 64012 may also be referred to as "Customer") ("Company" and "Customer" are collectively referred to as the "Parties") 
with an Effective Date of March 6. 2018. This DataSafe™ Attachment, together with the Master Services Agreement and any other 
Service Attachments executed by the Parties shall be referred to collectively as the "Agreement." 

WHEREAS, Company is engaged in the business of providing certain Remote Data Backup and Data Replication Services known 
as DataSafe™ (the "Services"); 

WHEREAS, Customer desires to retain Company to perform the DataSafe™ Services; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Definitions 

(a) A2ent or ~ateway shall mean the software that runs on a computer at Customer's site to perform remote data backups; 

(b) Data Archival shall mean the process of identifying Protected Data that is no longer actively used by Customer and 
creating exceptions to provide for long-term retention of non-critical data; 

(c) Data Backup shall mean the process of creating multiple recoverable copies of Protected Data, each with multiple 
recovery points; 

( d) DataSafe™ shall mean the subscription-based remote data backup and disaster replication services offered by Company; 

(e) DataSafeTM Systems shall mean any Company-owned hadware, software, remote backup systems, other services, 
documents, files and information provided to Customer in connection with the DataSafe™ services; 

(f) Disaster Replication shall mean the process of creating multiple replicated virtual machine images at Company's data 
center that are hosted within a compatible hypervisor in a runnable state; 

(g) Initial Seed Backup shall mean the first full system backup that must be performed by Customer and transported to 
Company's data center; 

(h) Local Storage Appliance shall mean the combination of hardware and software that exists at Customer's site that stores 
backup data; 

(i) Protected Capacity shall mean the total amount of Customer's source data stored on Customer's systems; 

U) Protected Data shall mean the data stored on Customer's systems that is targeted for protection by DataSafe™; 

(k) Storage Node shall mean the combination of hardware and software located at Company's data center that receives 
backup or replication data from an Agent or Gateway; 

(I) Stored Capacity shall mean the total amount of Customer's compressed data stored on the DataSafe Systems. 

2. Services 

(a) DataSafeTM Remote Data Backup Services 

1. DataSafe™ is capacity-based and is typically priced on the total amount of Protected Capacity, unless Customer's 
Stored Capacity exceeds its Protected Capacity by 25% or more, in which case Customer's Monthly Service Fee 
will be based on Customer's Stored Capacity. 

Published 3/29/2017 NetStandard Inc. Page 1 of 5 
Modified 3/ 6/2018 12:09:00 PM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas City21ansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 



2. This DataSafe™ Attachment provides for storing multiple restore points of each file backed up based upon the 
retention requirements outlined by Customer. 

i. Customer shall be entitled to up to 45 daily backups. Additional daily backups may be purchased for an 
additional fee. 

ii. The retention limit for deleted items matches the retention limit for the file backups. That means deleted 
items do not create a separate restore point and subsequently, a deleted item will no longer be available for 
restore once the file retention limit. 

3. A Local Storage Appliance must be installed on Customer's local area network that is accessible by all Agent or 
Gateway computers. Company will provide Customer with a Local Storage Appliance to store backups on site. 
Any Local Storage Appliance provided by Company shall remain the property of Company, and Company shall 
be responsible for the maintenance, repair or replacement of the device in the event of failure. Upon tennination 
of this Agreement for any reason, Company will remove the Local Storeage Appliance from Customer's premises, 
or Customer may elect to purchase the Local Storage Appliance from Company at its retail replacement cost. 

4. This DataSafe™ Attachment does not include Data Archival. Data Archival may be purchased by Customer 
under a separate agreement signed by the Parties. 

5. Company does not guarantee the compressibility of Customer's Protected Data. Customer acknowledges that 
data compression is on a best effort basis and not within Company's control. 

6. Customer shall designate a representative to receive initial training from Company to act as a point of contact for 
the installation ofDataSafe Systems and assist with Customer's assessment of the Protected Data to be backed 
up. Company shall provide Customer support via telephone during the first thirty (30) days to assist Customer 
with the setup and configuration of Customer's backup plan, and Customer's performance of the Initial Seed 
Backup. This 30-day period shall be referred to as the "Initiation of Services Period." 

7. NetStandard will provide ongoing management and support of DataSafe Backup Systems to include job 
monitoring, job restart, job scheduling, configuration changes, reporting and file/folder restoration. 

i. Full system restores, or restorations representing more than 10% of a single server's Protected Data, are 
not included under this DataSafe™ Attachment. Such additional services are available at the then current 
time and materials rate which will be provided to Customer upon request. Customer will be notified in 
advance before beginning the restoration. 

ii. Remediation of issues or concerns specific to the Customer's systems or environment are excluded from 
the Services provided pursuant to this DataSafe™ Attachment. This includes, but is not limited to, servers, 
local or wide area networks or software incompatibilities. 

(b) DataSafeTM Disaster Replication 

l. DataSafe™ Disaster Replication is an optional addition to Remote Data Backup Services and is offered on a 
subscription basis. 

2. This attachment provides for the creation and hosting of up to three images of each virtual machine protected by 
the DataSafe™ Remote Data Backup Services. 

i. Image frequency may be specified by Customer. The default frequency is daily. The minimum frequency 
is four ( 4) hours. 

ii. Images will be hosted in a runnable state within a compatible hypervisor using Company's public cloud 
infrastructure and storage. 

3. This DataSafe™ Attachment provides for up to two test periods per calendar year with a duration ofup to twenty
four hours each. During this time any or all of the replicated virtual machines may be started and run but cannot 
host production workloads. Customer must provide Company with one (1) week's advance notice prior to support 
testing. 

Published 3/29/2017 NetStandard Inc. Page 2 of 5 
Modified 3/6/2018 12:09:00 PM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas Cit~J<ansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 



4. This attachment provides for one period ofup to thirty (30) days per calendar year during which any or all of the 
replicated virtual machines may be started and run to support production workloads during a bonafide and 
formally declared disaster. Upon request, Customer shall provide Company with evidence of a disaster 
declaration. Additional events or runtime in excess of thirty (30) days per calendar year will be billed at 
NetStandard's then current retail cloud prices. 

5. Company will provide ongoing management and support of the DataSafe™ Disaster Replication Services to 
include monitoring, scheduling, job completion, configuration changes and reporting. 

6. Company will provide up to four (4) hours of support each calendar year to assist Customer with testing or 
recovery. 

3. Pricing and Payment Terms 

(a) Monthlv Service Fees ("MSF") 

Product 

Stored Capacity for Backup 

Additional NAS Devices 

Total Monthly Storage Fee 

Est. 

Data in TB 
Unit Cost 

Service 

Fees 

3 , $3so I s1,oso 

2 $35 

11,120 

(b) One-TimeDataSafe™ Setup Fee 

tt o f ,n 

Unit Cos t 
SP1v 1ce 

S<'rvice scope 

Systems 
Fees 

DataSaf Backup S tup Fe I $ $ 

DataSafe Disaster Image Setup Fee I 1 $120.00 I 
Back-Up Storage Appliance Setup 1 I $150.00 $150 

Tota.I Non-Reoccur Ing Service Fees $510 

(c) Payment Terms 

1. On the last business day of each month, Company will compute the maximum amount of data stored or protected, 
DataSafe™ licenses used, and appliance data consumed for the month and invoice Customer the adjusted Service 
Fees as calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this DataSafe™ Attachment. 

2. The first monthly payment shall be the larger of either a) the minimum Service Fees projected as of the signing of 
this DataSafe™ Attachment orb) a pro-rated monthly Service Fee based upon Customer's actual usage. 

3. Any services not specifically identified in this DataSafe™ Attachment shall be considered additional services that 
fall outside the scope of this DataSafe™ Attachment. If Customer desires to engage Company for additional 
services, the Parties shall execute a separate Product Order, Statement of Work or Service Attachment as may be 
necessary. 

4. Requirements and Responsibilities 

Published 3/29/2017 NetStandard Inc. Page 3 of 5 
Modified 3/6/2018 12:09:00 PM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas Cit~Kansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 



(a) Customer is responsible for maintenance and installation of all software and/or hardware provided by Customer and 
residing on Customer's premises, except as otherwise specified in this Attachment. Company specifically disclaims 
any and all responsibility for the installation, maintenance or repair of software and/or hardware owned and/or used by 
Customer except as otherwise specified in this Attachment or any other Service Attachment, Product Order or Statement 
of Work between Company and Customer. Customer is also solely responsible for all transfer(s) of information between 
computers within Customer's network and within any subsidiary sets ofresources. 

(b) Company will assist Customer in identifying Protected Data requirements and setting up backups and disaster images 
as applicable. It is Customer's responsibility to ensure that data identified to be backed up is included in DataSafe™ 
backups. Company will not be responsible for the loss of any data as a result of Customer's failure to add specific data 
to DataSafe™. 

(c) Customer shall be responsible for notifying Company ofit need to modify, increase or decrease Protected Data. 

(d) For Customers installing DataSafe™ Systems at Customer's location (i.e., not at NSI's data center), a minimum of 
200Kb per 1Gb of Protected Data, available Internet upload bandwidth is required at each location. Backup times will 
be impacted by network congestion. Larger datasets will require greater bandwidth for t imely completion of backups. 
Customer agrees to provide adequate Internet bandwidth to allow for desired backup operations. 

(e) The DataSafeTM Systems require various TCP/IP ports to be open between the Agent/Gateway and the Storage Node 
machine(s). These ports must be open for proper operation of the Services. TCP/IP port assignments may be changed 
due to upgrades ofDataSafeTM, 

(f) Company requires administrative access to all of Customer's protected systems. This access must be granted at the time 
of installation and continuously maintained for proper provisioning of the Services. 

(g) Depending on Protected Data requirements, Customer may be required to provide a licensed Agent or Gateway 
computer. The Agent or Gateway computer is typically a licensed Windows virtual machine but may take other forms 
depending on requirements. Management of the Agent or Gateway computer itself remains the responsibility of the 
Customer. All DataSafe Systems installed on the Agent or Gateway computer are the responsibility of Company. 
Company is not responsible for performance characteristics on Agent/Gateway computers. 

(h) Company is responsible for the daily supervision of backup operations. An email address and SMTP relay server must 
be provided to Company upon request in order for Customer to receive notifications from DataSafe Systems. 

(i) Upon expiration or termination of this DataSafe™ Attachment for any reason, Customer shall be responsible for 
requesting an export of Customer's stored data via Customer provided storage device. All of Customer's stored data 
will be purged from the DataSafe™ System 10 days after expiration or termination of this DataSafe™ Attachment. 

5. Term and Termination 

(a) This Attachment shall be in effect for a period of one (1) year beginning on the date that the Parties execute this 
DataSafe™ Attachment by signature below (the "Initial Term"). At the expiration of the Initial Term, this DataSafe™ 
Attachment shall renew on a month-by-month basis (the "Renewal Term"), or until terminated by either party. If 
Customer does not wish to renew, Customer must notify Company in writing at least thirty (30) days before the last day 
of the applicable Initial or Renewal Tem1. Customer' s notice not to renew will be effective on the last day of the month 
following the month in which the notice was received by Company. 

(b) Services provided under this DataSafe™ Attachment are scheduled to begin on or after March 6, 2018. 

(c) This DataSafe™ Attachment may be terminated in accordance with Paragraph 14 of the Master Services Agreement. 

6. SeniceLcvel Agreement 

(a) Availability Guarantee. Company guarantees that the DataSafe™ Systems will be operated with due care and using 
best practices for reliability, availability and value. The DataSafeTM availability guarantee does not apply if Customer's 
hardware, software or changes made by Customer are the cause of a misconfiguration, inability to restore data or other 
functionality problems with the DataSafe™ System. DataSafe™ System unavailability will be deemed to exist if the 
DataSafe™ System does not respond to Company's monitoring systems or if Customer cannot restore data that has been 
verified to have been backed-up by the DataSafe™ System. 

Published 3/29/2017 NetStandard Inc. Page 4 of 5 
Modified 3/6/2018 12:09:00 PM 2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas Cit\E«B:ansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 



(b) Service Availability. DataSafe™ availability will be calculated based upon minutes of available service divided by 
minutes of planned availability during the specified period. The calculation will be made monthly on the 1st calendar 
day of the month using the availability criteria identified below: 

99.8% < P < 99.99% 

1!argetM~t 

(c) Service Credit for Unavailability. If Customer experiences unavailability in excess of the targets identified above, and 
if Customer's unavailability was not attributable to Customer's hardware, software or other influence outside of 
Company's control, then Customer shall be entitled to a service credit according to the following chart: 

Table - DataSafe Availabiity Guarantees 

AvallabllJtv In a month 1 PcE1na1ty .. 
9.9..S% to $9,<1% 20%ofMSF I 

99:0,%,to 9$.0% - 3.5%.ofMSf 
95.03:H.o 90.0% S:O%of MSF 
90.0%.fo 75.0% 1 ' 

'7S.%of MSt 
B.elow,s}G 16'o.% of MSF 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this DataSafe™ Attachment as of the date below. 

NetStandard, Inc. 

By 

Name 

Title 

Date 

Published 3/29/2017 
Modified 3/6/2018 12:09:00 PM 

NetStandard Inc. 

Client: City of Belton 

By 

Name 

Title 

Date 

2000 Merriam Lane • Kansas Cit~ansas 66106 • (913) 262-3888 

Page 5 of 5 



SECTION VI 
B 

28 



-~ 
PLANNING & BUILDING DEVELOPMENT 
Jim Brown, CBO, LEED GA 

Building Official 

520 MAIN STREET 

BELTON, MISSOURI 64012 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Belton City Council 

Jim Brown 

February 28, 2018 

TELEPHONE* (816) 331-4331 

FAX * (816) 322-4620 

E-MAIL* jbrown@belton.org 
WEBSITE* www.beJton.org 

RE: Clarification of Land Fill item on Bid Form for Project # 18-001/010-2100-4003020 as 
identified in Bill No. 2018-11. 

As requested by the City Council upon First Reading of Bill No. 2018-12 on February 27, 2018, I offer 
the following clarification, as provided to me via a phone conversation with the contractor, prior to the 
Second Reading on March 13, 2018. 

Under the heading, Bid Form and Price, item 4(b) Landfill fee should read as follows: 
(b) Landfill fee- $2011.96 I Per load (utilizing a 90 cu.yd. dump trailer) 

This memorandum serves to clarify the discrepancy, whereas the initial form did not identify the size of 
the dump trailer. 

1 

29 



SECTION VI 
D 

30 



BILL NO. 2018-13 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH SAK 
CONSTRUCTION, LLC FOR THE 30", 27", AND 18" INTERCEPTOR LINING IN A 
NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT OF $1,167,949.50. 

WHEREAS, in August of 2013, a study was completed of the west interceptor sewer line to 
determine its condition and the extent of infiltration that exists. The condition of the pipe 
appeared to be in good structural shape based on sonar data provided and the CCTV which 
makes the interceptor a good candidate for lining. However, the video showed that there are 
many areas that allow for storm water inflow and infiltration that exist due to the absence of 
gaskets and due to age. These areas cause unwanted flow from rains, ground water and creeks 
that increases storm water flow volumes into the treatment plant that are being treated along with 
the sewage that is to be treated; and 

WHEREAS, on October 14, 2014 City Council passed Ordinance No. 2014-4023 approving a 
construction service agreement with lnsituform Technologies USA, LLC to line the 36" portion 
of the interceptor. This project was completed in June of 2015 and since the project completion, 
the City has seen a decrease in the rate of inflow in infiltration at the Wastewater Treatment 
Facility; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the City's 2016 Capacity, Management, Operations and Maintenance 
Plan (CMOM) that the city submits to the Department of Natural Resources on a biannual 
schedule, the City set a goal of decreasing the inflow and infiltration ratio to 2.5 to 1 for peak 
flows. The current inflow and infiltration rate in the City is approximately 9 to 1 for peak flows. 
The lining of the 30", 27", and 18" portions of the interceptor will continue to decrease the 
inflow and infiltration and will contribute to reaching the goal the City set forth; and 

WHEREAS, an Invitation to Bid for the 30", 27" and 18" Interceptor Lining was issued on 
January 19, 2018. A Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference was held on February 7, 2018, and the bid 
opening was held on February 21, 2018. Four contractors submitted bids: SAK Construction, 
LLC at $1,167,949.50, Insituform Technologies USA, LLC at $1,298,411.00, Blue Nile 
Contractors, Inc. at $1,431,066.05, and Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. at $1,864,775.00. 
Bidders were also required to submit a Quality Assurance Plan and City staff scored them based 
on 9 different criteria. After evaluation of the bid prices and the Quality Assurance Plans, City 
staff determined that SAK Construction, LLC had the lowest and best bid; and 

WHEREAS, the Council believes that the Construction Service Agreement with SAK 
Construction, LLC for the 30", 27", and 18" Interceptor Lining in a not-to-exceed amount of 
$1,167,949.50 is beneficial to the citizens of Belton to continue to decrease the inflow and 
infiltration. 

1 
31 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the Construction Service Agreement with SAK Construction, LLC for the 
30", 27", and 18" Interceptor Lining in a not-to-exceed amount of$1,167,949.50, 
herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2. The Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the 
City. 

SECTION 3. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage and approval 

SECTION 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions thereof 
are hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: March 13, 2018 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Approved this _day of ___ , 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 

2 

32 



meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March. 2018, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2018-_ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on the_ day of , 2018, after the second reading thereof by the following 
vote, to-wit: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

3 
33 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

PllllC 11111 

AGENDA DATE: March 13, 2018 

COUNCIL: cg) Regular Meeting 

cg) Ordinance Resolution 
cg) Agreement Discussion 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 

DIVISION: Public Works 

D Work Session D Special Session 

D Consent Item 
D FYI/U date 

D Change Order 
D Presentation 

D Motion 
D Both Readin s 

In order to decrease the City's storm water inflow and infiltration ratio and prolong the lifetime of the 
City's west interceptor, an Invitation to Bid for the 30", 27" and 18" Interceptor Lining was issued on 
January 19, 2018. A Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference was held on February 7, 2018, and the bid opening 
was held on February 21, 2018. Four contractors submitted bids: SAK Construction, LLC at 
$1,167,949.50, Insituform Technologies USA, LLC at $1,298,411.00, Blue Nile Contractors, Inc. at 
$1,431,066.05, and Ric-Man Construction Florida, Inc. at $1,864,775.00. Bidders were also required to 
submit a Quality Assurance Plan and these were scored by City staff scored based upon 9 different 
criteria. After evaluation of the bid prices and the Quality Assurance Plans, City staff determined that 
SAK Construction, LLC had the lowest and best bid. 

Staff recommends approval of a Construction Service Agreement with SAK Construction, LLC for the 
30", 27", and 18" Interceptor Lining in a not-to-exceed amount of $1,167,949.50. 

BACKGROUND: 
In August of 2013, a study was completed of the west interceptor sewer line to determine its condition 
and the extent of infiltration that exists. The condition of the pipe appeared to be in good structural 
shape based on sonar data provided and the CCTV which makes the interceptor a good candidate for 
lining. However, the video showed that there are many areas that allow for storm water inflow and 
infiltration that exist due to the absence of gaskets and due to age. These areas cause unwanted flow 
from rains, ground water and creeks that increases storm water flow volumes into the treatment plant 
that are being treated along with the sewage that is to be treated. 

On October 14, 2014 City Council passed Ordinance No. 2014-4023 approving a construction service 
agreement with Insituform Technologies USA, LLC to line the 36" portion of the interceptor. This 
project was completed in June of 2015 and since the project completion, the City has seen a decrease in 
the rate of inflow in infiltration at the Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

As part of the City's 2016 Capacity, Management, Operations and Maintenance Plan (CMOM) that the 
City submits to the Department of Natural Resources on a biannual schedule, the City set a goal of 
decreasing the inflow and infiltration ratio to 2.5 to 1 for peak flows. The current inflow and infiltration 
rate in the City is approximately 9 to 1 for peak flows. The lining of the 30", 27", and 18" portions of 
the interceptor will continue to decrease the inflow and infiltration and will contribute to reaching the 
goal the City set forth. 

!:\Agenda Items\2018\031318\30, 27, and 18 Inch Interceptor Lining Contract RS 03.13.18 MBMOK\1. Interceptor 
Construction Agreement Award Council Info Sheet 03.13.18.doc 

34 



IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: SAK Construction LLC 
Amount of Request/Contract: $ 1,167,949.50 
Amount Budgeted: $ 1,800,000.00 
Funding Source: 660-0000-495-7300 
Encumbered: $ n/a 
Funds Remaining: $ 632,050.50 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Approve an ordinance for the Construction Service Agreement with SAK Construction, LLC for the 
30", 27 ', and 18" interceptor lining in a not-to-exceed amount of $1,167,949.50. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Ordinance 
Bid Tabulation 
Exhibit A - Construction Service Agreement 

!:\Agenda Items\2018\031318\30, 27, and 18 Inch Interceptor Lining Contract RS 03.13 .18 MBMOK\1. Interceptor 
Construction Agreement Award Council Info Sheet 03 .13 .18.doc 

35 



w 
OI 

Bid Tabulation for 30 11
, 27 11

, and 18 11 Interceptor Lining 

Upon evaluation of the Quality Assurance Plans and Price Submittals, SAK Construction, LLC was determined to have t he lowest and best bid and the 

project will be awarded to them. 

SAK lnsituform 

Contractor Construction Technologies USA Blue Nile Contractors Ric-Man Construction 

Quantities 

Mobilization LS $ 9,400.00 $ 24,000.00 $ 9,033.00 $ 74,000.00 

Clearing / grubbing, access 
roads, MH access / 
reconstruction, restoration 
[ROW access provided by 
Belton MO] LS $ 50,000.00 $ 104,000.00 $ 25,197.00 $ 261,200.00 

30-inch sanitary sewer 
rehabilitated by CIPP method (x 
15mm) 3429 LF $ 316,325.25 $ 353,187.00 $ 495,319.05 $ 480,060.00 

27-inch sanitary sewer 
rehabilitated by CIPP method (x 
15mm) 5598 LF $ 491,224.50 $ 498,222.00 $ 674,559.00 $ 716,544.00 

18-inch sanitary sewer 
rehabilitated by CIPP method (x 
9mm) 2837 LF $ 160,999.75 $ 130,502.00 $ 164,546.00 $ 235,471.00 

Bypass Pumping SO Days $ 25,000.00 $ 107,500.00 $ 47,500.00 $ 92,500.00 

Media of internal inspection pre 
and post sanitary sewer 
rehabilitation LS $ 115,000.00 $ 81,000.00 $ 14,912.00 $ 5,000.00 

Total - $ 1,167,949.50 $ 1,298,411.00 $ 1,431,066.05 $ 1,864,775.00 

Average QAP Score /50 43.4 45.4 30.9 15.8 

All Bid Documents Included X X X X 
Attended Pre-Bid Meeting X X X X 



PUIIIC WIRIS 

CITY OF BEL TON 
PUBLIC WORKS 
DEPARTMENT 
506 Main Street 

Belton, MO 64012 
(816) 322-1885 

FAX (816) 322-5031 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Exhibit A 

THIS Agreement ("Agreement") is by and between the City of Belton, Missouri, a 
constitutional charter city ("CITY"), and SAK Consb::::vc:bM , LLc, a l:1mH·ec:l. L·,e,loi 11+:r C,ui-r,pc.ny, 
authorized to conduct business in Missouri and located at 
o· k I loo, MQ ("CONTRACTOR"; CITY and CONTRACTOR each a 

"Party", and collectively the "Parties") . 

WHEREAS, CITY requires professional services to provide cured in place pipe (CIPP) lining 
of the 30, 27 and 18 inch interceptor Wastewater Collection System infrastructure, as further 
described herein (the "Services") ; · 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is prepared to provide said Services and shall give 
consultation to CITY during the performance of said Services; 

NOW THEREFORE, CITY and CONTRACTOR in consideration of the mutual covenants 
contained in this Agreement, agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1-EFFECTIVE DATE 

The effective date of this Agreement shall be ---- ------ ("Effective Date"). 

ARTICLE 2 - SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR 

CONTRACTOR shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services necessary to line and 
rehabilitate the 30", 27", and 18" interceptor sanitary sewer pipe maintained by the Public Works 
Department -Water Service Division, and represents that it is equipped, competent, and able to 
perform, and that it will perform all services hereinafter set forth in a diligent, competent, and 
workmanlike manner as described herein. CONTRACTOR, as opposed to sub-contractors of 
CONTRACTOR, must perform at least eighty percent (80%) of the Services described hereln, 
throughout the term of this Agreement. See attached Exhibit - Scope of Services and Price 
Proposal. 

ARTICLE 3 - PERIOD OF SERVICE 

This contract shall be in effect for a one (1) year period from the Effective Date. 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

37 

Page 1 of 12 



The CONTRACTOR is allowed 100 calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed to 
complete all work and reach Final Completion. A 30 day extension from the Final Completion date 
for restoration work (final grading and seeding) only may be considered. 

ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION 

It is expressly understood that in no event will compensation be paid to the CONTRACTOR under 
the terms of this contract for the services set forth in Article 2, and for the reimbursement of the 
authorized expenses, unless and until costs for a specific task are provided by the 
CONTRACTOR and approved by the CITY. If additional services are requested by the CITY, the 
CONTRACTOR will prepare and submit to the CITY an estimate of the total cost associated with 
such additional services. The CITY will review and approve in writing such cost estimate for 
additional services, and the total compensation and reimbursement to be paid by the CITY to the 
CONTRACTOR for such approved additional services shall not exceed the approved amount. 

Monthly invoices shall be submitted by the CONTRACTOR to the CITY for payment covering 
services performed during the preceding month. The CITY PAYMENT TERMS ARE NET THIRTY 
(30) days from the receipt of a complete invoice with supporting materials. Inadequate 
documentation to support the charges shall be remedied by CONTRACTOR within ten (10) days, 
and CITY shall make payment within thirty (30) days from its receipt of remedial payment of any 
invoice. No payment made under this Agreement shall be proof of satisfactory performance of the 
Agreement, either wholly or in part, and no payment shall be construed as acceptance of deficient 
or unsatisfactory work. 

The CITY is exempt from the State of Missouri sales and use taxes on purchases made directly 
for the CITY. CONTRACTOR shall not include any sales or use taxes on transactions between 
the CONTRACTOR and CITY. 

CONTRACTOR shall provide proof of compliance with the CITY'S tax ordinances as a condition 
precedent to the CITY making any payments under this Agreement. If CONTRACTOR performs 
work on an Agreement that is for a term longer than one year, the CONTRACTOR shall submit 
evidence of such compliance on each anniversary of the Effective Date and prior to the first 
payment under this Agreement following each such anniversary as a condition precedent to the 
CITY making any payments under the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 5 - BOND 

CONTRACTOR shall furnish Performance and Mainteni/lnce and Payment Bonds, each in an 
amount at least equal to the task price, as secµrity for the faithful performance and payment of all 
CONTRACTOR's obligations under the Contract Documents and all insurance premiums, both 
for compensation, and for all other kinds of insurance, said work, and for all labor performed in 
such work whether by sub-contractor or otherwise, all as required by R.S.Mo. § 107.170. These 
Bonds shall remain in effect at least until two (2) years after the date when final payment becomes 
due. 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

38 
Page 2 of 12 



ARTICLE 6 - PERMITS AND LICENSES 

The CONTRACTOR, and any sub-contractor hired by the CONTRACTOR, shall procure a CITY 
Occupation License, which license(s) shall be in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement. CONTRACTOR will abide by all applicable laws, regulations and ordinances of all 
federal, state and lo.cal governments in which work under this Agreement are performed and shall 
contractually require the same of all its sub-contractors performing work under this Agreement. 
The CONTRACTOR, and any sub-contractor hired by the CONTRACTOR, must furnish and 
maintain certification of authority to conduct business in the State of Missouri at all times during 
the term of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 7 - CHANGES, DELETIONS OR ADDITIONS TO AGREEMENT 

Except as otherwise provided herein, either Party may request, subject to approval of the other 
Party, changes to or within the general scope·of this Agreement. If a requested change, approved 
by each Party, causes an increase or decrease in the compensation or Period of Service stated 
in this Agreement, CITY and CONTRACTOR will agree to an equitable adjustment of the 
compensation, Period of Services or both and will reflect such adjustment in a change order. All 
change orders shall be in writing, approved by CITY'S representative, and executed by the CITY 
prior to the CONTRACTOR.performing any work pursuant to the change order. Any claim by the 
CONTRACTOR for such change or adjustment must be asserted within thirty (30) days of 
discovery. 

ARTICLE 8- LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, and hold harmless CITY and any of its agencies, officials, 
officers, or employees from and against all claims, damages, liability, losses, costs, and 
expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from any acts or 
omissions in connection with this Agreement, caused in whole or in part by CONTRACTOR, its 
employees, agents, or sub-contractors, or caused by others for whom CONTRACTOR is liable, 
regardless of whether or not caused in part by any act or omission of CITY, its agencies, officials, 
officers, or employees. 

ARTICLE 9 - INSURANCE 

A CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain in effect throughout the duration of this Agreement 
insurance coverage not less than the types and amounts specified below. In the event that 
additional insurance, not specified herein, is required during the term of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall supply such insurance, if available, at CITY'S cost. Policies containing a 
Self-Insured Retention are unacceptable to CITY. 

1. Workers' Compensation and Employers' liability Insurance. This insurance shall protect 
CONTRACTOR against all claims under applicable state workers' compensation laws,· 
Including coverage as necessary for the benefits provided under the United States 
Longshoreman's and Harbor Workers' Act and the Jones Act. CONTRACTOR shall also 
be protected against claims for injury, disease, or death of employees which, for any 
reason, may not fall within the provisions of workers' compensation laws. This policy shall 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

39 

Page 3 of 12 



include an "all states" or "other states" endorsement. The liability limits shall be not less 
than: 

Workers' Compensation: Statutory 
Employers' liability: 1,000,000 each occurrence 

2. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. This insurance shall be occurrence type 
written in comprehensive form and shall protect CONTRACTOR, and OWNER, DESIGN 
PROFESSIONAL and Consultants as additional insureds, against all claims for injuries to 
members of the public and damage to property of others arising from the use of motor 
vehicles, either on or off the Project Site, whether they are owned, non-owned, or hired. 

The liability limits shall be not less than: $2,500,000 

3. Commercial General Liability Insurance. This insurance shall be occurrence type written 
in comprehensive form acceptable to OWNER. This insurance shall protect 
CONTRACTOR, and OWNER, DESIGN PROFESSIONAL and Consultants as additional 
insureds, against claims arising from injuries, sickness, disease, or death of any person 
or damage to property arising out of performance of the Work. The policy shall also include 
coverage for personal injury liability; contractual liability; completed operations and 
products liability; and for blasting, explosion, and collapse of buildings; and damage to 
underground property. The liability limits for bodily injury and property damage shall be 
not less than: 

$2,500,000 combined single limit for each occurrence 
$2,500,000 general aggregate. 

4. CONTRACTOR shall obtain evidence that all Subcontractors have in force general, 
automobile, and employer's and workers' compensation liability insurance in the amounts 
required by these Contract Documents, and evidence that each is current on its 
unemployment insurance payments before Subcontractors begin Work at the Site. 
CONTRACTOR shall retain such evidence in its files and make available to OWNER 
within ten ( 10) days after written request. 

5. The insurer's costs of providing the insureds a defense and appeal as additional 
insureds, including attorney's fees, shall be supplementary and shall not be included as 
part of the policy limits but shall remain the insurer's separate responsibility. 

B. The policies listed above may not be canceled until after thirty (30) days written notice of 
cancellation to CITY, ten (10) days in the event of nonpayment of premium. The Workers' 
Compensation and Employers' Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Automobile Liability 
specified above shall provide that CITY and its agencies, officials, officers, and employees, while 
acting within the scope of their authority, will be named as additional insureds for the services 
performed under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TO CITY PRIOR TO THE 
EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE SHOWING ALL 
REQUIRED COVERAGES, ENDORSEMENTS. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS. AND COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE TERMS OF THIS ARTICLE 8. The certificate shall be on a form acceptable tQ CITY. 

C. All insurance coverage must be written by companies that have an AM. Best's rating of "B+V" 
or better, and are licensed or approved by the State of Missouri to do business in Missouri. 

D. Regardless of any approval by CITY, it is the responsibility of CONTRACTOR to maintain the 
requirad insuJ"ance coverage in force at all times; CONTRACTOR'S failure to do so will not relieve 
CONTRACTOR of any contractual obligation or responsibility. In the event of CONTRACTOR'S 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

40 

Page 4 of 12 



failure to maintain the required insurance in effect, CITY may order CONTRACTOR to 
immed!ately stop work, and upon ten (10) days' notice and an opportunity to cure, may pursue its 
remedies for breach of this Agreement as provided for herein and by law. 

E. Should the CONTRACTOR hire a sub-contractor for performance of services hereunder, said 
sub-contractor shall maintain at least the same minimum insurance amounts and terms listed 
above. 

ARTICLE 10 - EXCESSIVE UNEMPLOYMENT 

Pursuant to R.S.Mo. §§ 290.550 to 290.580 ("Excessive Unemployment Act"), only Missouri 
laborers and laborers from nonrestrictive states are allowed to be employed on Missouri's public 
works projects when the unemployment rate exceeds 5% for two consecutive months. Where 
applicable in its provision of services under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR and its sub
contractors shall comply with the Excessive Unemployment Act. 

ARTICLE 11 -EXCUSABLE DELAYS IN PERFORMANCE 

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, performance by 
CONTRACTOR shall not be deemed to be in default where delays in its performance hereunder 
is due to war, insurrection, strikes, lock-outs, riots, floods, earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of 
God, labor disputes, governmental restrictions or priorities, embargoes, litigation, tornadoes, 
unusually severe weather, acts or failure to act of the CITY or of any other governmental agency 
or entity, or any other causes beyond the control or without the fault of CONTRACTOR. With the 
approval of the CITY, the time of performance hereunder shall be extended for the period of any 
delay or delays caused or resulting from any of the foregoing causes. All extensions hereunder 
shall be effective only if approved by the CITY in writing, which approval shall not be arbitrarily or 
unreasonably withheld, It being understood that CONTRACTOR is entitled to such reasonable 
extensions upon presentation of documentation of the periods of such delays. 

ARTICLE 12 - TERMINATION 

CITY may terminate or suspend performance of this Agreement for CITY'S convenience upon 
thirty (30) days' written notice to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall terminate or suspend 
performance of the services on a schedule acceptable to CITY, as set forth in such written notice. 
If termination or suspension is for CITY'S convenience, CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR for all 
services performed through the date of the termination or suspension. In the event of a 
suspension of services pursuant to the CITY's notice, upon the restart of CONTRACTOR services 
by notice of the CITY, an equitable adjustment shall be made to CONTRACTOR'S compensation. 

This Agreement may be terminated by either Party upon written notice in the event of substantial 
failure by the other Party to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The non
performing Party shall have ten (10) calendar days from the date of the termination notice to cure 
or to submit a plan for cure acceptable to the other Party. In the event the non-performing Party 
fails to cure its failure to perform, the other Party may terminate this Agreement; withhold payment 
or invoke any other legal or equitable remedy. In the event that funding for the Agreement is 
discontinued, CITY shc:111 have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon written 
notice to CONTRACTOR, and CONTRACTOR shall have no claim against the CITY, for damages 
or otherwise, based upon such termination. 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

41 
Page 5 of 12 



ARTICLE 13- SEVERABILITY 

The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement or the occurrence 
of any event rendering any provision of this Agreement void shall in no way affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. Any void provision shall be deemed 
severed from this Agreement, and the balance of this Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular provision heJd to be void. The Parties further 
agree to amend this Agreement to replace any stricken provision with a valid provision that comes 
as close as possible to the intent of the stricken provision. The provision of this Article shall not 
prevent this entire Agreement from being void should a provision which is of the essence of this 
Agreement be determined void. 

ARTICLE 14 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of CITY's and 
CONTRACTOR'S respective permitted successors and assigns. 

ARTICLE 15 - ASSIGNMENT 

CONTRACTOR shall not assign any rights or duties under this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the CITY, which consent shall be in the sole discretion of the CITY. Unless otherwise 
stated in the written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any obligation under this Agreement. If CONTRACTOR assigns or transfers any 
part of CONTRACTOR'S obligations under this Agreement without the prior written approval of 
CITY, such assignment or transfer shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement; provided, 
however, the Parties acknowledge that CONTRACTOR may subcontract up to twenty percent 
(20%) of the CONTRACTOR services described herein. 

ARTICLE 16- NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS 

This Agreement is made and entered into for the sole protection and benefit of CITY and 
CONTRACTOR and their permitted successors and assigns. No other person or entity shall have 
or acquire any right or action based upon any provisions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 17 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS 

Each Party and each sub-contractor of CONTRACTOR shall perform its activities and duties 
hereunder only as an independent contractor. The Parties and their personnel shall not be 
considered to be employees or agents of the other party. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
interpreted as granting either Party the right or authority to make commitments of any kind for the 
other. This Agreement shall not constitute, create or in any way be interpreted as a joint venture, 
partnership or formal business organization of any kind. 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

42 

Page 6 of 12 



ARTICLE 18 - MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS 

CITY may at any time, by written modification or amendment and notice to CONTRACTOR, 
without notice to any surety, make changes or additions to the CONTRACTOR services to be 
provided hereunder, provided that the changes or additions are within the general scope of this 
Agreement. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the compensation or period of 
service of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the appropriate CITY division 
Superintendent in writing immediately and an equitable adjustment will be made in the 
compensation or Period of Service or both, by written modification of this Agreement. Any claim 
by the CONTRACTOR for such adjustment must be asserted within thirty (30) days by the Parties 
after the CONTRACTOR'S receipt of notice of the modification or amendment. Nothing herein 
contained shall excuse the CONTRACTOR from proceeding with the Agreement as modified or 
amended. 

ARTICLE 19 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, age, color, religion, sex, national origin or any other legally protected category. The 
CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that 
employees are treated fairly during employment, without regard to their race, age, color, religion, 
sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but not limited to, the following: employment, 
upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of payer other forms of compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship. 
CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 
CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of 
the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 
without regard to race, age, color, religion, sex or national origin. 

CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he or she 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding a notice to be provided 
by the Contract Compliance Officer advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of 
the CONTRACTOR commitment under this Article and shall post copies of the notice in 
conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 
In the event of CONTRACTOR'S noncompliance with the non-discrimination clauses of this 
Agreement or with any of said rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement, at the election of ahd 
in the sole discretion of the CITY, may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part, 
and CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for any further government contracts in 
accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by 
rules, regulations, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

ARTICLE 20 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Missouri, notwithstanding the 
operation of any conflict or choice of law statutes or decisional law to the contrary. The 
CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all federal and local laws, ordinances and regulations 
applicable to the services described herein and shall procure all licenses and permits necessary 
for the fulfillment of obligations under this Agreement. For any dispute that may arise out of this 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement Page 7 of 12 

43 



Agreement, the Parties agree that the proper jurisdiction and venue shall be the Circuit Court of 
Cass County, Missouri. 

ARTICLE 21 - COMMUNICATIONS AND NOTICES 

Any communication or notices required by this Agreement shall be made in writing by U.S. mail 
or email to one of the contacts specified below: 

CONTRACTOR: '.B«O'{c:I l-l-w4z. 1 V) a fH'si ,le,..+ 
1 

'iih':J l:k?£f Re! 1 o·r:e. lion, M9 (e.,.33\,v bh,r+-z.@~CA.k. (.-01'1 , c.&>l 

CITY: 
Michael Doi, Director of Public Works, 506 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 or mdoi@belton.org 
AND 
Alexa Barton, City Manager, 506 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 or abarton@belton.org 
AND 
Megan McGuire, City Attorney, 506 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 or mmcguire@belton.org 

Each Party shall have the right to specify that notice be addressed to any other address by giving 
to the other Party ten (10) days' written notice thereof. The date of delivery of any notice given by 
mail shall be the date falling on the third day after the day of its mailing. 

ARTICLE 22- SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 

CITY and CONTRACTOR each reserve the right to, from time to time, enter into other agreements 
for specific projects that are not contemplated under this Agreement. Provided that such 
agreements are separately approved in writing by the Parties, the terms and conditions of those 
agreements or contracts shall govern the implementation of the specific projects set forth therein. 

ARTICLE 23 - SURVIVAL OF TERMS 

The following Articles shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason: 
Compensation (if any payment obligations exist); Bond; Permits and Licenses; Liability and 
Indemnification; Insurance; Severability; Assignment; Independent Contractors; Compliance with 
Laws; Survival of Terms; CITY's Legislative Powers; Entire Agreement; Waiver. 

ARTICLE 24 - CITY'S LEGISLATIVE POWERS 

Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, nothing herein shall be deemed to usurp 
the governmental authority or police powers of CITY or to limit the legislative discretion of the City 
Council, and no action by the City Council in exercising its legislative authority shall be a default 
under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 25 - WAIVER 

Waiver by CITY of any term, covenant, or condition hereof shall not operate as a waiver of any 
subsequent breach of the same or of any other term, covenant or condition. No term, covenant, 
or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by written consent of CITY, and forbearance 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

44 
Page 8 of 12 



or indulgence by CITY in any regard whatsoever shall not constitute a waiver of same to be 
performed by CONTRACTOR to which the same may apply and, until complete performance by 
CONTRACTOR of the term, covenant or condition, CITY shall be entitled to invoke any remedy 
available to it under this Agreement or by law despite any such forbearance or indulgence. 

ARTICLE 26 - HEADINGS; CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT 

The headings of each section of this Agreement are for reference only. Unless the context of this 
Agreement clearly requires otherwise, all terms and words used herein, regardless of the number 
and gender in which used, shall be construed to include any other number, singular or plural, or 
any other gender, masculine, feminine or neuter, the same as if such words had been fully and 
properly written in that number or gender. 

ARTICLE 27 - FEDERAL WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM 

In all contracts over $5,000, when CONTRACTOR delivers the required copies of executed 
Agreements to CITY, CONTRACTOR shall also deliver to CITY an Affidavit of Enrollment in 
Federal Work Authorization Program stating CONTRACTOR is enrolled and participates in a 
federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the 
contracted services and CONTRACTOR does not knowingly employ any person who is an 
unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all requirements of RSMo § 292.675 and any Department of 
Labor and Industrial Relations rules or regulations promulgated thereunder, including but not 
limited to, CONTRACTOR shall require all on-site employees to complete a 10 hour Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) construction safety program for all on-site employees 
of CONTRACTOR and its sub-contractors which includes a course in construction safety and 
health approved by OSHA or a similar program approved by the Department of Labor and 
Industrial Relations which is at least as stringent as an approved OSHA program, or such 
employees must hold documentation of prior completion of the program. All on-site employees 
are required to complete the program within 60 days of beginning work on the PROJECT. 
CONTRACTOR shall forfeit as a penalty to CITY two thousand five hundred dollars plus one 
hundred dollars for each employee employed by the CONTRACTOR or sub-contractor, for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, such employee is employed without the required training. The 
penalty shall not begin to accrue until 20 days after employees are required to complete the 
construction safety program. CITY shall withhold and retain all sums and amounts due and owing 
as a result of any violation of this provision when making payments to the CONTRACTOR. 

ARTICLE 28 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

CONTRACTOR certifies that no officer or employee of CITY has, or will have, a direct or indirect 
financial or personal interest in this Agreement, and that no officer or employee of CITY, or 
member of such officer's or employee's immediate family, either has negotiated, or has or will 
have an arrangement, concerning employment to perform services on behalf of CONTRACTOR 
in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 29 - PRICING 

See attached Exhibit A - Scope of Services and Price Proposal for pricing information. 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement Page 9 of 12 

45 



ARTICLE 30 - ENVIRONMENTAL NOTICE 

CONTRACTOR should be aware of the highly corrosive effects of hydrogen sulfide that is present 
at some CITY jobsites. CONTRACTOR shall provide corrosion resistant protective coatings 
where needed on CITY materials and or parts as a part of any repairs, rebuilds, or replaqements 
provided hereunder. 

ARTICLE 31 - PARTS PROTECTIVE COATING 

The CITY requires and CONTRACTOR shall provide that each fire hydrant, valve, valve box 
cover, pipe, water meter lid with ring assembly and manhole lid with ring assembly included with 
the Services herein is to be painted and or coated with an appropriate hard surface protective 
coating, which matches the original paint color or coating of the part(s) sent in for service, unless 
otherwise specified. ' 

ARTICLE 32 - PREVAILING WAGES 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the terms of the Prevailing Wage Act. RS.Mo. § 290.230, 
where applicable in the provision of Services under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 33 - WARRANTY 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall provide to the CITY a warranty to include at a minimum, but not 
limited to the following: 

a. In addition to any other warranties in this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR warrants 
that all work and products supplied by the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement 
conforms to the Agreement requirements and is free from any defect in 
workmanship, equipment, material, or design furnished by the CONTRACTOR. 

b. The CONTRACTOR shall remedy at the CONTRACTOR'S expense any non
conforming or defective products or work. In addition, the CONTRACTOR shall 
remedy at CONTRACTOR'S expense any damage to real or personal property 
owned by the CITY and or their CUSTOMERS when that damage is the result of 
a defect of products or service furnished. 

c. This warranty shall continue for a period of one (1) year from date of acceptance 
of products and work by the CITY. 

d. The CITY shall notify the CONTRACTOR within a reasonable time after the 
discovery of any failure, defect, or damage. 

e. If the CONTRACTOR fails to remedy any failure, defect, or damage within a 
reasonable time after receipt of notice, the CITY shall have the right to replace, 
repair, or otherwise remedy the failure, defect, or damage at the CONTRACTOR'S 
expense. 

f. This warranty shall not include failures attributable to accident, fire, or negligence 
on the part of operating personnel. 

B. With respect to all warranties, expressed or implied, from manufacturers or suppliers for 
materials furnished under this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

a. Obtain all warranties that would be obtained in normal commercial practice. 
b. Enforce all warranties for the benefit of the CITY. 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement Page 10 of 12 

46 



ARTICLE 34 - TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for pickup and delivery of all CITY materials and parts 
required to perform the Services. All transportation of CITY materials and parts for work ordered 
under the Agreement shall be at the CONTRACTOR'S expense and risk. 

ARTICLE 35 - WORK TIME 

Time for Service labor will be actual time worked on the CITY's jobsite or CONTRACTOR'S shop 
to the nearest one-quarter (1/4) hour. Time will not be charged to the CITY for breakdowns, 
CONTRACTOR'S delays or servicing delays. 

Work shall be performed between the hours of 7am to 4pm Monday through Friday excluding 
holidays. 

ARTICLE 36 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

The Contract Documents, including any Addenda issued or Task Agreements entered into after 
execution of the agreement, comprise the entire Agreement between City and Contractor 
concerning the Work, consist of the following. 

00120 
00130 
00140 
00150 
00160 
00170 
00410 
00430 
00500 
00610 
00615 
00620 
00625 
00630 
00700 
00830 
00840 
00850 
00900 
00910 
00920 

Bidder's Affidavit 
Invitation to Bid 
Instructions to Bidders 
Quality Assurance Plan Specification 
Quantities for 2017 Interceptor Lining 
Map of Sanitary Sewer to be Lined 
Bid Form and Unit Rate Prices 
Bid Bond 
Construction Service Agreement 
Performance and Maintenance Bond 
Payment Bond 
Certificate of Insurance 
Affidavit of Enrollment in Federal Work Authorization Program and E-Verify MOU 
Certificate of Owner's Attorney 
General Contract Conditions 
Missouri Prevailing Wage Info and Forms 
Annual Wage Order No. 24 
Missouri Revised Statutes and Code of State Regulations 
Missouri .Project Exemption Certificate 
Request for Information 
Change Order 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement Page 11 of 12 

47 



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI AND 

SA-1:4 C.O .... s+ruct'ion
1 

LLC. 

This Agreement shall be binding on the parties thereto only after it has been duly executed 

and approved by City and Contractor. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date 

last written below. 

Executed by Contractor this .;i 8 day of _(c...;e.......,,,b.,_vv~6-..=-=-C:f:i-- ---· 20Jj__. 

Executed by City this day of , 20 . 

BEL TON, MISSOURI 
Address and facsimile number of City 
Department: 
Public Works Department 
City Hall Annex 
520 Main Street 
Belton, MO 64012 

By: _ _ ___ _ _ ___ _ 

Printed Name: · Jeff Davis 

Title: ----=M=a .... vo=r ___ _ ___ _ 

Attested By: _ ___ _ ____ _ 

Printed Name: Patti Ledford --.......... ~~~~--

Title: City Clerk 
{Affix City Seal) 

Approved as to form: 

CONTRACTOR 
Address and facsimile number of 
Contractor: 
SAK,. Cons+fvc.-f'io"' , LL( 

Q'tf..-.. llon , mo Co33t. 6 

Title: Vt ce. P~i cli'...-.+ 

Attested By: ~]?
Printed Name: s+c. v-e. s+ulce 

Megan McGuire, City Attorney, City of Belton, Missouri (date) 

City of Belton, Missouri Construction Service Agreement 

48 

Page 12 of 12 



BOND NO. 106868967 

PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE BOND 

Contract Number: 18-002/660-0000-495-7300 

Project Title: 30", 27". and 18" Interceptor Lining 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That SAK Construction, LLC as PRJNCIPAL 
(CONTRACTOR), and Travelers Casually 11nd Surely Company ofAmcri.c<J (SURETY), licensed to do business 
as such in the State of Missouri, hereby bind themselves and their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, and assigns unto Belton, Missouri, a Charter City in the State of 
Missouri, (OWNER), as obligee, in the penal sum 
One Million One Hundred Sixty Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Forty Nine ( $ 1,167,949.50 ) 

for the payment whereof CONTRACTOR and SURETY bind themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

"'and 50/100 Dollars 
WHEREAS, 

CONTRACTOR has entered into a contract with OWNER for 30", 27", and 18" Interceptor Lining, 
which Contract, including any present or future amendment thereto, Is incorporated herein by 
reference and is hereinafter referred to as the Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDmON Of THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if CONTRACTOR shall 
promptly and faithfully perform said ContraGt fncluding all duly authorized changes thereto, and 
including any maintenance requirements contained therein, according to all terms thereof, 
including those under which CONTRACTOR agrees to pay legally required wage rates including 
the prevailing hourly rate of wages in the locality, as determined by the Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations or by final judicial determination, for each craft or type of workman 
required to execute the Contract and, further, shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
OWNER from all damages, loss and expense occasioned by any failure whatsoever of said 
CONTRACTOR and SURETY to fully comply with and carry out each and every requirement of the 
Contract, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. 

The bond must be obtained from companies holding certificates of authority as acceptable 
sureties (31 CFR Part 223) 

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury Department's 
most current list (Circular 580 as f]mended) and be authorized to transact business in Missourl 

WAIVER. That SURETY, for value received, hereby expressly agrees that no change, extension of 
time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the Work to be performed 
thereunder, shall in any way affect the obligations of this Bond; and it does hereby waive notice 
of any such change, extension of time, or alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or 
the Work to be performed thereunder. 

REV: 09-2015 Belton Contract Guidebook 00610-1 of2 

49 

j 

I 
j 

I 
! 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have executed this instrument the ~ day of 
f-ebrv0,. C=( J.-0 I '6 . 

REV: 09-2015 

CONTRACTOR 
Name, address and facsimile number of Contractor 

SAK Const1·nction, LLC 

864HoffRoad 

O'Fallon, MO 63366 

636-385-1130 

Attested By: ~1::=:=,. 
Printed Name: S-teve. S-:lv lc.-e. 
"Title: AA\sm ,.,+ Sec cc:l::0 r7 
(Attach corporate seal if applicable) 

SURETY 
Name, address and facsimile number of Surety: 

Traveler~ Ca~uaity and Surety Company of America 

One Towel' Square 

Hartford CT 06183 

860-277-3931 

I hereby certify that I have authority to execiite this 
document on behalf of S~rsll<, 

By: i~ v\.,0-l__b.-~ i-.___-
Printed Name: --=D=o=m=,a=Ro=bs=o="- ----------=---
Title : Allomcy-in-Fact 

Attested By: Q//Y'J{)j()cffi v1 · ()) /ll(};i111/( 
Printed Name: Amanda L. Williams 

"Title: Witness 

(Attach seal and Power of Attorney) 

Belton Contract Guidebook 00610-2 of 2 

50 



BOND NO. 106868967 

PAYMENT BOND 

Contract Number: 18-002/660-0000-495-7300 

Project Title: 30", 27", and 18" Interceptor Lining 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That SAICConstruction, LLC , as PRINCIPAL 
(CONTRACTOR), and Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America , (SURETY), licensed 
to do business as such in the State of Missouri, hereby bind themselves and their respective 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns unto Belton, Missouri, a Charter City in 
the State of Missouri, (OWNER), as obligee, in the penal sum of 
One Million One Hundred Sixt)' Seven Thousand Nine Hundred F01'ty Nine* ($ 111671949.50 ) for the 

payment whereof CONTRACTOR and SURETY bind themselves, their heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns, jointly ahd severally, firmly by these presents. 

* and 50/100 Dollars 

WHEREAS, 

CONTRACTOR has entered into a contract with OWNER for 3011
1 27" and 18" Interceptor Lining, 

which Contract, including any present or future amendment thereto, is incorporated herein by 
reference and is hereinafter referred to as the Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITTON OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, ff in connection with 
the Contract, including all duly authorized modifications thereto, prompt payment shall be made 
to all laborers, subcontractors, teamsters, truck drivers, owners or other suppliers or for 
equipment employed on the job, and other claimants, for all labor performed in such work 
whether done for CONTRACTOR, a subcontractor, SURETY, a completion contractor or otherwise 
(at the full wage rates required by any law of the United States or of the State of Missouri, 
where applicable), for services furnished and consumed, for repairs on machine,y, for 
equipment, tools, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, 
telephone service, grain, hay, feed, coal, coke, groceries and foodstuffs, either consumed, 
rented, used or reasonably required for use in connection with the construction of the work or in 
the performance of the Contract and all insurance premiums, both for compensation and for all 
other kinds of insurance on the work, for safes taxes and for royalties in connection with, or 
incidental to, the completion of the Contract, in ail instances whether the claim be directly 
against CONTRACTOR, against SURETY or its completion contractor, through a subcontractor or 
otherwise, and, further, if CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless OWNER 
from all such claims, demands or suits by any such person or entity, then this obligation shall be 
void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. 

The bond must be obtained from companies holding certificates of authority as acceptable 
sureties (31 CFR Part 223} 

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing BONDS must appear on the Treasury Department's 
most current list (Circular 580 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in Missouri. 

Any conditions legally required to be included in a Payment Bond on this Contract, including but 
not limited to those set out in §107.170 RSMo. are included herein by reference. 

REV: 9-2015 Belton Contract Guidebook 00615-1 of 3 

51 



SURETY agrees that, in the event that CONTRACTOR fails to make payment of the obligations 
covered by this Bond, it will do so and, further, that within forty-five (45) days of receiving, at 
the address given below, a claim hereunder stating the amount claimed and the basis for the 
claim in reasonable detail, it (a) will send an answer to the claimant, with a copy to OWNER 
stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are 
disputed, and (b) will pay any amounts that are undisputed. The amount of this Bond shall be 
reduced by and to the extent of any payment or payments made in good faith hereunder. 

While this Bond is in force, it may be sued on at the instance of any party to whom any such 
payment is due, in the name of OWNER to the use for such party. OWNER shall not be liable for 
the payment of any costs or expenses of any such suit. 

No suit shall be commenced or pursued hereunder other than in a state court of competent 
jurisdiction in Cass County, Missouri, or In the United States District Court for the Western 
District of Missouri. 

WAIVER. That SURETY, for value received, hereby expressly agrees that no change, extension of 
time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the Work to be performed 
thereunder, shall in any way affect the obligations of this Bond; and it does hereby waive notice 
of any such change, extension of time, or alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or 
the Work to be performed thereunder. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above parties have executed this instrument the ~ day of 
r-e.b ..-vo.ry I .;>...OJf • 

REV: 9-2015 

CONTRACTOR 
Name, address and facsimile number of Contractor 

SAK Construction, LLC 

864HoffRoad 

O'Fallon MO 63366 
636-385-1130 

' 
y; .;,,__;'--;,'i-ll:,,L>~~....,__."'--------i----+-~~~ ~~~~ 

Printed 
Tltle: ____ ~~~=-----------

Attested By: ~ 
Printed Name: stew. S.-tvl c :e 
Tltle: Asst sh...,+ Sec r:e:ha r-; 
(Attach corporate seal if applicable) 

Belton Contract Guidebook 

52 

00615-2 of 3 



REV: 9-2015 

SURETY 
NameJ address and facsimile number of Surety: 

Tmvcle.r:s Casualty and Surety Company of America 
One Tower Square 

Jiartford, CT 06183 

860-277-3931 

I hereby certify that I have authority to execute this 
document on _behalf of Sure;. -~ 

sy: D o~~\,Nl,O .... U t.»::&.LJ,-fA--../ 
Printed Name: Donna Robson 
Title: Attorney-in-Fact 

Attested By: Cl/t'Ykl/() {ID l) i)) ! lLYJJ'Yt 
Printed Name: Alllanda L. Williams 

Title: ______ W_itn __ es_s - - - ---------

(Attach seal and Power of Attorney) 

Belton Contract Guidebook 00615-3 of 3 

53 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR, IF LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY -

STATE OF Missouri } 

COUNTY OF St. Charles} 

ON THE J8 DAY OF fe.bfvo. r':f 20 \'if , BEFORE ME 

PERSONALLY APPEARED 80yd Hirtz TO ME KNOWN AND 

KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE Vice President OF SAK Construction, LLC, 

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, DESCRIBED IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE 

FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE 

EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT 

HE EXECUTED THE SAME AS AND FOR THE ACT AND DEED OF SAID LIMITED 

LIABILITY COMPANY. 

54 

BARBARA MARLER 
Notary Publlc - Notary Seal 

Slate of Missouri 
Commissioned for St. Charles County 

My Commission Expires: December 19, 2018 
Commission Number: 14126252 



State of Missouri 
County of St. Louis 

On ;;.. J~ 'i / ,~ before me, a Nota1y Public in and for said County and State, residing therein, duly commissioned and 
swom, personally appeared Donna Robson known to me to be Attorney-in-Fact of 

TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA 

the corporation described in and that executed the within and foregoing instrument, and known to me to be the person 
who executed the said instrument in behalf of said corporation, and he duly acknowledged to me that such corporation 
executed the same. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, the day and year stated in this 
certificate above. 

Amanda L. Williams, Notary Public 

AMANDA L WILLIAMS 
Notary Public - Notary Seal 

State of Missouri, St. Louis County 
Commission# 13507257 

My Commission Expires July 24, 2021 

My Commission Expires:---- ----------

55 



TRAVELERSJ 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America 
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company 
St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company 

POWER OF ATIORNEY 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS; That Travelers Casually and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casually and Surety Company, and St. 
Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company are corporallons duly organized under the laws of the State of ConneoUcut {herein collectively called the 
"Companies' ), and that the Companies do hereby make, conslilule and appoint Donna Robson, of Chesterfield, Missouri, their true and lawful 
Attorney-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, recognizances, conditional undertakings and other writings obligatory in 
the nature thereof on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing lhe fidellly of persons, guaranteeing lhe performance of contracts 
and executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permilled in any actions or proceedings allowed by law. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have caused this instrument lo be signed, and their corporate seals to be hereto affixed, this 3rd day of February, 
2017. 

State of Connecticut 
By: 

"Robert L. Raney, Sefi'!6r Vice President City of Hartford ss. 

On this the 3rd day of February, 2017, before me personally appeared Robert L. Raney, who acknowledged himself to be the Senior Vice President of 
Travelers Casually and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, and 
that he, as such, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing on behalf of the corporations 
by himself as a duly authorized officer. 

In Witness Whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

My Commission expires the 30th day of June, 2021 
Maiili C. Tetreault, Notary Public 

This Power of Attorney is granted under and by the authority of the following resolutions adopted by the Boards of Directors of Travelers Casualty and 
Surety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, and St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, which resolutions are now in 
full force and effect, reading as follows: 

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President, any 
Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary may appoint Attorneys-in-Fact and 
Agents lo act for and on behalf of the Company and may give such appointee such authority as his or her certificate of aulhority may prescribe to sign with 
the Company's name and seal with the Company's seal bonds, recognizances, contracls of indemnity, and olher wrlllngs obligatory in the nature of a 
bond, recognizance, or conditional undertaking, and any of said officers or the Board of Directors at any time may remove any such appointee and revoke 
the power given him or her; and it is · ··: 

FURTHE~ RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President or any Vice 
President may delegate all or any part or the foregoing authority to one or more officers or employees of this Company, provided that each such delegation 
is in wriUng and a copy !hereof fs filed In the office of the Secretary; and il Is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bond, recognizance, contract of indemnity, or writing obligatory ln lhe nalure of a bond, recognizance, or condil!onal 
undertaking shall be valid and binding upon the Company when (a) signed by the President, any Vice Chairman, any Execullve Vice President, any Senior 
Vice President or any Vice President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistanl 
Secretary end duly allesle.d and sealed with the Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; or (b) duly exeGuted {under seal, if required) by 
one or more Altomeys-in-Fact and Agents pursuant to lhe power prescribed In his or her certificate or their certificates of authority or by one or more 
Company officers pursuant to a written delegation of authority; and lL Is 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following officers: President, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice 
President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secrelary, and lhe seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile-to any Power 
of Attorney or to any oertificale relating therelo appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Reslde.nt Assistant Secretaries or Attorneys-In-Fact for purposes only 
of execullng and attesting bonds and undertakings and olher writings obligalory in lhe nature thereof, and any such Power of A!torney or certificate bearing 
such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company and any such power so executed and cerlilied by such facsimile 
signature and facsimile sea! shall be valid and binding on lhe Company in the future wllh respect lo any bond or underslandlng lo which it ts attached. 

Dated this 

l'Kevin E. Hughes,AssrlantSecrelary 

To verify the authenticity of this Power of Attorne~ please call us at 1-800-421-3880. 
Please refer ta the above-named Attorney-in-Fact and the details of the bond to which the power is attached. 

56 



TRAVELl=HS CASUALlY AND SURt:TY C<lMPANY Of AMERICA 

HARlfORD, CONNECTICUT 00103 

CASH ANO INVESTED CASH 
BONDS 
STOCKS 

ASSETS 

INV!:STMENt INCOME OUEANO ACCRUED 
OTHER It-NESTED ASSETS 
PREMIUM BALANCES 
NET DEFERREDTAXASSET 
REINSURANCE RECOVERAl!LE 
SECURITIES LENDING REINVESTED COLLAlERAL ASSETS 
RECEIVABLES FROM PARENT, SUBSIDIARIES ANO AfFlllJ\1ES 
ASSUMED REINSURANCE RECEIVABLE A.NO P1\YABLE 
OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

STA TE OF CONNECTICUT 

COUNTYOFHARTFORO )SS. 

CITY Of HARTFORD 

FfNANCIJ\L STATEMENT AS OF DECEMBEfU1, 2016 

C/\PITAL STOCK$ M80,000 

$ 23j923,843 
3,472,087.233 

321,3t 8,70S 
42,069,804 
3,108,073 

217,181,3117 
89,571,988 
23,137,81\l 

G,917,816 
9,861,930 

693,147 
6,199,678 

S ~.195,751.603 

UNEARNEO PREMIUMS 
LOSSES 
LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES 
COMMISSIONS 
TAXES, f.lCENSES AND FEES 
OTHER l:JCPF.NS!:S 

UAOILITIES & SURPLI IS 

CUR.RENT FEDER/IL ANO FOREIGN INCOME TAXES 
Rl!MITTANC~S ANO ITEMS NOT ALLOCATED 
AMOUNTS Vl'Jnll·IEl,0 / RETAINED BY COMPANY f-OR OTHERS 
RETROACTIVE REINSURANCE RESERVE ASSUMED 
roUCYFIOLDER DIVIDENDS 
PROVISION FOR REINSURANCE 
ADVANCE PREMIUM 
PAYABLE FOR SECURITIES 
PAYA8LE FOR SECUR!TIES LENOING 
CEDED Rl;INSURANCE NEJ PREMIUMS PAYl\8LE 
REINSURANCE PAYABLE OW PAID LOSSES &LOSS /\CJ, EXPENSES 
OTHER ACCRUED EXPENSES ANO L!l\81LITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

CAPITAL STOCK 
PAID IN SURPLUS 
OTHER SURPLUS 

TOTAL SURPLUS TO POLICYHOLDERS 

TOTAL UABILITIES & SURPlUS 

~ICHAEL J. DOODY, BEING DULY SWORN, SAYS THAT HE. IS SECOND VICE PRESIDENT. Of TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA, 

AND THAT TO niE BEST OF HIS KNOWlEOGE ANO BE!-IEf, THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND CORRECT STATEMENT OF THE Flt-lANCIAL CONDITION OF SAID 

COMPAN'/' AS OF THE 31ST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016, 

SUBSCRIBED ANO SWORN TO BEFORE ME TlllS 
17TH DAY OF MARCH, 2017 

57 

SUSAN M. WEISSLBDER 
Not<fl}'P1tblic 
MyCrn11ml.sio11 ExplrcsNo,•ember 30, 20/7 

.$ B79,38f,21& 
750,091,002 
i24,272,i89 
38,780,777 
13,075,052 
42,G57,94B 
11,3~1.548 

9,443,140 
73,897.600 

817,978 
9,082,0~2 
3,555,000 
1.7eG,267 
3,948,166 
6.917,810 

26.616,735 
686,744 

1,349,281 
$ 2,107,562,210 

s o.~ao,ooo 
433,803,760 

1,847,905,624 
S 2,088,189,284 

S 4,195,751,503 



ACORDe CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DA TE (MM/DDIYYYY) 

~ 2/27/2018 

THIS CERTIFICATE JS ISSUED AS A MATIER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW.. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenl A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 2~~i~cT Dia.ne Stiehl, CISR 
J.W. Terrill, a Marsh & McLennan Agency LLC co ' r.::gfa. !;xi); (311} 594-2719 I ~~ Nol: (888) 307-1561 825 Maryville Centre Drive 
Suite 200 ~~~ss: dstiehl@ljwlerrill .com 
Chesterfield MO 63017 INSURER(S1 AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC/1 

INSURER A : Amerisure Mutual Insurance Companv 23396 
INSURED INSURER e : Conlinental Casuallv Companv 20443 
SAK Construction, LLC 

INSURER c , Starr lndemnllv & Llabililv Com~v 38318 884 Huff Rd. 
O'Fallon, MO 63366 INSURERD: 

IHSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 740688631 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO lHE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. N01WITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO \NHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN.MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR 
lYPE OF INSURANCI= ,=gh-v~l Ir~~~' LIMITS Llll ,.,en ,~,n POLICY NUMBER 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CPP20B35770B02 61212017 812/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE s2.ooo.ooo - =i CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR PREMra~YE~~.~ncoi - S 100,000 

MED EXP (An,/ ono aorsonl S 5000 -
- Pl:RSONAL & ADV INJURY Sl,000.000 

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: u~NERAL AGGREGATE S 4,000,000 R POLICY 0 j'fg: [] LOC PRODUCTS · COMP/OP AGG S 4,000,000 

OTHER. s 
A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY CA20635760802 - 8/212017 8/2/201B COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 

10:A "'-'•--II s ?l'VV\ftJ'v'I 

X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s - ALL OWNED - SCHEDULED 
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accldenl) s 

X x NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s HIRED AUTOS AUTOS l.l!:!U!Gp/doni\ - -
$ 

C UMBRELLA 1.IAB 
H OCCUR 

1000023043 e/2/2017 812/2018 EACH OCCURRENCE S 5,000,000 -
X EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS,MAOE AGGREG/1.TE SS,000,000 

Oi:D I I RETENTION s s 
A WORKERS COMPENSATION 'M::20635780902 1!1212017 81212()18 XI ~~Tun= I I ~iH· 

ANO EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY VIN 
~y PR011RJETORIPARTNER1El<ECUTNE @] NIA 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S 1,000,000 
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory In NH) E.L DISEASE · EA EMPLOYEE S 1,000,000 

ii~ft= i1~PE.RATIONS below E.L. DISEASE · POLICY UMJT S 1,000.000 

B Equpmet>I Floaler C5086483224 1!12/2()17 B/21201B ss,ooo Oeducllble 1,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS I VEH!CLES (ACORD 101, Addltlon.,I Remark~ Schedule, may be 11titc~ II mont space i1 ,equlred) 
Cili of Bellon, Contractor, Design Professional, Consultants and (he respective officers, dlrec(ors, partners, emplores, agents and o!her consuJtants and 
su conlractors of each are included as Additional Jnsured(s) for General Llabllily. Au!omoblle Liability and Excess lablll(y with respect lo work performed by the 
Named Insured, if required by wril!en contract 
General liability, Automobile Liebiltty and Excess Liability coverages are consldered primacy and non-contributory, If required by written contract. 
A waiver or subro~ation Is granled for General liabmty, Automobile Liability, Worker's Compensaffon and Excess Liability coverages In favor or the· addllional 
Insureds, where permitted y Jaw and if required by wrlUen conlract. 
A 60 day notice or cancellation will be given to the named Certificate Holder, for reasons other Jhan non-payment of premium or lnsured's request. This 60 day 
notice of cancellation applies lo General Uabillty, Automobfle Liabilily and Worker's CompensaUon. 
See Attached ... 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

Citb of Belton 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

Pu lie Works Department 
506 Main Street AUTHOR1ZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Belton MO 64012 )~~ I 

@1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

58 



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: ---------- - ---------
LOC#: --------

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page of 

AGENCY NAMED INSURED 

J.W. Terrill, a Marsh & Mclennan Agency LLC co SAK Construction, LLC 
864 Hoff Rd. 

POLICY NUMBER O'Fallon, MO 63366 

CARRlER I NAICCODE 

EFFECTIVE DA TE: 

A.DDITIONAL REMARKS 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERnFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 

A 30 day notice of cancellation wlll be given to the named Certificate Holder, for reasons other lhan non-payment of premium or lnsured's request. This 30 day 
nolice of cancellation applies to Excess Llabllily. 
A severability of!nteresls/cross llablllty clause 1s Included in lhe General Uabllily coverage, if required by written contract. 
The insurance provided to the Addilionat lnsured(s) does not apply to bodily injury, properly damage, personal injury or advertising injury arising out of an 
architect's, engineer's or surveyor's rendering of or failure to render any professional services. 

ACORD 101 (2008/01} © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. Alf rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 

59 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I DA TE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 2/2712018 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER; THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER g~~~CT Diane SUehl. CISR 
J.W. Terrill, a Marsh & Mclennan Agency LLC co ri:gN,t "•"· (314) 594-2719 Ir~. Noj: (888) 307-1561 825 Maryvi lle Centre Drive 
Suite 200 ~!.fil~ss, dsliehl@lwterriU.com 
Chesterfield MO 63017 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A: lronshore Scecialtv Insurance Companv 25445 
INSURED INSURERS: 
SAK Construction, LLC 

INSURERC : 864 Hoff Rd. 
O'Fallon, MO 63366 INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

INSURERF: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 534315963 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ,~nm POLICYEFF POLICYEXR 
LlR TYPE OF INSURANCE ,.,en '""'D POLICY NUMBER IMM/ODIYYYYI IMM!DDIYYYYI LIMITS 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s - D Cl.AIMS-MADE D OCCUR ~Rea~M ~~';;~~on""' s - MED EXP {Any one person) s - PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $ -GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 

~ POLICY D ~G& D LOC PRODUCTS· COMP/OP AGG s 
OTHER: s 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMelNE;.O SINGLE LIMIT 
,e;,amdnntl s -

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s - ALL OWNED - SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accidenl) S - AUTClS - AUTOS 
NON-OWNED PROPER I Y DAMAGE s HIRED AUTOS AUTOS !Per accittenfl - - s 

UMBRELLA LIAS H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ -
EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s 

DEO I I RETENTION s $ 
WORKERS COMPENSATION 1 ~fr TUTE 1 I ~~H-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YI N 
A~ PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE [El N / A 

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s 
OFFlCER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? 
(f,l&ndatory rn NH) E.L. DISEASE · EA EMPLOYEE $ 

~l~~~&~I/J~PERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE· POLICY LIMIT s 
A Pollution Liability 002464202 

. 
B/2/2017 B/212018 Each Condition 5,000,000 

Aggregate 5,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addllional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required) 
Self Insured Retenlion - $50.000 
Pollution Liability coverage is on an Occurrence basis. 

Clly of Belton, Contractor, Design Professional, Consultants and the respective officers. directors, partners, employees, agents and other consultants and 
subcontractors of each are included as Additional lnsured(s) for Pollution Liability with respect to work performed by the Named Insured, if required by written 
contract. 
Pollution Liability covera~e is considered primary and non-contributory, if re~ulred by written contract. 
A waiver of subrogation 1s granted for Pollution Liablllty coverage In favor of he additional insureds, where permitted by law and if required by written contract. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 

City of Belton 
Public Works Department 
506 Main Street 
Belton MO 64012 

I 

ACORD 25 (2014/01) 

CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

) 0:i:ES~ 
© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 
60 



LMAJOR 

EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE I DATE (MMIDDNYYYI 

02/27/2018 

THIS EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE IS ISSUED AS A MATIER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE 
ADDITIONAL INTEREST NAMED BELOW. THIS EVIDENCE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE 
COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWE.EN THE 
ISSUING INSURER(S}, AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE ADDITIONAL INTEREST. 

AGENCY- - - - - pi:l~.~! (314) 594~ 700 __ = - COMPANY - - - - - - - · - - - - - - - -

J.W. Terrllll a Marsh & McLennan Agency LLC company ' Contlnental Casualty Company 
825 Maryvl le Centre Drive 
Suite 200 
Chesterfield, MO 63017 

~ - (888 307 - I E-MAI - - - - - - - -U\19,li!!J.; . _ -1561 _ I .ADJ;fil!=.S~ _ __ __ _ 

CODE! OXXX002901 1 SUB CODE: 
AGENCY --- - - - - · - ·-
CUSTOMERrD O: SAKCONS-01 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 
INSURED SAK Construction, LLC 

864 Hoff Rd 
O'Fallon, MO 63366 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
LOCATIONIDESCRIPTIDN 

- - --- - - '·-·--· - -- -- · 
LOAN NUMBER 

EFFECTIVE DATE : EXPIRATION DATE 

POLICY NUMBER 

C5086483224 

~~/~~20_'!_? _ . _ 08/02/~0~ _ • = l ~Jl~~f~6~KE!L_ 
THIS REPLACES PRIOR EVIDENCE DATED: 

- -
THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. 
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITJON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY INSURANCE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS 
SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

COVERAGE INFORMATION PERILS INSURED BASIC BROAD SPECIAL 

installation Floater Coverage: -
_ _ ~VE~E ~ RI':!£ FORMS _ _ 

limit at any one location limit 
Limit at temporary location Limit 
Transit Limit 
Special Cause of Loss Form Including Earthquake and Flood 
Valuation: Actual Cash Value 

REMARKS (Including Special Conditions) 
Special Conditions: 
Flood Subllmits/Deductlble: 
Flood Deductible: $50,000 
High Hazard Flood Zones Wholly or Partially in FEMA 100 Year Flood Plain
$250,000 Oc.currence/Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability 
Low/Moderate Hazard Flood Zones Outside of FEMA 100 Year Flood Plain
$6,000,000 Occurrence/Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability 

SEE ATTACHED ACORD 101 

CANCELLATION 

_ AMOUNT OF INSURANCE 

$7,500,000! 
$500,000' 
$500,000: 

I 

DEDUCTIBLE 

5,000 
5,000 
5,000 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE 
DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

ADDITIONAL INTEREST 
NAME AND ADDRESS 

City of B.elton 
Public Works Department 
506 Main Street 
Belton. MO 64012 

ACORD 27 (2016/03) 

I . ADDITIONAL INSURED I LENDER'S LOSS PAYABLE 

- I MORTGAGEE -
_.__ __ - - -· - - - - -

L _ LOSS PAYEE 

LOAN# 

Ii 
1 

© 1993-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo lil'! registered marks of ACORD 



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: SAKCONS-01 LMAJOR -------- ---LO C #: 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE 
AGENCY NAMED INSURED 

J.W. Terrill, a Marsh & McLennan Agency LLC company SAK C<y1struct1on, LLC 
864 Ho Rd 

POLICY NUMBER O'Fallon, MO 63366 

C5086483224 
CARRlER I NAICCODE 

Continental Casualty Company 20443 EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/02/2017 

ADDITIONAL REMARKS 

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM tS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM, 

FORM NUnllBER: ACORO 27 FORM TITLE: C:VIO&NCli OF PROPERTY INSURANCE 

Specia l Conditions: 
Earthquake Sublimlts/Oeductible: 
CA, HI, AK, Puerto Rico-
$1 ,000,000 Occurrence/$1 ,000,000 Aggregate 
5% of Values with a minimum Deductible of $100,000 
Critical New Madrid and Critical Pacific Northwest
$2,500,000 Occurrehce/$2,500,000 Aggregate 
2% of Values with a minimum Deductible of $50,000 
Low Hazard Areas-
$6,000,000 Occurrence/$6,000,000 Aggregate 
2% of Values with a minimum Deductible of $50,000 

Blanket Additional Insured: 
All Owners, Architects, Engineers, Surveyors, Contractors, Subcontractors, and Sub-Subcontractors 

Page 1 of 1 

ACORD 101 (2008/01) © 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
The ACORD name and logo e~e registered marks of ACORD 



AFFIDAVIT OF ENROLLMENT IN FEDERAL 
WORK AUTHORIZATION PROGRAM 

Contract Number: 18-002/660-0000-495-7300 

Project Title: 30". 27", and 18" Interceptor Lining 

Comes now 'Bo,1J H:i r+2.. (Name) as 
VI (:e Pr-e.s i c,( e,....-t- (Position Held) first being duly sworn, on my oath, affirm 
SA::K C..Of'\s+v uc;.-ti O,\, L LC.. (Company Name) is enrolled and will continue to 

participate in a federal work authorization program in respect to employees that will work in 
connection with the contracted services related to :>04

, i1,, '' , a"'d l5{'' .'.:h,-,:fercef"tl).r L.ih ·,,,5 
(Project Name) for the duration of the contract, if awarded in accordance with RSMo Chapter 
285.530 (2). 

I also affirm that SA:K- Co10s::J-n,c.:b Dn, t I L (Company Name) does not and will 
not knowingly employ a person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted 
services related to 30'·, i);J ,, J Q"'d I~ 9 M-lerz: ep-k>c L1,.. ·, ('\:) (Project Name) for 
the duration of the contract, if awarded. 

In Affirmation thereof, the facts stated above are true and correct. (The 
undersigned derstands that false statements made in this filing are subject to the 

/ties p v. dedi r Section 575.040, RSMo). 

) Printed Name 

Title (Person with Authority) 

Subscribed and sworn to me before this ;i.sg of Feb vva, "':I • 20...!]_. I 
am commissioned, and affix my official seal, as a notary public within the County of 
s+. Cho.Yiu • State of m·,s.sou( ·, , and my commission expires on 
"Dece na he r l 9 • 20_\_i_. 

Signature of Notary Date 

BARBARA MARLER 
Notary Public - Natal)' Saal 

State of Missouri 
Commissioned for SI. Charles County 

My Commission EJullres: December 19, 2018 
omrnlsslon Number: 14126252 

REV: 09- 01: elton Contract Guidebook 00625-1 of 1 

63 



Company ID Number: 199387 

THEE-VERIFY PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYMENT VERIFICATION 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

ARTICLE I 

PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) sets forth the points of agreement between the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and SAK Construction LLC (Employer) regarding the 
Employer's participation in the Employment Eligibility Verification Program (E-Verify). This MOU 
explains certain features of the E-Verify program and enumerates specific responsibilities of 
OHS, the Social Security Administration (SSA), and the Employer. E-Verify is a program that 
electronically confirms an employee's eligibility to work in the United States after completion of 
the Employment Eligibility Verification Form (Form 1-9). For covered government contractors, E
Verify is used to verify the employment eligibility of all newly hired employees and all existing 
employees assigned to Federal contracts. 

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration 
Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as 
amended (8 U.S.C. § 1324a note). Authority for use of the E-Verify program by Federal 
contractors and subcontractors covered by the terms of Subpart 22.18, "Employment Eligibility 
Verification", of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) (hereinafter referred to in this MOU as 
a "Federal contractor'') to verify the employment eligibility of certain employees working on 
Federal contracts is also found in Subpart 22.18 and in Executive Order 12989, as amended. 

ARTICLE II 

FUNCTIONS TO BE PERFORMED 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SSA 

1. SSA agrees to provide the Employer with available information that allows the Employer 
to confirm the accuracy of Social Security Numbers provided by all employees verified under 
this MOU and the employment authorization of U.S. citizens. 

2. SSA agrees to provide to the Employer appropriate assistance with operational 
problems that may arise during the Employer's participation in the E-Verify program. SSA 
agrees to provide the Employer with names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of SSA 
representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process. 

3. SSA agrees to safeguard the information provided by the Employer through the E-Verify 
program procedures, and to limit access to such information, as is appropriate by law, to 
individuals responsible for the verification of Social Security Numbers and for evaluation of the 
E-Verify program or such other persons or entities who may be authorized by SSA as governed 
by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a), the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)), and SSA 
regulations (20 CFR Part 401 ). 

Page 1 of 13/E-Verify MOU for Employer/Revision Date 10/29/08 

64 



~ _..,,1''' '"" 
-, :i~~'·\ .'Jlili:.,~ . - er1 y l ,,~ t ~r. ~IHU}' !!o,. ··- '" \tt,1. 

•·-----··•UIF'CU >Jt,Vl<lotOftJ' 

Company ID Number: 199387 

4. SSA agrees to provide a means of automated verification that is designed (in 
conjunction with DHS's automated system if necessary) to provide confirmation or tentative 
nonconfirmation of U.S. citizens' employment eligibility within 3 Federal Government worl( days 
of the initial inquiry. 

5. SSA agrees to provide a means of secondary verification .(including updating SSA 
records as may be necessary) for employees who contest SSA tentative nonconfirmations that 
is designed to provide final confirmation or nonconfirmation of U.S. citizens' employment 
eligibility and accuracy of SSA records for both citizens and aliens wi'thin 1 O Federal 
Government work days of the date of referral to SSA, unless SSA determines that more than 10 
days may be necessary. In such cases, SSA will provide additional verification instructions. 

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OHS 

1. After SSA verifies the accuracy of SSA records for aliens through E-Verify, OHS agrees 
to provide the Employer access to selected data from DHS's database to enable the Employer 
to conduct, to the extent authorized by this MOU: 

• Automated verification checks on alien employees by electronic means, and 

• Photo verification checks (when available) on employees. 

2. OHS agrees to provide to the Employer appropriate assistance with operational 
problems that may arise during the Employer's participation in the E-Verify program. DHS 
agrees to provide the Employer names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers of DHS 
representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process. 

3. OHS agrees to provide to the Employer a manual (the E-Verify User Manual) containing 
instructions on E-Verify policies, procedures and requirements for both SSA and OHS, including 
restrictions on the use of E-Verify. OHS agrees to provide training materials on E-Verify. 

4. OHS agrees to provide to the Employer a notice, which indicates the Employer's 
participation in the E-Verify program. OHS also agrees to provide to the Employer anti
discrimination notices issued by the Office of Special Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfair 
Employment Practices (OSC), Civil Rights Division, U.S. Department of Justice. 

5. DHS agrees to issue the Employer a user identification number and password that 
permits the Employer to verify information provided by alien employees with DHS's database. 

6. DHS agrees to safeguard the information provided to OHS by the Employer, and to limit 
access to such information to individuals responsible for the verification of alien employment 
eligibility and for evaluation of the E-Verify program, or to such other persons or entities as may 
be authorized by applicable law. Information will be used only to verify the accuracy of Social 
Security Numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the Immigration and Nationality Act 
(INA) and Federal criminal laws, and to administer Federal contracting requirements. 

7. OHS agrees to provide a means of automated verification that is designed (in 
conjunction with SSA verification procedures) to provide confirmation or tentative 

Page 2 of 13IE-Verify MOU for Employe~Revision Date 10/29/08 '.:•f\N'J\J 1 )J 1::.: (: ! .,,;i/ ~ \; :.'/ !1 / 

65 



Company ID Number: 199387 

nonconfirmation of employees' employment eligibility within 3 Federal Government work days of 
the initial inquiry. 

8. DHS agrees to provide a means of secondary verification (including updating OHS 
records as may be necessary) for employees who contest OHS tentative nonconfirmations and 
photo non-match tentative nonconfirmations that is designed to provide final confirmation or 
nonconfirmation of the employees' employment eligibility within 10 Federal Government work 
days of the date of referral to DHS, unless DHS determines that more than 10 days may be 
necessary. In such cases, DHS will provide additional verification instructions. 

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER 

1. The Employer agrees to display the notices supplied by OHS in a prominent place that is 
clearly visible to prospective employees and all employees who are to be verified through the 
system. 

2. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and OHS the names, titles, addresses, and 
telephone numbers of the Employer representatives to be contacted regarding E-Verify. 

3. The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the most recent version 
of the E-Verify User Manual. 

4. The Employer agrees that any Employer Representative who will perform employment 
verification queries will complete the E-Verify Tutorial before that individual initiates any 
queries. 

A. The Employer agrees that all Employer representatives will take the refresher 
tutorials initiated by the E-Verify program as a condition of continued use of E
Verify, including any tutorials for Federal contractors if the Employer is a Federal 
contractor. 

8 . Failure to complete a refresher tutorial will prevent the Employer from continued 
use of the program. 

5. The Employer agrees to comply with current Form l-9 procedures, with two exceptions: 

• If an employee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only 
accept "List B" documents that contain a photo. (list B documents identified in 8 C.F.R. 
§ 274a.2(b)(1)(8)) can be presented during the Form 1-9 process to establish identity.) If 
an employee objects to the photo requirement for religious reasons, the Employer 
should contact E-Verify at 888-464-4218. 

• If an employee presents a OHS Form l-551 (Permanent Resident Card) or Form 1-766 
(Employment Authorization Document) to complete the Form 1-9, the Employer agrees to 
make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the employee's 
Form 1-9. The employer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist DHS 
with its review of photo non-matches that are contested by employees. Note that 
employees retain the right to present any List A, or·Ust 8 and List C, documentation to 
complete the Form 1-9. DHS may in the future designate other documents that activate 
the photo screening tool. 

Page 3 of131E-Veri~/ MOU for ErnployerlRevision Dale 10/29/08 

66 



-, ··•·· \ ~~; erl Y 
• .. '· !/,SA. ,, 

- I,. <'" . \ lilllP«-"" 
~"' \n,~"" 

.. -----·-,...,.,,.,. ...... v,_., ..... 

Company ID Number: 199387 

6. The Employer understands that participation in E-Verlfy does not exempt the Employer 
from the responsibility to complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms 1-9 that 
relate to its employees, or from other requirements of applicable regulations or laws, including 
the obligation to comply with the antidiscrimination requirements of section 2748 of the INA with 
respect to Form 1-9 procedures, except for the following modified requirements applicable by 
reason of the Employer's participation in E-Verify: (1) identity documents must have photos, as 
described in paragraph 5 above; (2) a rebuttable presumption ls established that the Employer 
has not violated section 274A(a)(1)(A) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) with respect 
to the hiring of any individual if it obtains confirmation of the identity and employment eligibility of 
the individual in compliance with the terms and conditions of E-Verify; (3) the Employer must 
notify OHS if it continues to employ any employee after receiving a final nonconfirmation, and is 
subject to a civil money penalty between $550 and $1,100 for each failure to notify OHS of 
continued employment following a final nonconfirmatlon; (4) the Employer is subject to a 
rebuttable presumption that it has knowingly employed an unauthorized alien in violation of 
section 274A(a)(1)(A) if the Employer continues to employ an employee after receiving a final 
nonconfirmation; and (5) no person or entity participating in E-Verify is civilly or criminally liable 
under any law for any action taken in good faith based on information provided through the 
confirmation system. OHS reserves the right to conduct Form 1-9 compliance inspections during 
the course of E-Verify, as well as to conduct any other enforcement activity authorized by law. 

7. The Employer agrees to initiate E-Verify verification procedures for new employees 
within 3 Employer business days after each employee has been hired (but after both sections 1 
and 2 of the Form 1-9 have been completed), and to complete as many (but only as many) steps 
of the E-Verify process as are necessary according to the E-Verify User Manual. The Employer 
is prohibited from Initiating verification procedures before the employee has been hired and the 
Form 1-9 completed. If the automated system to be queried is temporarily unavailable, the 3-day 
time period is extended until it is again operational in order to accommodate the Employer's 
attempting, in good faith, to make inquiries during the period of unavailabJlity. In all cases, the 
Employer must use the SSA verification procedures first, and use DHS verification procedures 
and photo screening tool only after the SSA verification response has been given. Employers 
may initiate verification by notating the Form 1-9 in circumstances where the employee has 
applied for a Social Security Number (SSN) from the SSA and is waiting to receive the SSN, 
provided that the Employer performs an E-Verify employment verification query using the 
employee's SSN as soon as the SSN becomes available. 

8. The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify procedures for pre-employment screening of 
job applicants, in support of any unlawful employment practice, or for any other use not 
authorized by this MOU. Employers must use E-Verify for all new employees, unless an 
Employer is a Federal contractor that qualifies for the exceptions described in Article 11. D.1.c. 
Except as provided in Article 11.D, the Employer will not verify selectively and will not verify 
employees hired before the effective date of this MOU. The Employer understands that if the 
Employer uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as authorized by this MOU, the 
Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and termination of its access to SSA and 
OHS information pursuant to this MOU. 

9. The Employer agrees to follow appropriate procedures (see Article Ill. below) regarding 
tentative nonconfirmatlons, including notifying employees of the finding, providing written 
referral instructions to employees, allowing employees to contest the finding, and not taking 

PagG 4 of 131E-Veri~y MOU for EmployerjRevision Date 10/29108 

67 



Company ID Number: 199387 

adverse action against employees if they choose to contest the finding. Further, when 
employees contest a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo non-match, the Employer is 
required to take affirmative steps (see Article 111.B. below) to contact OHS with information 
necessary to resolve the challenge. 

10. The Employer agrees not to take any adverse action against an employee based upon 
the employee's perceived employment eligibility status while SS/\ or OHS is processing the 
verification request unless the Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. § 274a.1 (I)) 
that the employee is not work authorized. The Employer understands that an initial inability of 
the SSA or OHS automated verification system to verify work authorization, a tentative 
nonconfirmation, a case in continuance (indicating the need for additional time for the 
government to resolve a case), or the finding of a photo non-match, does not establish, and 
should not be interpreted as evidence, that the employee is not work authorized. In any of the 
cases listed above, the employee must be provided a full and fair opportunity to contest the 
finding, and if he or she does so, the employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse 
employment consequences based upon the employee's perceived employment eligibility status 
(including denying, reducing, or extending work hours, delaying or preventing training, requiring 
an employee to work in poorer conditions, refusing to assign the employee to a Federal contract 
or other assignment, or otherwise subjecting an employee to any assumption that he or she is 
unauthorized to work) until and unless secondary verification by SSA or DHS has been 
completed and a final nonconfirmation has been issued. If the employee does not choose to 
contest a tentative nonconfirmation or a photo non-match or if a seconclary verification is 
completed and a final nonconfirmation is issued, then the Employer can find the employee is not _ 
work authorized and terminate the employee's employment. Employers or employees with 
questions about a final nonconfirmation may call E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218 or OSC at 1-800-
255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD). 

11. The Employer agrees to comply with Title VI I of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 
2748 of the INA by not discriminating unlawfully against any individual in hiring, firing, or 
recruitment or referral practices because of his or her national origin or, in the case of a 
protected individual as defined in section 274B(a)(3) of the INA, because of his or her 
citizenship status. The Employer understands that such illegal practices can include selective 
verification or use of E-Verify except as prov.idE~d in part D below, or discharging or refusing to 
hire employees because they appear or sound "foreign" or have received tentative 
nonconfirmations. The Employer further understands that any violation of the unfair 
immigration-related employment practices provisions In section 2748 of the INA could subject 
the Employer to civil penalties, back pay awards, and other sanctions, and violations of Title VI I 
could subject the Employer to back pay awards, compensatory and punitive damages. 
Violations of either section 2748 of the INA or Title VII may also lead to the termination of its 
participation in E-Verify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the anti-discrimination 
provision, it should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD). 

12. The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form 1-9 
or to print the screen containing the case verification number and attach it to the employee's 
Form 1-9. 

13. The Employer agrees that it will use the information it receives from SSA or OHS 
pursuant to E-Verify and this MOU only to confirm the employment eligibility of employees as 

Page 5 of 13IE-Verily MOU forEmployerlRevision Date 10/29/08 

68 



Company ID Number: 199387 

authorized by this MOU. The Emp·loyer agrees that it will safeguard this information, and means 
of access to it (such as PINS and passwords) to ensure that it is not used for any other purpose 
and as necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that it is not disseminated to 
any person other than employees of the Employer who are authorized to perform the 
Employer's responsibilities under this MOU, except for such dissemination as may be 
authorized in advance by SSA or DHS for legitimate purposes. 

14. The Employer acknowledges that the information which it receives from SSA is 
governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a(i)(1) and (3)) and the Social Security Act (42 
U.S.C. 1306(a)), and that any person who obtains this information under false pretenses or uses 
it for any purpose other than as provided for in this MOU may be subject to criminal penalties. 

15. The Employer agrees to cooperate with DHS and SSA in their compliance monitoring 
and evaluation of E-Verify, including by permitting OHS and SSA, upon reasonable notice, to 
review Forms 1-9 and other employment records and to interview it and its employees regarding 
the Employer's use of E-Verify, and to respond in a timely and accurate manner to OHS 
requests for information relating to their participation in E-Verify. 

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF FEDERAL CONTRACTORS 

1. The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor subject to the 
employment verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR it must verify the employment 
eligibility of any "employee assigned to the contract" (as defined in FAR 22.1801) in addition to 
verifying the employment eligibility of all other employees required to tile verified under the FAR. 
Once an employee has been verified through E-Verify by the Employer, the Employer may not 
rever·ify the employee through E-Verify. 

a. Federal contractors not enrolled at the time of contract award: An Employer that 
is not enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor at the time of ,a contract award must enroll as 
a Federal contractor in the E-Verify program within 30 calendar days of contract award and, 
within 90 days of enrollment, begin to use E-Verify to initiate verification of employment eligibility 
of new hires of the Employer who are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to 
the contract. Once the Employer begins verifying new hires, such verification of new hires must 
be Initiated within 3 business days after the date of hire. Once enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal 
contractor, the Employer must initiate verification of employees assigned to the contract within 
90 calendar days after the dat1:l of enrollment or within 30 days of an employee's assignment to 
the contract, whichever date is later. 

b. Federal contractors already enrolled at the time of a contract award: Employers 
enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 days or more at the time of a contract award 
must use E-Verlfy to initiate verification of employment eligibility for new hires of the Employer 
who are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract, within 3 business 
days after the date of hire. If the Employer is enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 
calendar days or less at the time of contract award, the Employer must, within 90 days of 
enrollment, begin to use E-Verlfy to initiate verification of new hires of the contractor who are 
working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract. Such verification of new 
hires must be initiated within 3 business days after the date of hire. An Employer enrolled as a 
Federal contractor in E-Verlfy must initiate verification of each employee assigned to the 

Page 6 of 13/E-Verify MOU for Employe~Revision Date 10/29/08 

69 



Company ID Number: 199387 

contract within 90 calendar days after date of contract award or within 30 days after assignment 
to the contract, whichever is later. 

c. Institutions of higher education, State, local and tribal governments and sureties: 
Federal contractors that are institutions of higher education (as defined at 20 U.S.C. 1001(a)), 
State or local governments, governments of Federally recognized Indian tribes, or sureties 
performing under a takeover agreement entered into with a Federal agency pursuant to a 
performance bond may choose to only verify new and existing employees assigned to the 
Federal contract. Such Federal contractors may, however, elect to verify all new hires, and/or 
all existing employees hired after November 6, 1986. The provisions of Article 11.D, paragraphs 
1.a and 1.b of this MOU providing timeframes for initiating employment verification of employees 
assigned to a contract apply to such institutions of higher education, State, local and tribal 
governments, and sureties. 

d. Verification of all employees: Upon enrollment, Employers who are Federal 
contractors may elect to verify employment eligibility of all existing employees working in the 
United States who were hired after November 6, 1986, Instead of verifying only those 
employees assigned to a covered Federal contract. After enrollment, Employers must elect to 
do so only in the manner designated by DHS and initiate E-Verify verification of all existing 
employees within 180 days after the election. 

e. Form 1-9 procedures for Federal contractors: The Employer may use a 
previously completed Form 1-9 as the basis for initiating E-Verify verification of an employee 
assigned to a contract as long as that Form 1-9 is complete (including the SSN}. complies with 
Article 11.C.5, the employee's work authorization has not expired, and the Employer has 
reviewed the information reflected in the Form 1-9 either in person or in communications with the 
employee to ensure that the employee's stated basis in section 1 of the Form 1-9 for work 
authorization has not changed (including. but not limited to, a lawful permanent resident alien 
having become a naturalized U.S. citizen). If the Employer is unable to determine that the Form 
1-9 complies with Article 11.C.5, if the employee's basis for work authorization as attested in 
section 1 has expired or changed, or if the Form 1-9 contains no SSN or is otherwise incomplete, 
the Employer shall complete a new 1-9 consistent with Article 11.C.5, or update the previous 1-9 
to provjde the necessary information. If se~tion 1 of the Form 1-9 is otherwise valid and up-to
date and the form otherwise complies with Article 11.C.5, but refleGts documehtation (such as a 
U.S. passport or Form 1-551) that expired subsequent to completion of the Form 1-9, the 
Employer shall not require the production of additional doclimentation, or use the photo 
screening tool described in Article 11.C.5, subject to any additional or superseding instructions 
that may be provided on this subject in the E-Verlfy User Manual. Nothing in this section shall 
be construed to require a second verification using E-Verify of any assigned employee who has 
previously been verified as a newly hired employee under this MOU, or to authorize verification 
of any existing employee by any Employer that is not a Federal contractor. 

2. The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, its compliance with this MOU 
is a performance requirement under the terms of the Federal contract or subcontract. and the 
Employer consents to the release of information relating to compliance with its verification 
responsibilities under this MOU to contracting officers or other officials authorized to review the 
Employer's compliance with Federal contracting requirements. 

Page 7 of 13jE-Veriiy MOU For EmployerlRevision Date 10129108 

70 



•.... ..... 
-, ; 

1 i ~ . erl y. 1
\ \ , ... fr \ ,,~!I~/ 

- ·------· · .. Ol n·,,AaBR<'<'S'1SOH, 

Company ID Number: 199387 

ARTICLE Ill 

REFERRAL OF INDIVIDUALS TO SSA AND OHS 

A. REFERRAL TO SSA 

1. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by SSA, the Employer must 
print the tentative nonconfirmation notice as directed by the automated system and provide it to 
the employee so that the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
non confirmation. 

2. The Employer will refer employees to SSA field offices only as directed by the 
automated system based on a tentative nonconfirmation, and only after the Employer records 
the case verification number, reviews the input to detect any transaction errors, and determines 
that the employee contests the tentative nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social 
Security Number to SSA for verification again if this review Indicates a need to do so. The 
Employer will determine whether the employee contests the tentative nonconfirrnation as soon 
as possible after the Employer receives it. 

3. If the employee contests an SSA tentative nonconfirmation, the Employer will provide 
the employee with a system-generated referral letter and instruct the employee to visit an SSA 
office within 8 Federal Government work days. SSA will electronically transmit the result of the 
referral to the Employer within 1 O Federal Government work days of the referral unless it 
determines that more than 10 days is necessary. The Employer agrees to check the E-Verify 
system regularly for case updates. 

4. The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the Social 
Security Number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the Social Security 
Number from the SSA. 

8. REFERRAL TO OHS 

1. If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by OHS, the Employer must 
print the tentative nonconfirmation notice as directed by the automated system and provide it to 
the employee so that the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation. 

2. If the Employer finds a photo non-match for an employee who provides a document for 
which the automated system has transmitted a photo, the employer must print the photo non
match tentative nonconfirmation notice as directed by the automated system and provide it to 
the employee so that the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the finding. 

3. The Employer agrees to refer individuals to OHS only when the employee chooses to 
contest a tentative nonconfirmation received from OHS automated verification process or when 
the Employer issues a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo non-match. The Employer 
will determine whether the employee contests the tentative nonconfirmation as soon as possible 

Page 8 of 13IE-Verify MOU for ErnployerjRevision Date 10/29/08 

71 



8
,.,,. ~-,·~·-.,.. 

-, _:i 9. ;~~-. - er1 Y ltJ. ~ \ ... 1111@ ,J -.;.'-=Ll: ··, n.1-t"" 
, .. ----· · "'"" ',. A tr.,vrc• o,o,., 

Company ID Number: 199387 

after the Employer receives it. 

4. If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by OHS, the Employer will 
provide the employee with a referral letter and instruct the employee to contact OHS through its 
toll-free hotline (as found on the referral letter) within 8 Federal Government work days. 

5. If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo non-match, the 
Employer will provide the employee with a referral letter to DHS. OHS will electronically transmit 
the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal Government work days of the referral 
unless it determines that more than 1 O days is necessary. The Employer agrees to check the E
Verify system regularly for case updates. 

6. The Employer agrees that if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based 
upon a photo non-match, the Employer will send a copy of the employee's Form 1-551 or Form 
I-766 to DHS for review by: 

• Scanning and uploading the document, or 
• Sending a photocopy of the document by an express mail account (furnished and paid 

for by DHS). 

7. The Employer understands that if it cannot detennine whether there is a photo 
match/non-match, the Employer is required to forward the employee's documentation to OHS by 
scanning and uploading , or by sending the document as described in the preceding paragraph, 
and resolving the case as specified by the Immigration Services Verifier at OHS who will 
determine the photo match or non-match. 

ARTICLE IV 

SERVICE PROVISIONS 

SSA and OHS will not charge the Employer for verification services performed under this MOU. 
The Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make inquiries. To access the 
E-Verify System, an Employer will need a personal computer with Internet access. 

ARTICLE V 

PARTIES 

A This MOU is effective upon the signature of all parties, and shall continue in effect for as 
long as the SSA and OHS conduct the E-Verify program unless modified in writing by the mutual 
consent of all parties, or terminated by any party upon 30 days prior written notice to the others. 
Any and all system enhancements to the E-Verify pro.gram by OHS or SSA, including but not 
limited to the E-Verify checking against additional data sources and instituting new verification 
procedures, will be covered under this MOU and will not cause the need for a supplemental 
MOU that outlines these changes. OHS agrees to train employers on all changes made to E
Verify through the use of mandatory refresher tutorials and updates to the E-Verify User 
Manual. Even without changes to E-Verify, OHS reserves the r:ight to require employers to take 

Page 9 of ·t3JE-Verify MOU for EmployerlRevision Oaie 10/29108 

72 



Company ID Number: 199387 

mandatory refresher tutorials. An Employer that is a Federal contractor may terminate this 
MOU when the Federal contract that requires its participation in E-Verify is terminated or 
completed. In such a circumstance, the Federal contractor must provide written notice to DHS. 
If an Employer that is a Federal contractor fails to provide such notice, that Employer will remain 
a participant in the E-Verify program, will remain bound by the terms of this MOU that apply to 
non-Federal contractor participants, and will be required to use the E-Verlfy procedures to verify 
the employment eligibility of all newly hired employees. 

B. Notwithstanding Article V, part A of this MOU, OHS may terminate this MOU if deemed 
necessary because of the requirements of law or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or 
OHS that there has been a breach of system integrity or security by the Employer, or a failure 
on the part of the Employer to comply with establlshed procedures or legal requirements. The 
Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, termination of this MOU by any party for 
any reason may negatively affect its performance of its contractual responsibilities. 

C. Some or all SSA and OHS responsibilities under this MOU may be performed by 
contractor(s), and SSA and OHS may adjust verification responsibilities between each other as 
they may determine necessary. By separate agreement with OHS, SSA has agreed to perform 
its responsibilities as described in this MOU. 

D. Nothing in this MOU is intended, or should be construed, to create any right or benefit, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law by any third party against the United States, its 
agencies, officers, or employees, or against the Employer, its agents, officers, or employees. 

E. Each party shall be solely responsible for defending any claim or action against it arising 
out of or related to E-Verify or this MOU, whether civil or criminal, and for any liability 
wherefrom, including (but not limited to) any dispute between the Employer and any other 
person or entity regarding the app.licability of Section 403(d) of ff RIRA to any action taken or 
allegedly taken by the Employer. 

F. The Employer understands that the fact of Its participation in E-Verify is not confidential 
information and may be disclosed as authorized or required by law and OHS or SSA policy, 
including but not limited to, Congressional oversight, E-Verify publicity and media inquiries, 
determinations of compliance with Federal contractual requirements, and responses to inquiries 
under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). 

G. The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between OHS and the 
Employer. 

H. The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to 
enter into this MOU on behalf of the Employer and OHS respectively. 

Page 10 of 13!E-Verify MOU for Employer!Revision Date 10/29108 

73 



Company ID Number: 199387 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section 
of the signature page. If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 888-464-4218. 

Employer SAK Construction LLC 

~ ela Hirtz 
Name {Please Type or Print) 

Electronically Signed 
Signature 

Department of Homeland Security - Verification OJvislon 

USCIS Verification Division 
Name (Please Type or Print) 

Electronically_ Signed 
Signature ~~----------

Page 11 of 131E-Vertfy MOU for EmployerlRevision Oate 10129100 

74 

Title 

03/19/2009 
Date 

Title 

03/19/2009 
Date 



-'~e,1·fv,,. . i ~t . v• ,7 ... --------------------C·VAjl,lt't t~ 1, !E!WIC1. OF DIIS 
Company ID Number: 199387 

----·-----------------------------Information Required for the E-Verify Program 

Information relating to your Company: 

Company Name: SAK Construction LLC 

Company Facility Address: 103 N Cool Springs Rd. ------=---=-------------- - - ---- ---
OFallon, MO 63366 

Company Alternate 
Address: -----------

County or Parish:_S_A_I_N_T_C_r-_JA_R_L_E_s ____________________ _ 

Employer Identification 
Number: 204193988 

North American Industry 
Classification Systems 

Code: _2_3_7 _______ _ 

Parent Company: ____ ____________ ___ ---- ----

Number of Employees:_2_D_t_o_9_9 _ _ ______________ _ 

Number of Sites Verified 
for: 2 ----------- - ---

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in 
each State: 

• 
• 

ARIZONA 
MISSOURI 

1 sil.e{s) 
1 site(s) 

Page 12 of 13fE-Verify MOU for Employer!Revision Dale 10/29/08 

75 



~~ -,."""' ':·,~ 

-' 1er1-fy. ;• ~~i , v• --------------------1:.·vt.Jllrt a-,· 1- 1'1:-T,Vli:-"" OT ll!tg. 
Company ID Number: 199387 

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or 
operational probfems: 

Name: Angela Hirtz 
Telephone Number: (636) 379 • 2360 ext. 20 Fax Number: (636) 41 O - 7711 
E-mail Address: ahirtz@sakconst.com 

Page 13 of 13/E-Verify MOU forEmployel"IRevision Dale 10/29/06 ',.f ·1'J'.'1 .Ii! J'.:, .1:J ()\1 /i·· \/ ~ri j ·; 

76 



Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Give Form to the 

(Rev. November 2017) Identification Number and Certification requester. Do not 
Department or the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Service .,. Go to www.irs.gov/FormW9 for instructions and the latest information. 

send to the IRS. 

1 ~ams (as shown on your income tax relum). Name Is required on !his line; do not leave this line blank. 

SAK Construction. LLC 
2 Business narne/dlsrega(ded enllty name, if different from above 

C') 
3 Check appropriate box for federal lax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to 

Ql 

i following seven boxes. certain entities, not individuals; see 
a. 

0 S Corporation D Partnership D Trust/estate 
instructions on page 3): 

C D Individual/sole proprietor or 0 G Corporation 
0 

• U) single-member LLC Exempt payee code Qt any) OJ C: a. 0 [Z] Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=G corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) .,.. p l':C:: u .. ::, Note: Check the appropriate box In tho fine above lor the ta,c classiflcallon or the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting 2~ LLC II the LLC ls 9fassified as a single-mwnbef LLC that Is disregarded from lhe owner unless the owner of the LLC is code Qf any) .E c: another LLC thatfs not disregarded from the owner for U.S. ledetal tax purposes. Olherwlse, a single-member LLC that 
d: ~ Is disregarded from the owner should check lhe appropriate box for the tax crass_mcallon of its owner. I;: ·u D Other (see instructions).,.. (llppllss lo ac;co1mts mainfeined outside lhe U.S.) 

Ql 

i 5 Address (number, street, and apl or suite no.) See instruc!lons. Requester's name and address (optional) 
Q) 

864 Hoff Road Q) 
U) 

6 City, state, and ZIP code 

O'Fallon, MO 63366 
7 List account number(s) here {optional) 

ma Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
I Soclal security number I Enter you~ TIN in_ the app:oprl.ate box. "!h~ TIN provided must_ match the name given on line 1 to avoid 

backup withholding. For mdlv,duals, this 1s generally your social security number (SSN). However, for·a DI] OJ I I l l I 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instruc\ions for Part I, later. For other - -
entitles, It is your employer identification number (EIN). It you do not have a number, see How to gel a . . . . . 

TIN, later. rco=r--:,---c--,--=--.---,-----, 
Note: If the account Is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and I Employer Identification number 
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter. 

20 -4193988 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that: 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and 
2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been noUfied by the Internal Revenue 

Service (IRS) that I am sublect to backup withholding as a result of a failure lo report all Interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person {defined below); and 

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct. 

Certification Instructions. You must cross out item 2 above If you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding beoause 
you have la/led to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2·does not apply. For mortgage inleresl paid, 
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions lo an lndMdual reHremenl arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments 
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certillcallon, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for P.art II, later. 

Sign 
Here 

Signature of 
U.S. person "" 

General Instructions 
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise 
noted. 

Future developments. For the latest information about developments 
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted 
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormW9. 

Purpose of Form 
An Individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an 
Information return wlth the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer 
ldentlfication number (TIN} which may be your soci,11 security number 
(SSN), individual taxpayer Identification number (ITIN), adoption 
taJ<payer identifioatlon number (ATIN}, or employer identification number 
(EIN), to report on an lnformation return the amount paid to you, or other 
amount reportable on an In formation return. Examples of information 
returns lnc'lude, but are not limited to, the following. 
• Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid} 

Cat. No. 10231 X 
77 

Date"" .).., .),g' 

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual 
funds) 

• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross 
proceeds) 
• Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other 
transactions by brokers) 
• Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions) 
• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions) 
• Form 1098 (home mortgage Interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 
1098-T (tuition) 
• Form 1099-C (canceled debt) 
• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property) 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident 
aUen), to provide your correct TIN. 

If you do not return Form W-9 lo the requester with a TIN, you might 
be subject to backup wllhholding. See What Is backup withholding, 
later. 

Form W-9 (Rev. 11 ·2017) 



CITY OF BELTON 
520 Main Street 

Belton, MO 64012 
(816) 331-4331 

Fax (816) 331-6973 

INVITATION TO BID NO: 18-002/660-0000-495-7300 
30", 27", AND 18" INTERCEPTOR LINING 

FEBRUARY 8, 2018 

Bidders on Bid No: 18-002/660-0000-495-7300 are hereby notified that the following addenda are made to 
the Project Contract Documents. Bids to be submitted on February 21, 2018 shall conform to these 
addenda and receipt of this Addendwn shall be through Drexel Technologies and acknowledged by 
attaching the addenda to the Bid package. This addendum adds, changes, or clarifies the following: 

1. Construction Service Agreement Article 3 - Period of Service 
Remove: The CONTRACTOR is allowed 100 calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed to 
complete all work and reach Final Completion. 

Add: The CONTRACTOR is allowed 200 calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed to 
complete all work and reach Final Completion. 

2. Question as to whether liner thicknesses specified are nominal, post cure, or if bidders can design and 
determine the thickness using ASTM 1216 and submit design with the stamp of a Professional 
Engineer. 
The liner thicknesses are to be 15mm nominal for the 27" and 30" portions of the interceptor and 9mm 
nominal for the 18" portion of the interceptor. 

3. Clarification for bypass pumping. If bypass pumping occurs outside of the work hours specified in the 
contract, bidder will have constant surveillance to ensure no sanitary sewer overflows occur. 

4. As requested by bidders, sign-in sheet from Pre-Bid meeting is attached. 

5. As requested by bidders, flow data from 2017 is attached. 

78 



--.I 
~ 

30", 27", and 18" Interceptor Lining 
Sign-in Sheet 

Name 

J/171 h1 h:li'" J'PJ ~ H '1P /pJ/i.' 5, 

·o v,a,,, /(J : ~ r~0 

~ 7"(..vL,'f""'/ 

lrh ':J ct 
~A w Al!..b E: 6 o ~Fc~.tJ 

l.c."btf/ R ,,.j:~..r5 f/P 

t R ~ G ·,3r- o w ,_) 

<2~RY SH6-\W 

Wednesday, February 7, 2018 10AM 

Address 

17 '/ 
10e l-w,,,., , . V' 

<'.pC.D ,5"c; , 3 g -,,,-1 S-r-, 
J<A.,._,_.:r,.;._s C,7'1 , KS 

Lt:? (p / r, ;::, 

f;.o/ Pose A.. IJ Ke( , 

o ~3?:/o~ 

Phone Number 

9.:,4) 

~ - /,fl;' I 
g,;r:.- ·· Z &l~ -

77v'3 

~! k1 

3-ri--~'\(oZ 

9' 13 ~ Y Yf~ 8~/':1u 

913-{.3'/- 075"'( 

(i;36-JdJ-96&/ 

Page 1 of 2 

E-mail 

J j 1' le.. 'SS /I rJ]) fO (!3 (' i'c -WI y11J , L" O .W, 
~ (3. t'/~ / Pl? , e,.p.' 

I . o /71 c.e,-va-~ 

d v,r...@ blue.NIie t~.,~c 1c:f'.5-I ColY'v 

3r·C'5, b l'·,.,u;;,, e 5 .... ,,,_{,,,,:Jf 

.- c., +.; { .5 ' C,'.o 

c~H~w <e.Sf\l( <20~.coff\ 



There have been peak storm flow rates in excess of 7 .0 MG with the highest being 11. 7 4. 

January February March 

Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain 

0.770 0.0 0.899 0.0 0.749 0,0 

2 0.850 0.0 2 0.942 0.0 2 0.734 0.0 

3 0.802 0.0 3 0.744 0.0 3 0.721 0.0 

4 0.781 0.0 4 0.510 0.0 4 0.714 0.0 

5 0.727 0.1 5 0.916 0.0 5 0.725 0.0 

6 0.752 0.0 6 0.867 0.0 6 0.699 0.3 

7 0.727 0.0 7 0.854 0.0 7 0.699 0.0 

8 0.839 0.0 8 1.059 0.0 8 0.701 0.0 

9 0.799 00 9 0.850 0.0 9 0.703 0.0 

10 0.799 0.0 10 0.839 0.0 10 0.705 0.0 

II 0.757 0.0 11 0.871 0.0 11 0.708 0.0 

12 0.765 0.0 12 0.873 0.0 12 0.714 0.0 

13 0.776 0.1 13 0.847 0.0 13 0.549 0.0 

14 0.809 0.1 14 0.839 0.0 14 0.554 0.1 

15 0.953 0.1 15 0.800 0.0 15 0.472 0.0 

16 1.286 0.6 16 0.790 0.0 16 0.560 0.0 

17 0.999 0.0 17 0.800 0.0 17 0.684 0.0 

18 0.942 0.0 18 0.870 0.0 18 0.589 0.0 

19 0.904 0.0 19 0.870 0.0 19 0.599 0.0 

20 0.872 0.0 20 0.850 0.0 20 0.646 0.0 

21 0.904 0.1 21 0.770 0.0 21 0.774 0.0 

22 1.022 0.0 22 0.779 0.0 22 1.396 0.0 

23 0.925 0.0 23 0.769 0.0 23 0.787 0.0 

24 0.910 0.0 24 0.755 0.1 24 0.691 0.1 

25 0.908 0.0 25 0.750 0.0 25 0.700 0.1 

26 0.921 0.0 26 0.770 0.0 26 0.770 0.2 

27 0.875 0.0 27 0.742 0.0 27 1.000 0.0 

28 0.930 0.0 28 0.741 0.5 28 0.977 0.6 

29 0.959 0.0 29 1.872 0.2 

30 0.913 0.0 30 1.278 0.1 

31 0.910 0.0 31 1.105 0.0 

80 



April May June 

Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain 

0.991 0.1 3.942 0.0 1.743 0.0 

2 0.992 0.3 2 2.639 0.2 2 1.580 0.0 

3 1.578 0.3 3 3.277 0.6 3 1.529 0.1 

4 1.446 1.2 4 3.279 0.0 4 1.553 0.0 

5 3.700 0.1 5 2.537 0.0 5 1.463 0.0 

6 2.075 0.0 6 1.870 0.0 6 1.351 0.0 

7 1.563 0.0 7 1.514 0.0 7 1.286 0.0 

8 1.231 0.0 8 1.439 0.0 8 1.232 0.0 

9 1.168 0.0 9 1.334 0.0 9 1.230 0.0 

10 1.352 0.0 IO 1.406 0.3 10 1.271 0.0 

11 1.095 0.0 11 1.613 0.0 11 1.277 0.0 

12 1.053 0.0 12 1.388 0.0 12 1.196 0.0 

13 0.979 0.0 13 1.395 0.0 13 1.167 0.0 

14 0.906 0.1 14 1.414 0.0 14 1.156 0.3 

15 0.914 0.2 15 1.450 0.0 15 1.173 0.0 

16 1.669 0.9 16 1.395 0.1 16 1.088 1.2 

17 1.277 0.0 17 1.367 0.0 17 1.821 0.6 

18 1.098 0.0 18 1.372 1.6 18 1.409 0.0 

19 1.027 0.1 19 2.965 1.3 19 1.187 0.0 

20 1.027 0.0 20 3.006 0.0 20 1.154 0.0 

21 1.003 0.0 21 2.002 0.0 21 1.166 0.0 

22 0.932 0.1 22 1.747 0.1 22 1.149 0.0 

23 0.997 0.0 23 1.647 0.1 23 l.505 0.1 

24 0.928 0.0 24 1.735 0.0 24 1.024 0.0 

25 0.981 0.5 25 1.682 0.1 25 1.058 0.0 

26 1.279 0.1 26 1.659 0.0 26 1.032 0.0 

27 0.985 0.2 27 2.197 1.1 27 1.052 0.0 

28 1.248 0.4 28 2.046 0.0 28 1.073 0.0 

29 4.327 3.4 29 1.815 0.0 29 1.334 3.2 

30 7.626 0.4 30 1.612 0.3 30 3.680 0.0 

31 1.689 0.2 

81 



July August September 

Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain 

1.744 0.0 1.454 0.0 1.422 0.0 

2 1.428 0.0 2 1.457 0.0 2 1.421 0.0 

3 1.323 0.0 3 1.416 0.0 3 1.412 0.0 

4 1.746 0.5 4 1.269 0.0 4 1.463 0.0 

5 1.640 0.1 5 1.623 3.1 5 1.303 0.0 

6 1.657 0.0 6 5.761 0.9 6 1.259 0.0 

7 1.560 0.0 7 2.530 0.0 7 1.250 0.0 

8 1.319 0.0 8 1.903 0.0 8 1.627 

9 1.371 0.0 9 1.749 0.2 9 1.256 0.0 

10 1.335 0.0 10 1.659 0.0 10 1.298 0.0 

11 1.321 0.0 11 1.562 0.0 11 1.237 0.0 

12 1.300 0.1 12 1.500 0.0 12 1.148 0.0 

13 1.245 0.7 13 1.520 0.0 13 1.163 0.0 

14 1.370 0.0 14 1.471 0.0 14 1.150 0.0 

IS 1.221 00 IS 1.047 0.8 15 1.138 0.0 

16 1.183 0.0 16 1.796 0.3 16 1.153 2.1 

17 1.144 0.0 17 1.723 0.0 17 2.376 0.2 

18 1.105 0.0 18 1.492 0.0 18 1.664 0.3 

19 1.112 0.0 19 1.478 0.0 19 1.487 0.0 

20 1.133 0.0 20 1.495 0.0 20 1.466 0.0 

21 1.113 0.0 21 1.640 6.1 21 1.414 0.0 

22 1.146 1.6 22 7.890 0.0 22 1.254 0.0 

23 2.078 0.0 23 3.833 0.0 23 1.244 0.0 

24 1.105 0.0 24 3.890 0.0 24 1.264 0.0 

25 1.057 0.0 25 1.994 0.0 25 1.198 0.2 

26 1.105 0.3 26 1.708 0.0 26 1.301 0.1 

27 6.325 7.0 27 1.800 0.4 27 1.185 0.0 

28 3.263 0.0 28 1.678 0.0 28 1.123 0.0 

29 1.896 0.0 29 1.544 0.0 29 1.092 0.0 

30 1.673 0.0 30 1.427 0.0 30 1.099 0.0 

31 1.536 0.0 31 1.762 0.0 

82 



October November December 

Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain Date Flow,MGD Rain 

1.122 0.0 1.386 0.0 1.097 0.0 

2 1.138 0.0 2 1.360 0.0 2 1.098 0.0 

3 1.129 0.0 3 1.315 0.0 3 1.175 0.0 

4 2.149 1.8 4 1.328 0.0 4 1.129 0.0 

5 2.767 0.1 5 1.376 0.0 5 1.051 0.0 

6 1.865 0.7 6 1.318 0.0 6 1.043 0.0 

7 2.574 0 ,0 7 1.280 0.0 7 1.037 0.0 

8 1.876 0.0 8 1.277 0.0 8 1.043 0.0 

9 1.586 0.3 9 1.277 0.0 9 1.058 0.0 

10 1.656 0.1 10 1.253 0.0 10 1.074 0.0 

11 1.460 0.0 11 1.311 0.2 11 1.073 0.0 

12 1.409 0.0 12 1.394 0.0 12 1.003 0.0 

13 1.391 0.0 13 1.281 0.0 13 1.054 0.0 

14 1.502 0.7 14 1.285 0.2 14 1.016 0.0 

15 1.775 0.0 15 1.234 0.0 15 1.020 0.0 

16 1.812 0.0 16 1.123 0.0 16 1.053 0.3 

17 1 327 0.0 17 1.254 0.0 17 1.228 0.0 

18 1.322 0.0 18 1.290 0.0 18 1.104 0.0 

19 1.296 0.0 19 1.352 0.0 19 1.063 0.0 

20 0.776 0.0 20 1.256 0.0 20 1.036 0.0 

21 1.138 1.5 21 1.177 0.0 21 1.061 0.0 

22 4.787 0.0 22 1.148 0.0 22 1.027 0.0 

23 2.497 0.0 23 1.232 0.0 23 1.053 0.1 

24 1.889 0.0 24 1.178 0.0 24 1.070 0.0 

25 2.057 0.0 25 1.146 0.0 25 1.060 0.0 

26 1.562 0.0 26 1.183 0.0 26 1.044 0.0 

27 1.448 0.0 27 1.153 0.0 27 0.995 0.0 

28 1.436 0.0 28 1.160 0.0 28 1.028 0.0 

29 1.463 0.0 29 1.106 0.0 29 1.022 0.0 

30 1.417 0.0 30 1.105 0.0 30 1.029 0,0 

31 1.334 0.0 31 1.054 0.0 

83 



SECTION VI 
E 

84 



BILL NO. 2018-14 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI THROUGH ITS FIRE DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR MEDICAL DIRECTOR SERVICES 
WITH DR. ERIK J. STAMPER, D.O. 

WHEREAS, state regulations require the services of a qualified Medical Director to participate 

in protocol reviews, training and equipment utilization for the ambulance services that provide 

basic and advanced life support services; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated in this Ordinance as Exhibit "A" 

has been negotiated with a new Medical Director to comply with state standards and to include an 
annual reimbursement for those professional services; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Erik J. Stamper, D. 0. has been performing these services for the Fire 
Department and has been doing an excellent job as the Medical Director to support the advanced 
life support ambulance services of the Belton Fire Department; and 

WHEREAS, the funding source for this agreement is the Belton Fire Department operating budget 
for contract services in the amount of $10,000.00. The funding is included in the current FY-19 

year's budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the City Council hereby authorizes and approves the Professional Services 

Agreement for Medical Director, herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit A to this ordinance. 

Section 2. That the Mayor is authorized to sign the agreement on behalf of the City of Belton. 

Section 3. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage 

and approval. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: March 13, 2018 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

85 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



Approved this_day of ___ _. 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 

COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 

meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March, 2018, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2018-__ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council 
held on the __ day of , 2018, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to
wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 

of the City of Belton, Missouri 

86 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR MEDICAL DIRECTOR 

EXHIBIT A 

This is an Agreement by and between the City of Belton, a municipal corporation and charter 
city, and Dr. Erik J. Stamper D. 0. to serve as the Medical Director for the Advanced Life 
Support Ambulance Service of the Belton Fire Department. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 19 Missouri Code of State Regulations 30-40.303 all ambulance 
services in the State of Missouri shall have a Medical Director. Medical Directors are required to 
be board certified in emergency medicine, family practice, internal medicine or surgery. 

WHEREAS, the Medical Director shall have current certification in Advance Cardiac Life 
Support and Pediatric Advance Life Support. 

WHEREAS, Dr. Erik J. Stamper, D. 0. is willing to perform the Medical Director services and is 
board certified in Emergency Medicine and registered as a Physician and Surgeon in the State of 
Missouri. (See Attachments 1 and 2 - certificate and registration.) 

WHEREAS, ambulance services that provide advanced life support (hereinafter ALS) services, 
basic life support services utilizing medications (medications include, but are not limited to, 
activated charcoal, oral glucose and/or oxygen) or providing assistance with patients 
medications (patient medications include, but are not limited, to a prescribed inhaler, 
nitroglycerin and/or epinephrine), or basic life support services performing invasive procedures 
including invasive airway procedures (invasive aiiway procedures include, but are not limited to, 
esophageal or endotracheal intubation) shall comply with state regulations as follows: 

(A) Each licensed ambulance service which provides ALS care shall have a medical director 
who is licensed as a doctor of medicine or a doctor of osteopathy by the Missouri State 
Board of Registration for the Healing Arts and who has: 
1. Board certification in emergency medicine; or 
2. Board certification or board eligibility in a primary care specialty or surgery and has 

actively practiced emergency medicine during the past year and can demonstrate 
current course completion or certification in ACLS, ATLS and PALS ( certification in 
ACLS, ATLS and PALS must be obtained no later than one (1) year after initial 
ambulance service licensure ), or documentation of equivalent education in cardiac 
care, trauma care and pediatric care within the past five (5) years; or 

3. An active practice in the community, with current course completion or certification 
in ACLS and PALS (certifications shall be obtained no later than one (1) year after 
initial ambulance service licensure ), or documented equivalent education in cardiac 
care and pediatric care within the past five (5) years who develops a written 
agreement with a physician who meets the requirements stated in (A) 1. Or (A) 2. To 
review and approve the processes required in (C), (D), and (E) in order to facilitate 
the medical direction of the ambulance service. 

87 



(B) Each licensed ambulance service which provides only BLS care shall have a medical 
director who is licensed as a doctor of medicine or a doctor of osteopathy by the Missouri 
State Board of Registration for the Healing Arts and can demonstrate current course 
completion or certification in ACLS and PALS ( certifications must be obtained no later 
than one (1) year after initial ambulance service licensure ), or can document equivalent 
education in cardiac care and pediatric care within the past five (5) years. 

It is hereby mutually agreed by the parties as follows: 

1. Dr. Erik Stamper agrees to serve as Medical Director for the Advanced Life Support 
Ambulance Service of the Belton Fire Department and the City of Belton. 

2. Dr. Erik Stamper as Medical Director, in cooperation with the Belton EMS 
Coordinator, shall develop, implement and annually review the following: 

a. Medical and treatment protocols for medical, trauma and pediatric patients; 
b. Triage and transport protocols; 
c. Protocols for do-not-resuscitate requests: 
d. Air ambulance utilization; and 
e. Medications and medical equipment to be utilized. 

3. Dr. Erik Stamper as Medical Director, in cooperation with the Belton EMS 
Coordinator, shall ensure that all licensed service personnel meet the education and 
skill competencies required for their level of license and patient care environment. 
The Medical Director shall have the authority to require additional education and 
training for any licensed service personnel who fail to meet this requirement and limit 
the patient care activities of personnel who deviate from established standards. 

4. Dr. Erik Stamper as Medical Director, in cooperation with the Belton EMS 
Coordinator, shall develop, implement and annually review the following: 

a. Prolonged ambulance scene, response or transport times; 
b. Incomplete run documentation; 
c. Ambulances that are diverted from their original destinations; 
d. Compliance with adult and pediatric triage, treatment and transport 

protocols ( or sample thereof); 
e. Skills performance ( or sample thereof); and 
f. Any other activities that the administrator or medical director deem 

necessary. 

5. The Belton Fire Department agrees to pay Dr. Erik Stamper for his services as the 
Medical Director for the Advanced Life Support Ambulance Service of the Belton 
Fire Department a fixed annual payment of $10,000.00 for services list above, 
payable in one lump sum. 

88 



6. Either party may cancel this agreement on 30 days' notice; otherwise, the agreement 
shall remain in force for a period of one year from the date April 1, 2018 (Fiscal Year 
2019). 

7. It is understood by both parties that Dr. Erik J. Stamper, D. 0. is an independent 
contractor of the Belton Fire Department and the City of Belton, Missouri. 

Dr. Erik J. Stamper, D. 0. Jeff Davis, Mayor 

Date Date 

EIN# 

89 



ID 
0 

I 
I 
! 
' 

' OfE!~ rt~
1

t===i"'.,·. i .. 
1
-1 ~ I ~0 -< z ' ,$ 

l<C.\~.' i ~/. 
V /? · 
~~~0 ''1'~ fl) 

American Board of 
Emergency MecHcf ne 

;i . 

~ 

J 

I 
I 
I 

i 

I 
I 

I 
I 

American Board of Emergency Medicine 

Established for the Certification of Emergency Physicians Hereby 
Declares that 

X1UX ]. ST'.'A2vl.P'E1{, 1J.O. 

Has Successfully Fulfilled the Certification Requirements and is 
Declared a Diplomate of the American Board of Em.ergency Medicine 

November 8, 2011- December 31, 2021 

President Ml {I/· JI.!~.. M D 

Secretary ~,,...... ~ . c:er~ /'I'" .. 0. 

Certification Number 50101 -----------

-:- _._ ... ' .. ........ ·::~£ ..... :;:;;6@.s:'% 



I.O 
I-' 

~ "·iit:e of ~ iz5 a.u- ... 
(t1 ;\.. .. :r, 

Department of Insurance. Financial Institutions and Professional Registration 
Division of Professional Registration 

Missouri State Board of Registration for the ·Healing Arts 

Physic~~~1!ffd~~.t;t.rgeo n 
· · ~· "~ -~·· . ,-v .. :: •. 

~ ·«-'LJ;li < .•'il-'"> 
I --.~ _::...l • , : .""'\. r~ '<J"f-~--l~'. ..... 

~ -..'.&_";~4~,, l ' 
( "---..,.;:t s ~ ij ·'0}./ ,' \ ff~·~Jk_ l 

VALID THROUGH JANUARY 31~~~),\/ ~~rt.J...;._:tc/ 
ORIGINAL CERT1FICATE/UCENSE_,_~..,~~~~1]?J,j~, 

.,--,ru-st,,,, .. , 
ERIKJOSEPHSTAMPER.DO ''Ut' o!'{' l'.:-- J)ll\.l.L Q~ 
RESEARCH EMERGENCY DPT EX UTIVE DIRECTOR 
2316 EAST MEYER BLVD 

~CITYMO 64132 ~ ~ 
DIV I RECTO 

.... 



SECTION VI · 
F 

.. 

92 ... 



BILL NO. 2018-15 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE PROPOSED J?ISCAL YEAR 2019 CITY BUDGET, 
AS REVISED, AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS FROM THE REVENUES OF THE CITY. 

WHEREAS, Section 12.5 of the Charter of the City of Belton, Missouri requires the City Council 
to adopt a budget for the city on or before the last day of the month of the fiscal year currently 
ending for the next fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Finance published the public hearing notice in the Cass County 
Democrat Missourian on January 26, 2018, stating the times and places where copies of the 
message and budget are available for inspection by the public and the date and time of the public 
hearing before the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the public hearing before the City Council was held February 3, 2018 at 7:00pm. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the annual budget of the City of Belton, Missouri for the fiscal year beginning 

April 1, 2018 and ending March 31, 2019, as submitted by the City Manager on January 9, 2018 

and as revised by the City Council, is hereby approved. 

Section 2. That all budgeted revenues in excess of budgeted expenses in any fund be appropriated 

to the fund' s Rainy Day budgetary line item. 

Section 3. That any future budget amendments shall be approved by ordinance of the Council. 

Section 4. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

approval. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: March 13, 2018 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME: 

Approved this __ day of. _____ , 2018. 

93 

Mayor, Jeff Davis 

Mayor, Jeff Davis 



ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for the first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March, 2018, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2018 of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on the day of , 2018, after the second reading thereof by the 
following: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
Of the City of Belton, Missouri 

94 



SECTION VI 
G 

95 



BILL NO. 2018-16 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE PARTICIPATING COURSE AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CLUB MEMBERSIDP, LLC FOR INDIVIDUAL AND CORPORATE CLUB 
MEMBERSIDP BENEFITS AT THE EAGLES' LANDING GOLF COURSE. 

WHEREAS, the Club Membership program allows its' members access to participating courses 
around the KC Metro for a small monthly membership fee; and 

WHEREAS, the participating courses are paid a portion of the collected monthly membership 
fees and in exchange, allow the Club Membership members to play at a reduced rate; and 

WHEREAS, Eagles' Landing has been a participating course in the Club Membership program 
since 2013 when the City Council approved the participating club agreement; and 

WHEREAS, participation in the Club Membership program has been and continues to be 
financially beneficial to Eagles' Landing and the City of Belton; and 

WHEREAS, this Participating Course Agreement has been updated and will replace the current 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes this agreement is beneficial to the citizens of Belton by 
promoting the public course and economic development activities. 

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the Participating Course Agreement, herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit 
A to this Ordinance, is hereby approved. 

Section 2. That the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the 
City. 

Section 3. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 

Section 4. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: March 13, 2018 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Approved this_ day of _____ • 2018. 

96 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March. 2018, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2018-__ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council 
held on the __ day of , 2018, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, 

to-wit: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

COUNCILMEN: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

97 



EXHIBIT 

PARTICIPATING COURSE AGREEMENT 

TIDS PARTICIPATING COURSE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into 
by and between THE CLUB MEMBERSHIP LLC ("TCM"), a Kansas limited liability company, 
and the City of Belton, Missouri d/b/a Eagles' Landing Golf Course ("Course"), a constitutional 
charter city organized and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri, operating in the 
Kansas City market (the "Market"). TCM and Course (individually "Party" or collectively 
"Parties") hereby agree to the following terms and conditions, and those set forth in any 
exhibit(s) or amendment(s) attached hereto, or as may be mutually agreed upon in a separate 
writing(s) and attached hereto at some future date. This Agreement shall not be effective until 
executed by the Parties. This Agreement will be binding upon the successors, subsidiaries, 
affiliates, employees, officers, directors, agents, subcontractors, and legal representatives of the 
Parties. 

DEFINITIONS 

Individual Memberships to The Club Membership are those held by individual people 
in the Market. 

Corporate Memberships to The Club Membership are those held by businesses in the 
Market for use by their employees and customers. 

Monthly Membership Dues are those dues collected and recognized in equal monthly 
payments, as detailed below: 

Individual Memberships $34.99/mo 
Individual Memberships (Grandfathered) $29.99/mo 
Coroorate Memberships $149.99/mo 

Yearly Membership Dues are those dues collected in one (1) up-front yearly payment 
and recognized in twelve (12) equal monthly amounts, as detailed below: 

Individual Memberships $359.88/yr 
Corporate Memberships $1799.88/yr 

Monthly Distributable Dues are those dues available for distribution to the courses in 
the Market upon conclusion of a given calendar month, equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of: 

• Dues recognized during the month, minus 
• Credit card processing fees for dues recognized during the month, minus 
• Refunds, chargebacks, and credits issued during the month. 

Activation/Renewal/Reinstatement Fees are those additional fees collected upon 
activation renewal, and reinstatement of Individual Memberships and Corporate Memberships. 
Activation and renewal fees are equal to one monthly payment or one-twelfth (1/12) of a yearly 



payment. Reinstatement fees are equal to amounts more than one month past due on 
memberships suspended more than one month. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, TCM offers to the general public Individual Memberships and Corporate 
Memberships that allow TCM members to take advantage of discounted rates when playing at 
participating courses, and to take advantage of additional benefits with other participating 
retailers, restaurants, and service providers. 

WHEREAS, Course desires to participate in The Club Membership to take advantage of 
its network opportunities and to further enhance Course's brand and market share in the Market. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Initial Term. This agreement between TCM and Course shall remain in force for an 
initial term ending midnight on November I5\ 2019. 

2. Automatic Renewal. This agreement shall be automatically renewed for two (2) year 
terms on November 1st of each renewal year unless either party provides written notice of non
renewal to the other party prior to October 1st on the non-renewal year. TCM shall provide 
written notification to Course of any modifications or changes to fees or dues collected by 
September 1st of a renewal year. 

3. Payment. Course will have two (2) opportunities to earn revenue from participation in 
The Club Membership: 

(a) Monthly Distributable Dues. On the 15th day of each month during the term of this 
Agreement, Course will receive Monthly Distributable Dues proportional to the 
number of rounds played at Course by TCM members during the previous twelve 
(12) months relative to the total number of rounds played in the Market by TCM 
members during the same period. For example, if durin,g the prior twelve months 
1000 rounds were played by TCM members at Course and 6000 rounds were played 
by TCM members in the Market, Course would receive 1/6 of the Monthly 
Distributable Dues. Rounds played shall be automatically tabulated by The Club 
Membership's check-in system. 

(b) Discounted Play Fee. Each playing TCM member is required to pay a discounted 
play fee for each round played, payable directly to Course. The discounted play fee 
shall always include access to a cart. TCM members may share carts, but cart sharing 
shall not further reduce the discounted play fee. The play fee shall be $20.00 per 
TCM member per round. Corporate memberships shall not be honored during peak 
times. Peak times are defined as prior to 11 :OOam on weekends and holidays (New 



Years Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving, and 
Christmas). 

4. Course's Obligations. Course has the following obligations and duties: 

(a) Allow Members to Play. Course shall allow TCM members to play rounds of golf 
for the discounted play fee as explained in Section 3(b) above. Course shall allow 
TCM members to reserve any publicly available tee time up to no more than four (4) 
days in advance. 

(b) Check In Members. Course shall check in each TCM member using The Club 
Membership's check-in system before accepting the discounted play fee. Check in is 
necessary to ensure that memberships are valid for play, to tabulate rounds played, 
and to issue applicable member reward points. Course shall only check in TCM 
members when they are at Course and ready to play. 

(c) Promotion. Course shall allow TCM to use Course's name in promotional 
advertising and marketing of The Club Membership, including photos or other media 
materials necessary to adequately market The Club Membership. Course shall allow 
display and distribution of mutually agreed upon promotional materials to promote 
The Club Membership. Course shall encourage players to join The Club Membership 
and assist prospective members in registering as necessary. 

5. TCM's Obligations. TCM has the following obligations and duties: 

(a) Timely Payment. TCM agrees to provide Course timely payment in accordance with 
Section 3(a) of this Agreement. 

(b) Marketing. TCM agrees to create and execute marketing initiatives for The Club 
Membership in the Market. 

(c) Training. TCM agrees train Course's staff on proper use of The Club Membership's 
check-in system. Such training may be done in person or remotely as deemed 
appropriate by TCM. 

(d) Support. TCM agrees to support The Club Membership. This includes providing 
telephone-based and web-based support to courses and members, and supporting 
maintenance and development of The Club Membership website and check-in 
system. 

6. Termination. In addition to its other rights hereunder, TCM and/or Course may 
terminate this agreement as a result of any of the following events: (i) any breach or 

ioo 



noncompliance by TCM and/or Course with this agreement; or, (ii) any involuntary inability or 
impossibility by Course to provide TCM members with the opportunity to play. 

7. Liability at Termination. In the event of termination, neither TCM nor Course shall 
have responsibility or liability for any loss, costs, or damage, whether direct, indirect, or 
consequential, incurred by TCM and/or Course resulting from termination. 

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with all documents referred to herein, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto. 

9. Modification. No modification of this Agreement shall be of any force or effect, unless in 
writing and signed by the parties. 

10. Severability. If any provision ofthis Agreement is held invalid, the remainder shall not 
be affected thereby if such remainder would then continue to conform to the terms and 
requirements of applicable law, and ·shall continue in full force and effect. 

11. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Missouri. 

12. Alternative Dispute Resolution. In the event that Course or TCM cannot resolve a 
dispute arising out this Agreement, and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, 
the Partjes agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation before resorting to 
arbitration, litigation or some other dispute resolution process. A written request shall be made 
by one party to the other party to initiate the resolution process. The mediation must be 
complete within forty-five ( 45) days of the date of such written request, or the Parties may 
pursue other remedies available to them at law, in equity or under this Agreement. The parties 
further agree that the Agreement shall remain in effect until such disputes are resolved or 
settled by the appropriate judicial process. 

COURSE THE CLUB MEMBERSHIP LLC 

Steven J. Miles 
Authorized Representative's Name (Please Print) Authorized Representative's Name 

Signature Signature 

Date Date 



I 

l . 

I 
l 

I 

SECTION VI 
H 

102 



BILL NO. 2018-17 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS: 42-36, RATES INSIDE THE CITY; 42-38, 
WATER RA TES FOR APPROVED WATER DISTRICTS OR LOCAL GOVERNMENTS; 
42-39, RATES FOR WATER CONSUMED OUTSIDE CITY; 42-296, SEWER SYSTEM 
USER RATES; OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI. 

WHEREAS, water rates are hereby increased by one and nine tenths percent (1.9%) to cover the 
increase in the water charges from the water source, Kansas City, Missouri in addition to 
infrastructure maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, sewer rates are hereby increased by ten and eight tenths percent (10.8%) to cover 
the increase in the sewer charges from the sewer source, Little Blue Valley Sewer District, in 
addition to infrastructure maintenance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That Section 42-36 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Section 42-36. Rates inside city. 

(a) Schedule from April 1, 2018: In all residential instances, the rate schedule for water 

use within the corporate limits beginning April 1, 2018, billing shall be as follows: 

(1) Fifteen hundred (1,500) gallons minimum-- $13.61 

(2) Debt service rate -- $6.11 

(3) Fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over--$1.0200 per one hundred (100) 

gallons of metered water. 

(b) Schedule from April 1, 2018: In all non-residential instances, the rate schedule for 

water use within the corporate limits beginning April 1, 2018, billing shall be as 

follows: 

(1) Fifteen hundred (1 ,500) gallons minimum-- $13.61 

(2) Debt service rate-- $12.36 

(3) Fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over--$1.0200 per one hundred (100) 

gallons of metered water. 

Section 2. That Section 42-38 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 

103 



Sec. 42-38. Water rates for approved water districts or local governments. 

(a) In all instances, the rates for water provided to approved water districts or other local 

government entities for resale to their own customers outside the City of Belton, 

beginning with the April 1, 2018, billing, shall be as follows: 

$0.6080 per one hundred (100) gallons 

(b) The rate established herein shall be available only to those water districts or other 

local government entities specifically approved by the City Council and shall be 

increased annually, effective April 1, 2018, by no less than the percentage of increase 

applied to retail water customers, or as otherwise changed by amendment to the City 

Code. 

Section 3. That Section 42-39 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Section 42-39. Rates for water consumed outside city. 

(a) Schedule from April 1, 2018. In all instances the rates scheduled for water provided 

by the city outside the city limits for residential household use beginning with the April 

1, 2018, billing shall be as follows: 

(1) Fifteen hundred (1,500) gallons minimum-- $15.67 

(2) Debt service rate-- $6.11 

(3) Fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over--$1.1565 per one hundred (100) 

gallons of metered water. 

(b) Schedule from April 1, 2018. In all instances the rates scheduled for water provided 

by the city outside the city limits for non-residential use beginning with the April I, 

2018, billing shall be as follows: 

(4) Fifteen hundred (1,500) gallons minimum-- $15.67 

(5) Debt service rate-- $12.36 

(6) Fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over--$1.1565 per one hundred (100) 

gallons of metered water. 

Section 4. That Section 42-296 of the Unified Development Code of the City of Belton, Missouri 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 

104 



Section 42-296. Sewer system user rates. 

(a) General. Each user or contributor shall pay for the services provided by the City of 

Belton Sewer System based on the sewer user's choice of two calculation methods. 

Each user will determine which method of calculation is best for their household. No 

sewer service shall be furnished or rendered free of charge to any person. 

(1) The volumetric method. Monthly user charges shall be based on water usage as 

determined by water meter readings during the month. 

(2) The winter average method. Monthly user charges shall be based on water usage as 

detennined by water meter readings during the month of December, January, and 

February ("test period") and be effective with cycle billings in May following the 

test period. Such average water usage thus determined shall remain the basis for 

determining the contributor's monthly sewer charge until a new average 

consumption is determined following the next test period. If a residential user or 

contributor has not established a December, January, and February average, such 

contributor's user charge shall be the mean charge of all other residential 

contributors. 

(b) Residential contributors. "Residential contributors" shall mean any contributor to the 

city's sewer collection system whose structure is exclusively used for domestic 

dwelling purposes with no more than two (2) dwelling units on each separate water 

meter. Users of a portion of a structure which portion is separately metered for water 

use and is used exclusively as a dwelling are also classified as residential contributors. 

Residential contributors shall not include the users of hotels, motels, boardinghouses, 

nursing homes, residence halls, or multi-unit residential complexes served by a 

common water meter or meters. Exceptions may include contributors with a service 

contract approved by the City Council. 

(c) Nonresidential contributors. For all contributors, including industrial, commercial, or 

multi-unit residential complexes served by a common water meter or meters, monthly 

sewer user charges shall be based on the volumetric method of calculation of water 

usage as detennined by water meter readings during the month, except as provided 

herein. 

105 



(1) If a nonresidential contributor has a consumptive use of water, or in some other 

manner uses water which is not returned to the wastewater collection system, the 

user charge for that contributor may be based on a wastewater meter( s) or separate 

water meter( s) installed and maintained at the contributor's expense and in a manner 

acceptable to the city. 

(2) Nonresidential contributors arranging temporary service for a construction site may 

choose to be charged for monthly sewer charges by either the volumetric method 

or by the winter average method allowed for residential contributors. The selection 

of a winter average sewer billing method for temporary construction site services 

shall be effective until establishment of a permanent service account but in no event 

longer than twelve (12) monthly billing periods. The selection of either option may 

not be revoked by the customer after the temporary account is established except 

as provided herein. The winter average for such temporary services shall be based 

on the average monthly water usage for all residential customers as may be 

determined from time to time by the city. The provisions of subparagraph (2) shall 

not apply to construction sites for expansions or remodeling of an existing 

permanent sewer service site. 

(d) City sewer rates: 

(1) Schedule from April 1, 2018: In all residential instances the rate schedule for 

sewer use within the corporate limits beginning with the April 1, 2018 billing 

shall be as follows: 

a. Fifteen hundred (1,500) gallons minimum-- $11.01 volumetric method/$12.44 

winter month average 

b. Debt service rate-- $15.33 

c. Volumetric method: fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over- $1.2666 

per one hundred (100) gallons of metered water. Winter month average: 

fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over- $1.3624 per one hundred (100) 

gallons of metered water based on the winter average. 

(2) Schedule from April 1, 2018: In all non-residential instances the rate schedule for 

water use within the corporate limits beginning with the April 1, 2018 billing, 

shall be as follows: 

106 



a. Fifteen hundred (1,500) gallons minimum-- $11.01 

b. Debt service rate-- $21.58 

c. Fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over-$1.2666 per one hundred (100) 

gallons of metered water. 

(3) Sewer Rates for residential contributors outside city- Schedule from April 1, 

2018: In all residential instances the rate schedule for water use outside the 

corporate limits beginning with the April 1, 2018 billing, shall be as follows: 

a. Fifteen hundred (1,500) gallons minimum-- $15.77 volumetric method/$17.56 

winter month average 

b. Debt service rate-- $15.33 

c. Volumetric method: fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over-$1.5833 per 

one hundred (100) gallons of metered water. Winter month average: fifteen 

hundred one (1,501) gallons and over-$1.7034 per one hundred (100) gallons 

of metered water. 

(4) Sewer Rates for non-residential contributors outside city- Schedule from April 1, 

2018: In all non-residential instances the rate schedule for water use outside the 

corporate limits beginning with the April 1, 2018 billing, shall be as follows: 

a. Fifteen hundred (1,500) gallons minimum-- $15.77 

b. Debt service rate-- $21.58 

c. Volumetric method: fifteen hundred one (1,501) gallons and over-$1.5833 per 

one hundred (100) gallons of metered water. Winter month average: not 

available. 

Section 5. Any and all new rates established herein shall be effective with any billing from and 
after April 1, 2018. 

Section 6. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 

Section 7. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

107 



READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: March 13, 2018 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Approved this __ day of ____ , 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March, 2018, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2018-__ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council 
held on the __ day of , 2018, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, 
to-wit: 

A YES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

108 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



SECTION VI 
I 

109 



BILL NO. 2018-18 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI, AS A PARTICIPATING 
AGENCY, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
ONE-YEAR EXTENSION INCLUDING ADDENDUM #1 ADDING AND EXP ANDING 
THE SCOPE OF WORK FOR THE CITY OF BELTON WITH SUPERIOR BOWEN 
ASPHALT COMPANY, LLC FOR THE 2017 STREET PRESERVATION PROJECT 
OVERLAY FINALIZED IN JANUARY 2018. 

WHEREAS, a quality transportation system ( streets, bridges, curbs and sidewalks) is important 

to a safe and vibrant community, and the City of Belton has been very eager to develop strategies 

to improve in this area. Staff has been working diligently to assess the system, document the 

work, and describe the needs so effective strategies can be implemented; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Peculiar, Missouri, as the coordinating agency, collected bids and 

executed an agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the Cooperative 2017 

Street Preservation Project/Overlay. The Cooperative Agreement allows for several cities in the 

region to receive bids on work each has a need for collectively while individually benefiting 

from cost savings associated with the use of economies of scale.; and 

WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance No. 2017-4374 on August 8, 2017, as a 

participating agency, authorizing and approving a Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen 

Asphalt Company, LLC for the 2017 Street Preservation Project Overlay finalized in June 2017; 

and 

WHEREAS, the budget for the 2018 Fiscal Year Street Preservation Program is $370,000.00 

that will need to be rolled over into Fiscal Year 2019 so that a larger extent of roads can be 

repaired. 

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the 

2017 Street Preservation Project Overlay is eligible in accordance with contract documents for 

one extension for a period of one year. The City of Peculiar, Missouri, as the coordinating 

agency for the Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the 

2017 Street Preservation Project Overlay, authorized on January 22, 2018 to extend the 

Cooperative Agreement until June 9, 2019 in accordance with contract documents; and 

110 



WHEREAS, to ensure all items needed for a street repair are included in addition to the scope of 

work in the form of an addendum is attached to the contract renewal. This addendum will 

include curb repair and replacement as an item in Superior Bowen's scope of work. Superior 

Bowen will hire a subcontractor for the curb repair and replacement based on bids that will be 

based on the lowest and best bidder; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes to ensure that all road repairs for the City of Belton's 

2019 Fiscal Year Street Preservation are completed for the best price currently available, that the 

one-year extension of the Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC 

for the 2017 Street Preservation Project Overlay and Addendum is beneficial to the citizens of 

Belton. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the one-year extension of the Cooperative Agreement including Addendum 
# 1 adding and expanding the scope of work for the City of Belton awarded to 
Superior Bowen Asphalt Company LLC for the 2017 Street Preservation 
Project/Overlay Program, herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit A, is 
hereby approved. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: March 13, 2018 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Approved this _day of __ , 2018. 

111 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Mayor Jeff Davis 



ATTEST: 

Patricia Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March, 2018, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2018- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City 
Council held on the day of , 2018, after the second reading thereof by the 
following vote, to-wit: 

AYES: COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

112 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: March 13, 2018 

COUNCIL: IZ! Regular Meeting 

X Ordinance D Resolution 
Agreement D Discussion 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 

DIVISION: Transportation 

D Work Session D Special Session 

D Consent Item Change Order I D Motion 
D FYI/Update Presentation ID BothReadings 

A quality transportation system (streets, bridges, curbs and sidewalks) is important to a safe and vibrant 
community, and the City of Belton has been very eager to develop strategies to improve in this area. 
Staff has been working diligently to assess the system, document the work, and describe the needs so 
effective strategies can be implemented. 

The City of Peculiar, Missouri as the coordinating agency, collected bids and executed an agreement 
with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the Cooperative 2017 Street Preservation 
Project/Overlay. The Cooperative Agreement allows for several cities in the region to receive bids on 
work each has a need for collectively while individually benefiting from cost savings associated with the 
use of economies of scale. The Council approved on August 8, 2017 via Ordinance 2017-4374 to 
participate in the Cooperative Agreement. 

The budget for the 2018 Fiscal Year Street Preservation Program is $370,000.00 which will need to be 
rolled over into Fiscal Year 2019 so that a larger extent of roads can be repaired. Due to the nature of the 
Street Preservation Program funds staff will be using existing street GO bonds to provide additional 
funding for the Street Preservation Program. 

The Cooperative Agreement in accordance with the contract documents is eligible for one extension for 
a period of one year. The City of Peculiar, Missow:i, as the coordinating agency for the Cooperative 
Agreement with Superior Bowen1 authorized on January 22, 2018 to extend the Cooperative Agreement 
until June 9, 2019 in accordance with contract documents. Staff believes to ensure that all road repairs 
for the City of Belton's 2019 Fiscal Year Street Preservation are completed for the best price currently 
available that the one-year extension of the Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt 
Company, LLC is beneficial to the citizens of Belton. 

To ensure all items needed for a street repair are included in addition to the scope of work in the form of 
an addendum is attached to the contract renewal. This addendum will include curb repair and 
replacement as an item in Superior Bowen's scope of work. Superior Bowen will hire a subcontractor 
for the curb repair and replacement based on bids that will be based on the lowest and best bidder. 

!:\Agenda Items\2018\031318\Superior Bowen Contract Extension RS 03 .13.18 MBMOK\l. Cooperative Agreement with 
Superior Bowen Extension Council Information Form RS 03 .13 .18 .doc 

113 

I 
I 



IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC 
Amount of Request/Contract: $ Not to exceed budgeted funds 
Amount Budgeted: $ NIA 
Funding Source: NIA 
Additional Funds: $ NIA 
Funding Source: NIA 
Encumbered: $ NIA 
Funds Remaining: $ NIA 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Approve an ordinance of the City of Belton, Missouri, as a participating agency, authorizing and 
approving a Cooperative Agreement one-year extension with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company LLC 
for the 2017 Street Preservation Project Overlay finalized in January 2018. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Ordinance 
Exhibit A - Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen Extension Approval Letter and Addendum -

Curb Repair and Replacement 
Ordinance 2017-4374- Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen 

!:\Agenda ltems\2018\031318\Superior Bowen Contract Extension RS 03 .13 .18 MBMOK\ 1. Cooperative Agreement with 
Superior Bowen Extension Council Information Form RS 03 .13 .18.doc 

114 



City Administrator 
Brad Ratliff 

Deputy City Clerk 
Cyndora Gauthreaux 

City Engineer 
CarlBroob 

Business Office 
Trudy Prickell 

Municipal Offices - 250 S. Main Street, Peculiar, MO 64078 
Phone: (816)779-5212 Facsimile: (816}779-1004 

January 22, 2018 

Rtihen Jen·ett 
Superim l3nffen .'\sphall l \ 1mran:· 
I ! ( 

250 l J\,fa.nche:-::ler rraffi,;\,';:[\" 
Kansas City, i\li:ssnuri t'>4 l 2 9 

Re: Contract ST 2017 -00 lA ( )ne-Year 

Extension 

Dear Mr JeY\'en, 

rhe 21)17 Strce1 Presen·atinnPw;ecL(h·erfoy, conlrac1 ST 2017-00lA .. sets to expire on 
June 9, 2()18 111 .'u.,·,;dcil",c:c' ,s.11.h the C\mtrad document::;, this l:i.mtrat.:t is eligible 
for nne extensiu.n for a period uf 1me year The City helie,·es the relationship \\ith 
Superior Bo,xcn _\sphalt C(lmpany, I ,LC has pnffcn Lo be sui;ccssfol. 

In accordance wilh om conversation. all pricing and project scope shall be approved 
through future iask agreements and with all provisions of the contract remaining in 
effect which includes a.:;phalt indexing. 

rl.1.is letter sen-es as \\Titien auihurizati,m to extend Clllltrac1 ST 2017A until June 9, 
2019 P!ea.;e ha, e Mathew sign below, acknowledging the extension as Jescrihed 
If you han an~- y_uestion,-.; regarding this matter, please contac"i me at (816) 779-2228. 

Carl M. Brooks, P.E. 
City Engineer 

EXTR ,, 'IU. - . .\.PPRU\"lm 13Y: 

~~~ Holly J.r.Mayor 

t,@J../18 
date ' 
C: John Stoltz. Public Works Manager 

~,&....-
Mathew Bowen, Vice President 

!/;);;>/!'{; 
Date 

llS 

Chief of Police 
Harry Gurin 

City Planner 
Cliff McDonald 

City Attorney 
Joe Lauber 

Parks Director 
Grant Purkey 



EXHIBIT 

Addendum #1 

Attached are the quantities to be added to the City of Belton's scope of work per the 

Cooperative 2017 Street Preservation Project/Overlay Agreement. All quantities are in addition 

to the scope of work provided for previously but will be slated for the year 2018. 

Addendum items will be accounted for before the execution of a task agreement. 

116 

ft 



Based from Pavement Overall Condition Index (OCI) Rate ONLY starting with lowest OCI 
Rated Street using Street GO Bonds (1.6 million estimated) 
OCI OCR Curb Asphalt Asphalt Asphalt 
Rate Rate Street Start End Length Ft. Length SF SY 
4.19 Poor S. Benton E 176th Street End of Road UNI 308 6776 753 
4.3 Poor S. Holmes Road 166th Street 166th Terr UNI 325 7150 795 
5.45 Poor Middleton Ave Middleton Ct End of Road N/A 106 2544 283 
5.47 Poor E 160th Terrace Richmond Ave Hinkle Ave UNI 369 8118 902 
8.98 Poor Bel-Ray Drive Jasmine Lane Greenwald Drive 53 220 6820 758 
9.27 Poor Buena Vista Ct Buena Vista Drive End of Road N/A 265 6360 707 
10.39 Poor Terry Ave E. 161 st Street E. 160th Terrace UNI 552 12144 1350 
12.22 Poor Valentine Ave E. 162nd Street End of Road UNI 479 10538 1171 
12.63 Poor Pacific Drive Pacific Circle Lacy Lane 147 552 13248 1472 
13.43 Poor E 160th Terrace Eastern Ave Oakland Ave UNI 381 8382 932 
13.43 Poor E 160th Terrace Oakland Ave Richmond Ave UNI 379 8338 927 
13.43 Poor E 160th Terrace Slater Ave Speaker Ave UNI 358 7876 875 
13.93 Poor Kimberly Drive Stacy Drive Sunset Lane 317 444 10656 1184 
14.41 Poor E 160th Terrace Speaker Ave Harris Ave UNI 358 7876 875 
14.68 Poor Pacific Circle Pacific Drive End of Road 44 108 2592 288 I-' 15.15 Poor S. Holmes Road Fairway Road 166th Street UNI 381 8382 932 I-' 

...J 15.35 Poor E 160th Terrace Hight Ave Slater Ave UNI 360 7920 880 
15.85 Poor E 160th Terrace Hight Ave Hinkle Ave UNI 360 7920 880 
16.01 Poor 165th Street Speaker Ave Harris Ave N/A 253 6072 675 
16.29 Poor Belinder Drive Lacy lane Baldwin Street 41 302 7248 806 
16.92 Poor Middleton Ave Middleton Ave End of Road N/A 170 4080 454 
18.12 Poor Lake Drive lacy Lane Baldwin Street 195 397 9528 1059 
18.4 Poor Hardee Street Bradley Ave Kentucky Road 141 281 6744 750 18.42 Poor Pacific Drive Eldorado Drive Miller Drive 40 557 13368 1486 18.63 Poor Bel-Ray Drive Greenwald Drive Branson Drive 66 259 8029 892 18.67 Poor Lawrence Ave E 160th Terrace E 160th Street UNI 350 7700 856 18.85 Poor Pacific Drive Park Ave Eldorado Drive N/A 284 6816 757 19.26 Poor Bradley Ave Bradley Court 166th Street 350 344 8256 918 19.29 Poor Spring Valley Road Bel-Ray Drive 166th Street 41 453 10872 1208 20.95 Poor Monte Verde Drive 17 4th Street End of Road UNI 342 7524 836 22.04 Fair Lawrence Ave E. 157th Street End of Road UNI 820 18040 2005 22.48 Fair E 157th Street VicieAve Lawrence Ave UNI 350 7700 856 22.71 Fair Pacific Drive Miller Drive Pacific Circle N/A 284 6816 757 22.92 Fair Terry Ave E 160th Terrace E 160th Street UNI 344 8256 918 23.12 Fair E 157th Street Lawrence Ave Terry Ave UNI 353 7766 863 23.21 Fair Westside Drive Colbern Street End of Road -62 266 6384 710 



I-' 
I-' 
00 

OCI 
Rate 
23.31 
23.31 
23.31 
23.31 

OCR 
Rate Street Start 
Fair E 157th Stteet Kay Ave 
Fair E 157th Street Allen Ave 
Fair E. 158th Terrace Allen Ave 
Ave E 157th Street Ann Ave 

Curb Asphalt Asphalt Asphalt 
End Length Ft. Length SF SY 

Ann Ave UNI 354 7788 866 
Kay Ave UNI 347 7634 848 
Kay Ave UNI 348 6264 696 
Vicie Ave UNI 353 7766 863 

1497 
14116 324291 36043 



Based from Pavement Overall Condition Index (OCI) Rate ONLY starting with lowest OCI 
Rated Street using FY19 Street Preservation Program Funds ($ 740,000) 

OCI OCR Curb Asphalt Asphalt Asphalt 
Rate Rate Street Start End Length Ft. Length SF SY 
23.31 Fair E. 16oth Street VicieAve Lawrence Ave UNI 350 7700 856 
23.59 Fair S. Benton Drive 17 4th Street 58 Highway UNI 1922 42284 4698 
23.86 Fair Lawrence Ave E. 162nd Street E. 161st Street UNI 706 15532 1726 
24.49 Fair S. Outer Road Grand Street Hill Street UNI 285 6270 697 
25.57 Fair Eastern Ave E. 16oth Terrace E. 160th Street UNI 348 7656 851 
26.36 Fair Eastern Ave E. 160th Street End of Road UNI 304 6688 743 
26.88 Fair Robie Drive W. Walnut End of Road UNI 530 12720 1414 
27.1 Fair Pine Street Catron Ave Margaret Lane 12 334 8016 891 
27.32 Fair Pacific Drive Baldwin Street Colbern Street 29.2 509 12216 1358 
27.4 Fair E. 159th Street Megan Street Ryan Drive 1'4 321 7704 856 
27.74 Fair 163rd Court Spring Valley Road End of Road 11 204 4896 544 
28.14 Fair Park Circle Park Drive End of Road 373 265 5830 648 
28.18 Fair E. 159th Street Ryan Drive Harold Drive N/A 322 7728 859 
28.29 Fair Herschel Street Second Street End of Road UNI 173 3806 423 

I-' 702 I-' 
ID 6573 149046 16564 



Remaining Funds from 20% Contingency Plan (if any exist) 

OCI OCR Curb · Asphalt Asphalt Asphalt 
Rate Rate Street Start End Length Ft. Length SF SY 
28.64 Fair Tanner Drive Sherman Parkway Sweet Cherry Plac 135 291 6984 776 
29.08 Fair Pacific Drive Lacy Lane Baldwin Street 217 467 11208 1246 
29.25 Fair Buena Vista Drive Park Ave Buena Vista Court 50 575 13800 1534 
30.82 Fair Hardee Street Middleton Ave Hardee Court N/A 286 6864 763 
31.44 Fair E. South Ave Third Street Pine Street UNI 66 1452 162 
31.67 Fair Melody Lane S. Scott Ave Mulberry Street 690 973 23352 2595 
32.36 Fair E 161st Street Lawrence Ave Terry Ave UNI 349 7678 853 
32.79 Fair Markey Drive Markey Place Markey Terrace UNI 436 10464 1163 
33.04 Fair Georgia Lane S. Scott Ave Mulberry Street 425 973 23352 2595 
33.18 Fair Montgall Drive E 176th Street E 174th Street UNI 1439 31658 3518 
34.15 Fair Brian Ave S. Scott Ave Mulberry Street 220 909 21816 2424 
34.51 Fair Middleton Ave Hardee Street E 166th Street 30 362 8688 966 
34.52 Fair Greenwald Drive Bel-Ray Drive Greenwald Court 338· 791 18984 2110 
34.76 Fair Kay Ave E 158th Terrace E 157th Street UNI 949 20878 2320 
35.08 Fair Spring Valley Road Lea Ave Spring Valley Roa, N/A 261 6264 696 

I-' 35.08 Fair Spring Valley Road Forrest Ave Branson Drive 162 246 11808 1312 
I\.) 35.21 Fair Middleton Ave E 166th Street Middleton Court N/A 197 4728 526 0 

35.55 Fair Monte Verde Drive E 17 4th Street 58 Highway UNI 1923 42306 4701 
35.77 Fair Spring Valley Road Bel-Ray Blvd Barry Lane N/A 300 7200 800 
35.8 Fair Redbud Lane Hawthorne Drive Hawthorne Drive ., 18.4 1217 29208 3246 

35.88 Fair Spring Valley Road E 166th Street Greenwald Drive , , · :510 1026 24624 2736 
36.02 Fair E 166th Street Spring Valley Road Hardee Street <26 289 6936 771 
36.05 Fair Spring Valley Road Dusty Lane Lea Ave N/A 228 5472 608 
36.07 Fair E 159th Street VicieAve Terry Ave UNI 708 15576 1731 
36.2 Fair Greenwald Drive Greenwald Court McKinley Street 43 402 9648 1072 

36.21 Fair E 160th Street Allen Ave End of Road UNI 203 4466 497 
36.29 Fair Spring Valley Road Rebecca Lane E 163rd Court N/A 326 7824 870 
36.94 Fair Kay Ave E 157th Street E 155th Street UNI 1060 23320 260 
37.67 Fair Bradley Ave Hardee Street Bradley Court 218 421 10104 1123 
38.02 Fair E 161st Street Terry Ave Valentine Ave UNI 350 7700 856 
38.49 Fair Bel-Ray Blvd E 170th Street Spring Valley Roa, . 20 430 8170 908 
39.29 Fair Stacey Drive Kimberly Drive Monroe Ave .~ 15 309 7416 824 
39.97 Fair Spring Valley Road E 163rd Terrace E 163rd Street 66 201 4824 536 
40.51 Fair Margaret Lane Pine Street E. South Ave 305 812 19488 2166 
41.62 Ave Ella Street Loop Road Commercial Stree· UNI 249 5478 609 
41.78 Ave Herschel Street Fifth Street Fourth Street UNI 345 7590 844 



42.42 Ave Washington Street See Ave N. Scott Ave UNI 94 2256 251 
43.13 Ave East Ave Blue Ave Minnie Ave UNI 431 10344 1150 
43.27 Ave East Ave Pine Street B Street UNI 57 1596 178 
43.62 Ave E. South Ave Fifth Street Hackberry Street UNI 271 5962 663 
44.14 Ave Miller Drive Valle Drive Pacific Drive 50 735 17640 1960 
44.54 Ave Bel-Ray Blvd Bel-Ray Court Bel-Ray Drive N/A 104 2496 278 
44.71 Ave Hardee Street Hardee Court Bradley Ave 229 829 19896 2211 
44.82 Ave Lawrence Ave E 161st Street E 160th Terrace UNI 548 12056 1340 
45.14 Ave 166th Street Holmes Road Holmes Road UNI 145 3045 339 
45.18 Ave Berry Ave Hawthorne Court King Street 20 778 17116 1902 
45.49 Ave Hight Ave E 160th Terrace E 160th Street UNI 351 7722 858 45.59 Ave E 160th Street Terry Ave Valentine Ave UNI 356 7832 870 
45.93 Ave Spring Valley Road Spring Valley Road Bel-Ray Blvd N/A 168 4032 448 45.96 Ave S. Holmes Road Fairway Road Fairway Road UNI 370 8140 905 46.07 Ave Bel-Ray Drive McKinley Court Spring Valley Roac N/A 347 10757 1195 46.29 Ave Airway Lane Westover Road N. Hillcrest Road 11-0 734 17616 1958 46.29 Ave Tanner Drive Tanner Circle Cherry Hill Court 40 230 5520 614 46.38 Ave Montgall Drive 17 4th Street 58 Highway UNI 1931 42482 4721 46.44 Ave Tanner Drive Sweet Cherry PlacE Tanner Circle 270 299 7176 798 47.2 Ave E Outer Road E 162nd Street 163rd Street UNI 2492 54824 6092 I-' 
47.28 Ave Eastern Ave E 162nd Street E 160th Terrace UNI 1258 27676 3075 

I\J 
I-' 

47.91 Ave Hight Ave Bryan Way 163rd Street N/A 649 15576 1731 48.03 Ave Pine Street Commercial Street East Ave UNI 320 7040 782 48.27 Ave Chestnut Drive 17 4th Street 58 Highway UNI 1923 42306 4701 48.49 Ave E 160th Street Valentine Ave End of Road UNI 190 4180 465 48.51 Ave Lynn Street Spring Street Lynn Street UNI 317 6974 775 48.58 Ave Terry Ave E 17 4th Street E 155th Street UNI 1065 23430 2604 48.72 Ave Kay Ave 158th Terrace End of Road UNI 214 4708 524 48.76 Ave Monroe Ave Monroe Circle Cleveland Ave NIA 192 4608 512 49.03 Ave Monroe Ave Sunset Lane Monroe Circle 72: 866 20784 2310 49.5 Ave E 160th Street Lawrence Ave Terry Ave UNI 344 7568 841 49.57 Ave Monroe Ave Tervis Ave Stacey Drive 70 555 13320 1480 
4518 

39532 914006 99248 



Based from Pavement Overall Condition Index (CCI) Rate ONLY starting with lowest CCI 
Rated Street using Street GO Bonds (1.6 million estimated) "CURB REPALCEMENT" 

Street Curb Replace (Ft.) Start End 
7807 Bel-Ray Drive - =- 53 Jasmine Lane Greenwald Drive ---
401 Pacific Drive 62 Pacific Circle Lacy Lane 
405 Pacific Drive 23 Pacific Circle Lacy Lane 
418 Pacific Drive 26 Pacific Circle Lacy Lane 
Pacific Drive (504 Lacy) 36 Pacific Circle Lacy Lane 
202-204 K!imberly Drive 

~-..r,-"' --.....----
90 

..... ___ ~er---- -

Stacy Drive 
~-

Sunset Lane 
. ,... 1_ .. ~· .. -. 

203-205 Ki!lilberly Drive 52 Stacy Drive Sunset Lane 
2©8 Kimbefly1 Dr ive - 32 Stacy Drive Sunset Lane 
205 Kimbe~ly Drive 1(705~ Sunset Lane) 

.....,,,,.r -----
143 -~~-·"'-- Stacy Drive ........... Sunset Lane 

501 Pacific Circle 15 Pacific Drive End of Road 
503 Pacific Circle 19 Pacific Drive End of Road 
500 Pacific Circle 10 Pacific Drive End of Road 
207 Belinder Drive 

-a... .,.-_ - .. - --
41 

__ ..,..._ · ... _ 

Lacy Lane 
~ 

Baldwin Street . ' _._ -~~-,!if.,.... ...... ·=--~- --300 Lake Drive 31 Lacy Lane Baldwin Street 
302 Lake Drive 23 Lacy Lane Baldwin Street 

I-' 305 Lake Drive 58 Lacy Lane Baldwin Street 
t\J 

306 Lake Drive 60 Lacy Lane Baldwin Street t\J 

309 Lake Drive 23 Lacy Lane Baldwin Street 
16805 Hardee Street 

~- --1"-- _ ...... --- ... -..---- .. 
54 -a.--~-

Bradley Ave 
~-~ 

Kentucky Road . - ' 
~ 

- ' J 

16806 Hardee st,eet 30 Bradley Ave Kentucky Road 
16804 iHardee Smeet, 

" 
27 Bradley Ave Kentucky Road 

1680?.._Ha~dee Street .. 30 ' 1Bradley Ave Kentucky Road ~~,,._ ~-! -419 Pacific Drive 10 Eldorado Drive Miller Drive 
508 Pacific Drive 30 Eldorado Drive Miller Drive 
7900 Bel-~y Dr,ive ' --- ~ 1!"',.:I,_----. 

44 
~ . - . -- --.-- ~-

Greenwald Drive Branson Drive ~ 

7902 Bel-Ray Drive - 22 
., 

Greenwald Drive_ Branson Drive . ._ ____ __.....~~-. - __..,..__~ 
16706 Bradley Ave 75 Bradley Court 166th Street 
16705 Bradley Ave 28 Bradley Court 166th Street 
16703 Bradley Ave 17 Bradley Court 166th Street 
16704 Bradley Ave 30 Bradley Court 166th Street 
8406 166th Street (Bradley Ave) 12 Bradley Court 166th Street 
8404 166th Street (Bradley Ave) 14 Bradley Court 166th Street 
8402 166th Street (Bradley Ave) 52 Bradley Court 166th Street 
8403 166th Street (Bradley Ave) 27 Bradley Court 166th Street 
8307 166th Street (Bradley Ave) 45 Bradley Court 166th Street 
8301 166th Street (Bradley Ave) 50 Bradley Court 166th Street 



16608 Spring Valley Road . - ' 24 
I 

Bel-Ray Drive 166th Street 
16613 Spring Valley Road 

~ ~- -~ 
17 

~ 
Bel-Ray Drive 166th Street -

123 Westside Drive 20 Colbern Street End of Road 
118 Westside Drive 10 Colbern Street End of Road 
120 Westside Drive 32 Colbern Street End of Road 

1497 

Based from Pavement Overall Condition Index (OCI) Rate ONLY starting with lowest OCI 
Rated Street using FY19 Street Preservation Program Funds($ 740,000) "CURB REPLACEMENT" 

Street Curb Replace (Ft.) Start End 
207 Pacific Drive 

- - - 102 Baldwin Street - Colbern Street 
208 Pacific Drive ~ 24 Baldwin Street Colbern Street 
205 Pacific Drive l -. 24 Baldwin Street Colbern Street 
204 Pacific Drive ' 45 ', Baldwin Street Colbern Street . 
202 Pacific Drive - 48 Baldwin Street Colbern Street 
200 Pacific Drive 

----...- ---- ~ 
49 -- -..._.;:,,; - . - Baldwin Street - Colbern Street 

7806 E. 159th Street 14 Megan Street Ryan Drive 
8001 163rd Court ~~---

11 -- ~ ~ ... -
Spring Valley Road End of Road ~---, ~ - -

1--' 706 Park Circle 18 Park Drive End of Road 
N 702-704 Park Circle 48 Park Drive End of Road w 

701 Park Circle 64 Park Drive End of Road 
705 Park Circle 45 Park Drive End of Road 
707 Park Circle 46 Park Drive End of Road 
Park Circle (406 Park Drive) 152 Park Drive End of Road 
514 Pine Street 12 -

Catron Ave Margaret Lane 
~ _: -

702 



BILL NO. 2017-75 ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4374 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI, AS A PARTICIPATING 
AGENCY, AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
WITH SUPERIOR BOWEN ASPHALT COMPANY, LLC FOR THE 2017 STREET 
PRESERVATION PROJECT/ OVERLAY FINALIZED IN JUNE 2017. 

WHEREAS, a quality transportation system (streets, bridges, curbs and sidewalks) is important 

to a safe and vibrant community, and the City of Belton has been very eager to develop strategies 

to improve in this area. Staff has been working diligently to assess the system, document the work, 

and describe the needs so effective strategies can be implemented. ; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Peculiar Missouri, as the coordinating agency, has collected bids and 

executed an agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the Cooperative 2017 

Street Preservation Project/Overlay. The Cooperative Agreement allows for several cities in the 

region to receive bids on work each has a need for collectively while individually benefiting from 

cost savings associated with the use of economies of scale.; and 

WHEREAS, The Fiscal Year 2017 Street Preservation Program contained the milling, overlay, 

and patching for the East Pacific Storm water project for an amount of $85,932.80. The contract to 

complete this work expired before the project was at a point to allow for the repair of the street 

portion of the project additionally the funds were not requested to be rolled over into the current 

fiscal year. Since the expiration of the contract and continued stormwater improvements to East 

Pacific Project it has come to staffs attention that the road requires more extensive repair than 

what was originally called for. The quantities for the repairs were not known when the above 

described cooperative street preservation project was advertised and therefore no quantities are 

shown in the agreement.; and 

WHEREAS, The current budget for the 2018 Fiscal Year Street Preservation Program is 

$370,000.00 which will need to be rolled over into Fiscal Year 2019 so that a larger extent of roads 

can be repaired. Due to the nature of the Street Preservation Program funds staff is considering the 

use of the remaining 2006 general obligation bonds meant for constructing and improving the 

City's storm water drainage system. The roads current state stems from a lack of proper stormwater 

drainage and when necessary stormwater drainage is not in place the road becomes the conveyance 

system for the stormwater. ; and 

124 



WHEREAS, to ensure that the repairs to East Pacific Drive and East Sunrise Drive between South 

Cedar Street and South Scott A venue are completed for the best price currently available, staff 

recommends approving the Cooperative Agreement for the 2017 Street Preservation 

Project/Overlay program with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC.; the agreement is attached 

to this ordinance as Exhibit A. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the Cooperative Agreement awarded to Superior Bowen Asphalt Company 
LLC for the 2017 Street Preservation Project/Overlay program is hereby approved 
for purposes described above. 

SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: July 25, 2017 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

Approved this gth day of August , 2017. 

STATE OF MISSOURI ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

125 



I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first readmg at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the 25th day of July, 2017, and thereafter adopted as Ordinance 
No. 2017- 4374 of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a regular meeting of the City Council held on 
the gth day of August, 2017, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

AYES:9 COUNCILMEN: 

NOES: 0 COUNCILMEN: 

ABSENT: 0 COUNCILMEN: 

Mayor Davis, Savage, Lathrop, Van Winkle, Trutzel, 
Fletcher, Finn, Newell, Peek 

Patricia A. Ledfor , Cit),: 
of the City of Belton, Missourj 

126 



Exhibit 1 

AGREEMENT 

Contract Number ST 17-001 

Project TIiie 2011 Asphalt Street Overlay Proleots 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered Into between Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, 
L.L.C. (CONTRAC'T"OR) as principal and PECULIAR, MISSOURI, a Fourth Claes City in the 
Stateof Missouri (OWNER). 

OWNER and CONTRACTOR for and In consideration of mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, 
agree and bind themselves and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns as follows: 

Sec, 1. CONTRACTOR shall complete the Work as specified or indicated In the Contract 
Documents. CONTRACTOR shall furnish and pay for the Work, all materials, and labor of all 
laborers, Subcontractors, teamsters, truck drivers, teams and w~go·ns employed, and owners of 
equipment used on the Work. 

Sec. 2. OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents an amount equal to the total of Bid Items 1-5 (the Contract Prlce): 

For all Unit Price Work (Section A), an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for 
each separately Identified Item of Unit Price Work multlplled by the quantity of !hat Item. The 
Unit Prices form (Seollon A) Included In the Bid, a copy of which Is attached, shall apply unless 
otheiwlse stated below. All sales and/or services will be made on purchase orders, with 
separate task agreements, Issued by individual Participating Agencies . 

Total of all Bid Unit Prices (Item Numbers 1-5: 2017 Asphalt Street Overlay Projects) 

Ope mllllon two hundred fifteen thousand four hundred twenty six dollars and seventy five cents 

($1.215,426. 75) 

Sec. 3. The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire Agreement between OWNER and 
CONTRACTOR, are Identified In the General Conditions. 

Sec. 4. CONTRACTOR agrees to begin the Work promptly upon the dale stated In the "Notice 
to Proceed" and to complete the Work within the times specified in the Contract Documents, 
unless further time Is granted by OWNER. 

Sec. S, CONTRACTOR agrees and guarantees that the Work hereln mentioned shall be 
constructed without further compensation than that provided for In the Contract Documents. The 
acceptance of the Work done hereunder and payment therefore shall not be held to prevent the 
maintenance of an action on CONTRACTOR'S bonds for failure to construct sald Work In 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Sec. 6. Retalnage under this Contract, If any, shall be specified In the Contract Doouments. 

0.9 Peouliar Contract Guillebook 
127 

I. 

i 

J 



Exhibit 1 

Sec. ?. CONTRACTOR agrees and guarantees to make good, at Its own expense and In 
accordance wllh the Instructions of OWNER, any and all faulty or defective material or 
workmanship which may appear In the Work In accordance with and during the perlocf stated _by 
the Contract Documents. 

Sec. 8. CONTRACTOR wlfl well and truly perform the covenants contained In the Contract 
Documents, and will pay for the Work and all materials, labor of all laborers, Subcontractors, 
teamsters, truck drivers, teams and wagons employed, and owners of equipment used on the 
Work, and for all materials used herein .. 

Sec. 9. This Contract Is entered Into by OWNER subject to authorization by the City Council 
and shall not be binding until so authorized, and is su_bject to the Federal and State Laws and 
the provisions ofthe F>ecullar City Code and Ordinances In general that mataffect same. 

Sec. 10. All of the provisions of this Contract shall be severable. In the event that any provision 
of this Contract Is found by a co.urt of oampetent jurisdiction to be unconstltutlonal or unlawrul, 
lhe remaining provisions ofthls Contra.cl shall be valid unless the court finds the valid provisions 
of this Contract are so essentially and Inseparably connected with and so dependent upon the 
invalid provisions that it cannot be presumed that the parties to this Contract could have 
Included the valid provisions without the invalid provisions, or unless the court finds that the 
valid provisions. standing alone. are Incapable of being performed In accordance with the 
intentions of the parties. 

GIJ Peculi~§lrectGllldobool1 



Exhibit 1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, CONTRACTOR and.OWNER'& eulhorlzed represenlellves have hereunlo 
set their hands and s.eale reepectlvely, In execuUon of lhls Contract. 

CONTRACTOR 
Name, address, e•maU address and facsimile number of 
CONTRACTOR 

Superior Bowan Asphalt Company, LL.C. 
2501 Manchester Tramcway. 
Kanaas CIIY, Missouri 64129. 

I hereby certify Chet I have authority to e1<ecute this 
document on behalf of CONTRACTOR. 

By:~·~---

TH!a: '-" • ~ 

Dale: G · 8 • 1-:,. 

(Attact, corporate aeal tr eppllosble) 

r hereby certify that there Is e balance , otherwise unencumbered, lo the credit of the approprfatlon 
to which the foregoing expenditure is to be charged, and a cash balance, otherwise 
unencumbered, In the asury, to the credit or the fund from which payment Is to be made, each 
sufflol to meet tile b gatfon hereby Incurred. 

Ci.•J Peculiar C<lntr11cl G 

129 



Exhibit 1 

Project 

Notes: 

... 
j 

1 

1a 

2 

3 

3a 

4 

4a 

5 

Unit Prices 
Project Number 17·001 

2017 Asphalt Street Overlay Projects 
Section A 

1 rn the event of ~lscrepancy, unit price &hall govern 
2 The City reserves the right to award or omit ell or any bid alternate to the contractor 

l I • e .. 
C ~ j J I '6 a, B g 

~ ~ m if 
'IS it :z: ! Q :, 'S 'S 'S I 

J ~ 6 ~ ~ ::a 
u u u 

EC,ge Mflllng, (O", 
211

)"- Contractor SY 
Ret.aln Mlllfnna 
Edge Mllllng, (0'1 • 

2") City Retain SY 18000 70000 52451 ·140451 $1.75 
Mlllfnas 

FulliJl.ll~lh 
Mlllfng (0"·"2")- SY 

Contracto1 
Retain Mflflnaa 
Vlrjlln Surface 

Asphalt, AP.WA SY 
Type 3•R,2• 

lnchaa 
Rec;vc1acl 

Surface ~phalt, 
Tons 3000 7700 6641 17347 $54.50 APW.A Type 3•R; 

2• lnchas 
Ba~e Repair, 

Virgin AsphaJI 
Ba111a, APWA, SY 
Type 1°Ci11 B• 

lnuhae 
Basa Repair, 

Reoyclad 
Asphalt ~aae, SY 1200 2272 18128 21800 $42.00 

APWA, Type 1-R, 
R,lncbaa 

Grou!td l,oop EA Detectors 

130 



Exhibit 1 

COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT WITH 
OTHER PARTICIPATING AGENCIES 

The Participating Agencies as identlfled on the unit prices fonn under Section A and 
providing specified locations of work are the base~bid for this conh·oct. The bidder agrees 
to provide products and/or services to tlte Participating Agencies perfonning 
governmental function s within Cass County. 

All sales and/or services to these Participating Agencies wiJl be made on purchase orders, with 
separate task agreements, issued by that Agency. AU receiving, inspection, 
Payments and other procurement admiilistration will be the respo~s:ibility of each 
purchasing Ageucy. Sales will be made in accordance with the prices, tenna and 
conditions of this invitation for bids and any subsequent contraot. 

Initial: No __ 

Optional 

The Bidder agrees to provide unit rate p*ing (Section B of bid form) to the Participating 
Agencies, Due to the nature of this contract and the travel distances required for 
participating entities, the bidder agrees to acljust pricing in an amount not to exceed +/-
5% of the unit rate price quoted in section B of the bid fonn to cover. any unforeseen 
costs. The adjusted price shaJl be negotiated between the participating ~11tity and the bidder 
prior to any task agreements being executed. 

All sales and/or services to these Participati11g Agencies will be made on purchase orders, 
with sepal'Ste task agreements, issued by that Agency. All receiving, inspection, 
Payments end oth~r procurement administration will be the respo~sibility of the 
psqrcbash1g Agency. Sales will be made in accordance wjfh tile prices, terns, and 
conditions of this invitation for bids e11d any subsequent contract. 

Initial: Yes~ No __ _ 

131 



Unit Role Pricina. Socllon B 

Item# Dec.rlnllon Unit. QTY Unit Prine 
Edge MIiiing (O"· 

a 2") • City Retain 
Millings 

SY 1-eiOO $15,00 

Edge Mllllng (O"· 
b 2") • City Retain SY 501-1500 $7.50 

Mllllngs 
6 

Edge Millll'lg (0"• 
C 2") • City Retain SY 1501•3000 $4,00 

MIiiings 

Edge Mllllng (0"· 
d 2") • City Retain SY 3001 1md over $2,50 

l'o,llllngs 
. - .... ·- - ·. Full,Wldth ....... ·-· - ...... --·· - -·,,-··· -- -- - -

a MIiiing (0"•2") • 
City Retain 

SY 1•500 $20,00 

Full Width MIiiing 
b (0"•2") • SY 501-1500 $10,00 

City Retain 
1 

Full Width MIiiing 
C (0"·2") ~ SY 1601-3000 $5.00 

City Retain 

Ftlll Width Mllllng 
d (0"•2") • SY 3001 and over $3.00 

City Retain 

( ll"•8") Base 
Rep,1lr, Recycled 

$70.00 A1phall Baae, 

ll 
APWA, Type 1,01 BY 1-500 
( Ii" • 8'' ) iase 
Repair, Reeycled 

$60,00 Aaphalt Base, 

b 
APWA, Type 1•01 

BY 501-1500 
B 

(11"•8") Base 
Repair, Reeyoled 

$55,00 Asph111t B11ee, 

,D 
APWA, Type 1•01 BY 1&:01-3001) 
(8"·SW)Base 
Repair, Recycled 

$50.00 Asphalt Base, 

d 
APWA, T~pe 1,01 SY 3.on1 and over 
4"Reoyoled 

• Asphalt Saae, 
&Y 1•2BO $45.00 APWA, Type 1,01 

4" R111yolad 

b 
Asphalt Baae, 

BY 261•B0D $40.00 APWA, Type 1•01 

4"Racyoled 
Asphalt Base, 

C APWA, Type 1•01 SY 501-7!10 $35.00 

8 

132 



4"ReGycled 

d 
Aaphall Base, 
APWA, Typa 1-01 SY 751-1001) $30.00 

4" Reoyoled 
Aaphall Base, 

SY 1001 and over s2s.oo • APWA, Type 1-01 

211 Virgin Surface 
a Asphalt, APWA, SY 1.2so S30.00 

Type3•01 

211 Virgin Surface 
b Aephall, APWA, SY 251-500 $25,00 

Type3•01 

211 Virgin Surface 
10 C A11phalt, APWA, SY 601-750 Sl0.00 

Type 3-01 

211 Virgin Surface 
d Asphalt, APWA, SY 161-1000 $15.00 

Type 3-01 

211 Virgin Surface 
e Aaphalt, APWA, SY 1001 •nd over $10.00 

Types-01 

2"Racyolad 
a Surface A1ph11lt, 

APWA, Type 3-01 
SY 1•250 $2.9,50 

2"Racyoled 
b Surface Asphalt, SY 261°800 $24.50 

APWA, Type 3•01 

2"Recyoled 
11 C Surface Asphalt, SY 501-760 $19.50 

APWA, Typa 3·01 

2" R11cyclad 
d Surface Asphalt, SY 761-1000 S14,SO 

APWA, Type 3•01 

2" Recycled 

• Surface Asphalt, 
APWA, Type 3•01 

BY 1001 and over $9,SO 

a Subgrade Repair SY 1-IJOO 
(8"-0") $70.00 

b Sut,grade Repair SY 501-1500 
(6·· 8") $60.00 

12 
Subgrade Repair 8Y 1501-3000 C 

(8"· 811, sss.oo 
d Subgrade Reparr av 3001 and over 

(6"·8") $50.00 

133 



~ 
ACORD· 
~ 

SUPEBOW-05 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 
DATE fMMIDD/YYYY) 

07/17/2017 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXl'END OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AfFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, ANO THE CERTIFICATE ~OLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certlflcete holder Is en AD1l1T10NAL INSURED, the polh:y(lH) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the term1111nd conditions of the pollcy, certain pollcles may require an endorsement. A statement on 
this certfflcate does not confer rl hls to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement s • 

PRODUCER 
SRA Insurance Aoepc:y, LLC 
5201 Johnson Drive, Suite 500 
Mission, KS 66205 

INSURED 
Superior Bowen Asphalt Company 
c/o Total Rl.sk Management 
11030 Hickman MIiia Road 
Kansas City, MO 64134 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 

N 

12300 
19984 
26387 

!lW!!lmD-·- ~-~--~----------~-~---1 
SU RE · 

INSURERF: 
REVISION NUMs·i:~: 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE·POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOWHAVEBEENISSUEOTOTHEINSUREDNAMEDABOVEFORTHEPOLICYPERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMEN'r WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIACATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREINISSUBJECTTOALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS ANO CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

I~~ T'IPE OF INSURANCE ~J.D~ I~ POLICY NUMBER P~IC:Yf.~F .. l'OLICV lkP LIMITS 
A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIAB1Ll1Y .. u,u s 5,00li,000 - D CLAIMS,MAOE 00 OCCUR nillAM TO R~NTt:P 100,000 ClL 17(A·C)OD048 06/01/2017 06/01/2018 ~ 

t--
5,000 ua:::n EXP ""'--·· --- P\.l"Of~MI s ,._ 

5,000,000 fte<>•n ... , 11,M>VIILJIIC>V s ,-
S,ooo,ODO H: ~GRe~E LIMITAPPUES PER: 

~ ........ s 
POLICY X ~r@f D LOC "~ •"""" "'PM.IQ .. 5,000,000 

OfHE~ I 

A ,.6.1!.TOl,IDIIILE LIABILITY 
~~!?nSINGLE llMIT 

E 5,000,000 

,x NlYAUTO AL17000015 06/01/2017 06/01/2018 an"" nl s 
~lgfONLV 

- S:CHEDUlEO 
,- - AUTOS rfflYJ!!.JI.IBX IEQr llt.ddanll S. 

X m ONLY ..!. ~~W't!~ ~,~AMAGE s 

x X CA.994& 
.s 

UMBRELLA LIAB Hoccu~ c•ru ~ -
EXCl!SSUAB CLOJMS•~W>E ... 
oeo ! I 1tF1fNTION$ ~ 

B WORl<Ell.S COIUE~s.lTjjN xi Ea .. __ , I ~IH· 
AND EM9L0Y111S' Alll 'r'f y 

WCA000012017 06/01/2017 06/01(2018 1,000,000 ANY PROP~l!TOMARTNeMXECU11VE 00 P. E•nU & ... .1', ... l'!'Ll"'I" .. 8,1':a:e:; ~im EXClUOEO? N/ 1' 1,000,000 • l'I n,a,ru., : unu'°'"Y-• c. 

~1!:rt~f~t ~!~pCQA"l'IONS ba"'"'" II! nu,ear:e:.n,•u1"""'-l1Jl,ilT t 1,000,otiil 
B ExcH1 Liaiililfy ){SiwiiiiiWi ilsicl11.1011 OuliJ'ii261a EXCESSGL 6,000,000 

C Pollu.tlon Llablllty EOC3889305_ 10 06/01/2017 06/01/2018 PER CLAIM 6,000,000 

DESCRIPT~N OF OPERATIONS/ lOCATlrijS /~HICLES ~CORO 1a+ Addlllo~tl A•""'1t• Soh•dult, mac bVM"" II rri"'' ·e·· 1• •!<l•btd) 
CITVOF ELTON,MOISANADOl 10 ALINSU EOTO HEABOVEREFERENCEO O GES NC uoNGPRODUCTS/COMPLETEOOPERATIONS 
EXCEPT WORKERS' COMPENSATION AS ALLOWED BY STATUTE ANll IF REQUIRED BV WRITTEN CONTRACT. COVEAAGE IS 
PRIMARY/NONCONTRIBUTORY, WAIVER OF SUBROGATION IS APPLICABLE WHERE ALLOWED BY STATUTE AND IF REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT. 

City of Belton, MO 
!108 Main Street 
Belton, MO 64012 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 

CANCELLAT N 

SHOULD ANY OF THE AUOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCI! WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reHrved. 
The ACORD name and logo are rejli&tered marks of ACORD 

134 



--- - --··--

Project Name: 
Owner. 
Contra.cl No. 
Contl'actor. 

2017 Asphalt Street OVertay Program 
City of Betton, Missouri 
Task Agreement One 
_Superior B_Q_w~~A$phalt Co •• U.C ~- _ 

Schedule of Values Application# One 
For ~lit completed through _ ___ _ 
l"bt~ 71'7.f2J>_JZ 

revious y ltems lorl>ayment 
SCHEDULE OF VALUES Completed This Period Amount 

Unit Total Completed 

.. 1.16" A!Phalt!!emovalarid 4• Replace With (AfWA Typ~_1-01r· ...... L SY l~.5242 ..... L. ~.:90 ~-- 131.02Q;OO L..... 0 _.J_ !i __ , ... -... - . ..L .... o_ ...... J :s,_ .. _, ......... -..... l $ _ ........... -. - w .... . 

.. 2. ~"Aspha1t~r1ace.cr_ypJ-.3-D1 >. ... - - .. --·-··-·-·-·-.. --.. ---i. ~ ..... 5,242 ___ ~ .......... ¥!;so_4 s .. 49,799.oo ~.--- o .. _+$ ---.. - !----Yr--! $···-··-·> ... ~.!. ___ ... · ... .. 

Item I Unit Qty. _ Price Amount Quantity Amount Quantm, Amount To Date 

3"(Force AccottBu~---··· ........ --····-.. ··-·-···· ..... - ..... _ .... ; LS 1---·1 1·- S,\000.00 ; S.. 4.()00.oo1 ____ o ........ 1 $ _____ ........ ·.----\- o ~ -$·-··P-·-- .... ~ ... - .... - - .... .. 
· r · ·' · 1 ·· · · · - -- - - - · - · · - --- r 1 - · r -- r -- - 1 r 1 1 - · ; - · 

Original Contract Amount $ 184!849.00 

Change Order Number $ 

Current Contract Amount $ 184,849.00 

Street List 
East Pacific Drive - E. Sunrise to S. Soott (1637 SY) 
East Sunrise Drive - E. Pacific to S. Scott (1752 SY) 
E Pacific Drive - Cedar to East Sunrise (1853 SY) 

Ts JI '($ 

Amo<mt llis Period! $ 

Amn11nt P,.,.vin11sly Completed $ 
- ... .. __ . ... 0 · - ··--· W - L~: -

Amount Com leted 1o0ate $ 

Mate.rials On Hand s 
Subtotal $ 

Retainagel $ 

Net Amount This Estimate! $ 

Previous Payments to Contractor! S 

AMOUNTPAYABLE=ll S. 

• in 
C") 
..-4' 



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

PHllC WORIS 

AGENDA DATE: July 25, 2017 

COUNCIL: [8J Regular Meeting 

Resolution 
Discussion 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 

DIVISION: Transportation 

D Work Session D Special Session 

A quality transportation system (streets, bridges, curbs and sidewalks) is important to a safe and vibrant 
community, and the City of Belton has been very eager to develop strategies to improve in this area. 
Staff has been working diligently to assess the system, document the work, and describe the needs so 
effective strategies can be implemented. 

The City of Peculiar Missouri, as the coordinating agency, has collected bids and executed an agreement 
with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the Cooperative 2017 Street Preservation 
Project/Overlay. The Cooperative Agreement allows for several cities in the region to receive bids on 
work each has a need for collectively while individually benefiting from cost savings associated with the 
use of economies of scale. 

The Fiscal Year 2017 Street Preservation Program contained the milling, overlay, and patching for the 
East Pacific Stormwater project for an amount of $85,932.80. The contract to complete this work 
expired before the project was at a point to allow for the repair of the street portion of the project 
additionally the funds were not requested to be rolled over into the current fiscal year. Since the 
expiration of the contract and continued stormwater improvements to East Pacific Project it has come to 
staff's attention that the road requires more extensive repair than what was originally called for. The 
quantities for the repairs were not known when the above described cooperative street preservation 
project was advertised and therefore no quantities are shown in the agreement. 

The current budget for the 2018 Fiscal Year Street Preservation Program is $370,000.00 which will need 
to be rolled over into Fiscal Year 2019 so that a larger extent ofroads can be repaired. Due to the nature 
of the Street .Preservation Program funds · staff is considering the use of the remaining 2006 general 
obligation bonds meant for constructing and improving the City' s stormwater drainage system. The 
roads current state stems from a lack of proper storrnwater drainage and when necessary stormwater 
drainage is not in place the road becomes the conveyance system for the storm.water. 

To ensure that the repairs to East Pacific Drive and East Sunrise Drive between South Cedar Street and 
South Scott A venue are completed for the best price currently available, staff recommends approving 
the Cooperative Agreement for the 2017 Street Preservation Project/Overlay program with Superior 
Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC. 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION; 
Approve the firstreading of an c:>rdinance of the City of Belton, Missouri authorizing and approving a 
Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company LLC. For the 2017 Street Preservation 
Project/Overlay program. 

136 



BACKGROUND: 
Over the past several years staff has presented information for street preservation maintenance activities 
that included several action items. 

1. Spend preservation funding every other year. This maximizes the dollars spent. 
2. Focus available resources on maintaining streets meeting current condition standards so they do 

not fall into the poor/failed range. 
3. Provide crews with equipment that is efficient and cost effective. 
4. Utilize technology to manage infrastructure and material usage. 
5. Development of citizen Cost-Share Program 
6. Partner with neighboring cities in developing maintenance contracts that maximize dollars. 
7. Bidders are required to submit a Quality Assurance Plan 

IMP ACT/ ANALYSIS: 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Contractor: Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC 
Amount of Request/Contract: I $ Not to exceed budgeted funds 
Amount Budgeted: I$ NIA 
Funcling Source: NIA 
Additional Funds: I $ NIA 
Funding Source: NIA 
Encwnbered: I$ NIA 
Funds Remaining: J$ NIA 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION. ACTION, AND DATE: 
Approve the first reading of an ordinance of the City of Belton, Missouri authorizing and approving a 
Cooperative Agreement with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company LLC. For the 2017 Street Preservation 
Project/Overlay program. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Ordinance 
Superior Bowen Cooperative Agreement 
Superior Bowen Unit Prices 
Bid Tab 
Certificate of Insurance 
Schedule of Values 

137 



SECTION VI 
J 

138 



BILL NO. 2018-19 ORDINANCE NO. 2018-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE REAPPROPRIATION & REVISION OF THE 
CITY OF BELTON FISCAL YEAR 2018 ADOPTED CITY BUDGET. 

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2017 under Ordinance No. 2017-4324, the City Council approved the 
Fiscal Year 2018 City Budget and it has been amended previously this year; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. In the General Capital Fund,# 014 

INCREASE the balance by $51,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
014-0000-3131509, named TDD Revenues. 

INCREASE the balance by $51,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
014-0000-4003020, named Contractual Services. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for additional TIF revenues 
that were received and transferred according to the TIF agreement. 

Section 2. In the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund,# 227 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $9,500,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
227-0000-3672200, named Bond Proceeds. 

INCREASE the balance by $9,500,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
227-0000-4008020, named Principal -Revenue Bonds. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the refunding bonds issued 
in 2017. 

Section 3. In the Park Sales Tax Fund,# 229 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $8,000,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
229-0000-367220, named Bond Proceeds. 

INCREASE the balance by $150,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
229-0000-4008520, named Transfer to Park Fund. 

INCREASE the balance by $24,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
229-0000-4008542, named Transfer to Fund 442-Maior City Construction. 

INCREASE the balance by $7,826,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
229-0000-4008030, named Principal - COP Bonds. 

139 



FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the refunding bonds issued 
in 2017 and the transfers needed to pay for Park projects budgeted in other funds. 

Section 4. In the Mayor's Christmas Tree Fund, # 231 

INCREASE the balance by $7,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
231-0000-3651600, named Donations. 

INCREASE the balance by $7,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
231-0000-4004023, named Community Supplies. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the additional donations 
received for the benefit of the Belton Welfare Association. 

Section 5. In the Cedar Tree - TIF Fund,# 241 

INCREASE the balance by $40.000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
241-0000-3130500, named City Sales Tax. 

INCREASE the balance by $40.000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
241-0000-4003235, named Expense Allowance. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: .Amending the budget to account for additional TIF revenues 
that were received and transferred according to the TIF agreement. 

Section 6. In the Y Highway Marketplace - TIF Fund,# 243 

INCREASE the balance by $50,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
243-0000-3111500, named Payments In Lieu of Tax. 

INCREASE the balance by $50,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
243-0000-4003235, named Expense Allowance. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for additional TIF revenues 
that were received and transferred according to the TIF agreement. 

Section 7. In the Y Belton Plaza -TIF Fund,# 244 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $130,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
244-0000-3111500, named Payments In Lieu of Tax. 

INCREASE the balance by $130,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
244-0000-4003235, named Expense Allowance. 

140 



FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for additional TIF revenues 
that were received and transferred according to the TIF agreement. 

Section 8. In the Southtowne Plaza - TIF Fund, # 245 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $400,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
245-0000-3111500, named In Lieu of Tax. 

INCREASE the balance by $200,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
245-0000-3131510, named Countv Sales Tax. 

INCREASE the balance by $600,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
245-0000-4003235, named Expense Allowance. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for additional TIF revenues 
that were received and transferred according to the TIF agreement. 

Section 9. In the GO Bond Debt Service Fund, # 334 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $21.190,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
334-0000-3672200, named Bond Proceeds. 

INCREASE the balance by $4,592.000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 334-
1868-4008010, named Principal - GO Bonds. 

INCREASE the balance by $14,398,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 334-
1865-4008010, named Principal - GO Bonds. 
INCREASE the balance by $2.200,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 334-
0000-4008545, named Transfer to Street Cap Proj. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the refunding bonds issued 
in 2017. 

Section 10. In the Major City Construction Fund,# 442 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $24,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
442-0000-3912229. named Transfer from Park Sales Tax Fund. 

INCREASE the balance by $24,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
442-5414-4957112, named Bel-Ray Connector Trail - Engineering and Design. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the transfers from the Park 
Sales Tax Fund. 

141 



Section 11. In the Street Capital Projects Fund, # 445 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $2,200.000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
445-0000-3912334, named Transfer from GO Bond Fund. 

INCREASE the balance by $220.000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5312-4957110, named Mullen & North Cass-Easements. 

INCREASE the balance by $199,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5312-4957112, named Mullen & North Cass - Engineering & Design. · 

INCREASE the balance by $2,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5313-4957110, named Vicie Road-Easements. 

INCREASE the balance by $14,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5313-4957112, named Vicie Road - Engineering & Design. 

INCREASE the balance by $250,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5313-4957117, named Vicie Road - Construction. 

INCREASE the balance by $25.000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5314-4957117, named Markey & Bales - Construction Costs. 

INCREASE the balance by $1,328,500 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5315-4957117, named GO Bond Projects - Consb.uction Costs. 

INCREASE the balance by $1,500 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5316-4957112, named 1601b & Oakland-Engineering & Design. 

INCREASE the balance by $60.000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5316-4957117, named 160th & Oakland - Construction. 

INCREASE the balance by $100,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
445-5411-4957112, named Y Hwy & 58 Improvements - Engineering & Design. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the new proceeds from the 
2017 Bond issue. 

Section 12. In the Solid Waste Disposal Fund,# 661 ... 

INCREASE the balance by $200.000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
661-0000-3441005, named Trash User Charges. 

INCREASE the balance by $200,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
661-0000-4003020, named Contractual. 

142 



FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the addition of City-wide 
residential trash service. 

Section 13. In the Golf Fund, # 665 

INCREASE the balance by $975,000 (whole dollars) of Revenue line item, 
665-0000-3672200, named Bond Proceeds. 

INCREASE the balance by $975,000 (whole dollars) of Expenditure line item, 
665-0000-4008030, named COP Principal. 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF: Amending the budget to account for the refunding bonds issued 
in 2017. 

Section 14. That this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval. 

READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: March 13, 2018 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED: 

APPROVED this_ day of _ _ _ __ , 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURJ ) 
CITY OF BELTON ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Jeff Davis, Mayor 

Jeff Davis, Mayor 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton, Missouri and that the foregoing ordinance was regularly introduced for first 
reading at a meeting of the City Council held on the 13111 day of March, 2018, and thereafter adopted 
as Ordinance No. 2018- of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City 
Council held on the day of 2018 after the second reading 
thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 

143 



AYES: COUNCILMEN: 
NOES: COUNCILMEN: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEN: 

144 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
City of Belton, Missouri 



SECTION VII 
A 

145 



R2018-16 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING AN ENDORSEMENT FOR THE RENOVATION OF 
GRANADA SENIOR APARTMENTS BY WALLICK COMMUNITIES AND 
PROVIDING A LETTER OF SUPPORT TO THE MISSOURI HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION IN THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, 
MISSOURI. 

WHEREAS, Wallick Communities is proposing to renovate Granada Senior Apartments, a 
forty-two unit apartment community at 115 Spring Street that serves a low-income senior 
population of 62 and older. Wallick is submitting an application to the Missouri Housing and 
Development Commission (MHDC) for low-income tax credits; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Missouri, supports affordable housing choices for the benefit of 
seniors in the City of Belton; and 

WHEREAS, Wallick Communities is proposing a renovation to the apartment community that 
will include interior and exterior improvements, site and landscaping enhancements and 
remodeling of the community building. The apartments will remain age restricted senior 
apartments after the renovations; and 

WHEREAS, The design of this development will assure long term affordability, energy 
efficiency, accessibility and afford seniors in our community the ability to age in place and 
remain in their home in a safe, secure and convenient environment and location; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed affordable senior housing development is in compliance with the 
needs as identified in the City's Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes the proposed renovation of the affordable senior 
apartments, herein attached and incorporated as Exhibit A-1 to A-4, deserves the support of the 
City of Belton for the above and foregoing reasons and is in support as detailed in the Letter of 
Support, attached to and incorporated to this Resolution as Exhibit B. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, 
MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Belton hereby endorses and supports the 

renovations of Granada Senior Apartments by Wallick Communities. 

Section 2. This Resolution supports the funding application to the Missouri Housing 

Development Commission. 

Section 3. All renovations shall meet applicable building codes, life safety, and zoning codes 

of the City of Belton, to be determined at the time of building permit submittals. 

146 



Section 4. That the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign and mail the Letter of Support, herein 

attached and incorporated as Exhibit B to the Missouri Housing Development Commission. 

Section 5. That this Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 

passage and approval. 

Duly read and passed this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Approved this 13th day of March, 2018. 

ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
Of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON )SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Mayor, Jeff Davis 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk of 
the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March, 2018 and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held the 13th day of March, 2018 by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 

147 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
Of the City of Belton, Missouri 



CITY OF BELTON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: March 13, 2018 

COUNCIL: [8J Regular Meeting 

DIVISION: Planning and Building, Economic Developments 

D Work Session D Special Session 

D Ordinance ~ Resolution D Consent Item D Change Order D Motion 

D Agreement D Discussion D FYI/Update D Presentation LJ Both Readings 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 
Provide a Resolution of support for the renovation of Granada Senior Apartments by Wallick 
Communities, and authorize the Mayor to send a letter of support to the Missouri Housing Development 
Commission. 

Granada Village is a forty-two unit apartment community at 115 Spring Street, and serves a low-income 
senior population of 62 and older. Wallick is submitting an application to the Missouri Housing and 
Development Commission (MHDC) for low-income tax credits. 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
Authorize approval of the attached Resolution and letter of support to the Missouri Housing 
Development Commission. 

BACKGROUND: 
Wallick Communities is purchasing the existing Granada Village Apartments at 115 Spring Street. 
Wallick is proposing a renovation to the apartment community that will include interior and exterior 
improvements, site and landscaping enhancements and remodeling of the community building. The 
apartments will remain age restricted senior apartments after the renovations. 

Wallick notes that the tax credits and new mortgage will be an approximate $7,000,000 investment in 
the apartment community. Wallick stated at the work session on March 6, 2018 the project will remain a 
senior living community for the next twenty-five years, at a minimum, under the deed restrictions and 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) agreement. 

Please see the attached February 22, 2018 letter from W allich with further details on the proposal. Also 
attached are sample elevations, a site plan and community center floor plan. 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
The proposed affordable senior housing development is in compliance with the City's Comprehensive 
Plan and will provide needed housing for our senior population. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Staff recommends approval of the attached Resolution and letter of support. 

i: /\~:_·i1CL:.1 itcr: :--: 2!.l 10 o:. '_:i: ~~ Ur..;-r~· \.ir \ 111:.1d~1 '.)::-nior· .:\pt~- . r-· . .:l{~'~( :1< ( 1··;.1ni_!~)-\\. L1.;!ick CC .,~. )'., 1'\.;t ~"-ii C ,:. );\ 
~~.1-1 ~J~: r J:_ll_: ~ 



LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Resolution and letter to the Missouri Housing Development Commission. 

£:\Agenda Items\2018\031318\Done\Granada Senior Apts, l\flJ~OK\4. Granda-Wallick CC COMMUNICATION 
SHEET.docx · · 



February 22, 2018 

City of Belton 
920 Main Street, Suite 1400 
Kansas City, MO 64105 

Wallick-Hendy Development Company, LLC 
160 W. Main Street, Suite 200 
New Albany, OH 43054 

RE: Request for Supporting Resolution - Granada Senior Apartments 

Dear City Councilmembers, 

Wallick-Hendy Development Company, LLC ("Wallick") formally requests your support for the 
rehabilitation of Granada Village Apartments located in Belton, MO. The support of the City will 
aid Wallick in strengthening an application for funding to Missouri Housing Development 
Commission ("MHDC"). 

Wallick: Wallick Communities is a family-owned affordable housing company based in Columbus, 
Ohio that was founded in the 1950s. Wallick operates in three major divisions: development, 
construction, property management. Wallick is the owner of over 200 assets and manages over 
13,000 units across the Midwest. Wallick has been one of the top affordable housing developers in 
the nation performing substantial rehabilitation of existing facilities . 

Project Overview: Granada Village Apartments (formally known as "Granada Villas") presently 
serves a low-income senior population aged 62 and older. This population will continue to be served 
if the project is awarded. The project was originally constructed in 1983 and has had no renovation 
or capital improvements. With nearly 40 years in operation, the project needs a major renovation. If 
awarded, the project will be preserved and enhanced for the existing residents. Please note, if the 
project is awarded it will be renamed Granada Senior Apartments. 

Project Financing: Wallick is seeking nearly $600,000 in low-income housing tax credits which 
will generate approximately $5,500,000 in tax credit equity and is requesting $350,000 in HOME 
funds from MHDC for the proposed rehabilitation. Coupled with a new permanent mortgage and 
remaining HUD debt and reserves, the total development cost will be nearly $7,000,000. 

Planned Improvements: Wallick is seeking funding that will provide for a substantial renovation 
of the existing project. Below is a summary of the improvements. 

Site: Parking areas will be repaired, sealed, and restriped, enhanced landscaping, new & 
additional site lighting, security cameras with views of driveways and buildings, sidewalks 
repaired or replaced, increased accessibility. 

160 W. Main Street, Suite 200, New Albany, Ohio 43054 614.863.4640 tel 

EXHIBIT 

P R O P E R T Y M A N A G E M E ~ T • D L V E L O P M E f\l T , C O f\1 S T R U C I I O i\l · A S S E T M A f\J AG E M E f\1 T 



VValli :k . . orn 

Exterior: Buildings will receive new roofs windows, electric meter bank replacement, and 
siding. Front elevations will be improved with new exterior doors, new privacy fencing, and 
new treatment of covered entries. 
Interiors: Units will receive all new .kitchens with energy efficient appliances, Energy Star 
lighting and ceiling fans, new interior doors, new trim and paint, new flooring energy 
efficient HV AC and water heaters, new bathrooms including new fixtures and low-threshold 
step in showers. 

Common Area: The existing community buildmg will be remodeled and enlarged. 
Improvements will include a new supportive service office, a fitness center, a computer 
center, a club room with a kitchenette, enlarged and accessible lalmdry facilities, and a new 
outdoor deck. Residents will be able to enjoy off-hours access to the fitness and laundry 
facilities. The clubhouse will also have Wi-Fi capabilities for resident use. 

Process and Timeline: Wallick will make an application to MHDC on or before March 16th, 2018. 
Any and all letters or resolutions of support from the City must be executed and available on or 
before March 15th, 2018. Wallick strongly feels that the City's support will be critical to the success 
of this application. Funding decisions from IVIHDC may occur in May or June of2018. If successful 
Wallick will work diligently to close on the sources of funding and acquisition of the project. It is 
anticipated that Wallick will be able to close on the project and stal.1 construction in the Spring of 
2019. 

Existing Management & Residents: Wallick presently employees Da1mark Management Group 
to manage the project. This company will remain in place if awarded. No one presently residing at 
the project will be displaced as a result of fi.mding. Residents will be asked to temporarily move 
during construction activities. The construction schedule will be phased, typically one or two 
buildings (6-12 units) at a time. Temporary relocation wm be anyv.1here from 90-120 days. Wallick 
will facilitate and pay for all relocation expenses. lt is our intention to make the temporary relocation 
of existing residents as seamless .as possible. 

Wallick sincerely appreciates your consideration of the project. It is our belief that th.is project merits 
the request for funding and will be a future asset to your community and to the residents that call 
Granada their home. Please do not hesitate to contact me with comments or questions. I may be 
reached at 614-552-5928 oi- adunfee@wallick.com. 

Sincerely, 

Alexis Dunfee 
Development Manager 
Wallick-Hendy Development Company, LLC 

160W. Main Street, Suite 200, New Albany, Ohio 43054 614.863.4640 tel 

I , ' r_, f I_ 1-,; / 1,;J t~ [,II\ l, I 1,,i l i·I ' 'I [ ',/ e _ U f' fv'l [ I\J l ' l_ CJ 1' IS TI~ ', -- 'L' ,\ • ,' ' ' E f ~.] I-", I I/-\(, f:. ['.JI_ 1\[ f 



EXHIBIT A-7-

DRAFT- ALL PICTURES SHOWN ARE FOR ILLUSTRATION PURPOSE ONLY. 

GRANADA VILLAS SR. APTS 
BELTON, MO - I 

1~(i!> !lUILO 



DRAFT- ALL PICTURES SHOWN ARE FOR ILLUSTRATION PURPOSE ONLY. GRANADA VILLAS SR. APTS 
BELTON, MO --~ .I 

Ol'_<;!Gli •,·<, BUILD 



I 
___ _ J 

-----, 

____ .J 

' ! 
I I 

L.- ---------------------~---------------------------~-------------J 
ALLEY (ROCK) 

r· ------------------------~------~ 
I I 

00 II ,1 m ~~LAN 
; •! ll--- ---------1, 115SPRINGSTREET, BELi;J94P54o12 

ii . MHOC TAX CREDIT APPLICATION ,.__ _ ____ _J_L_ _ _ ________ __J 

GRANADA VILLAS SENIOR APARTMENTS 
2'JBOC,uglll~Road 

:!11lnll.Dul1,MOID1~0 
T. J14 .2A1.11U 
F. J\4.2.4Ull2S 
_.,.,,t,M!!t ca,n 

EXHIBIT 

A-3 



n 
i ::: 
C: 

a, :!l!: 
m::.! 
r- co 
-4 C: ozr
• C s::z 
0 Gl 

MAINT. SHOP 

~ 

r --- - - - --- --
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

SU?f'ORTJVE 
SERVICES 

~ 

155 

I 
I 

l 

po11u,iu111rv 0 
I\OOM 

I ~ . 
I 
I 
I 

,---, .-, 
! 
I 
I 

FITNESS I I 
~ I I 

L--' L---' 

Ci°l!i°Oi PROPERTY 
MANAGER 

~ 

EXHIBIT 

A~~' 



City of Belton 
520 Main Street 
Belton, MO 64012 
Phone: 816.331.4331 
Fax: 816.331.6973 

March 13, 2018 

Mr. Kip Stetzler 
Executive Director 

EXHIBIT B 

Missouri Housing Development Commission {MHDC) 
920 Main, Suite 1400 
Kansas City, MO 64105 

RE: Wallick Communities, Granada Senior Apartments, 115 Spring Street, Belton, Mo, 

Mr. Stetzler, 

Please accept this letter as formal notification of my full support for Wallick Communities 
application for tax credits for the renovation of Granada Senior Apartments. Wallick Communities 
has presented this proposal to the Belton City Council. The Council and myself are in full and 
complete support of the application. Granada Apartments were constructed in 1983 and are in 
need of a major renovation to help meet the senior citizen needs of our community. 

As Mayor of the City of Belton I want to pledge my full support for their plan to renovate and 
provide quality affordable senior apartments in Belton. The renovation of forty-two senior 
apartments in our city is greatly needed. This would be an excellent use of federal and state and 
other available resources. Upon completion, these senior apartments would be a valuable asset 
to the neighborhood and increase the supply of much needed quality, affordable senior housing. 

Your favorable consideration of funding this application would help to meet a growing need for 
affordable housing in our community. I appreciate your attention to the needs of Belton, Missouri. 

Sincerely, 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

156 



.. ~·,r 

.. 
' 

SECTION VII 
B 

157 



R2018-17 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING TASK AGREEMENT 2018-01 WITH 
EARTHWORKS EXCAVATION AND ASSOCIATES, LLC, UNDER THE 
CONTRACT. 

WHEREAS, the residential structure located at 17502 S. Benton Drive has been determined to be 
dangerous and ordered to be demolished by the Building Commission. The Findings of Fact and 
Conclusions of Law are herein attached and incorporated to this Resolution as Exhibit A and; 

WHEREAS, the property owner has failed to abate the dangerous structures and public nuisances 
under the Abatement Order of the Building Commission in the time prescribed by the Order; and 

WHEREAS, the objective of the task agreement is to remove the dangerous residential structure 
in its entirety and restoring the lot to a serviceable condition, and; 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved Bill Number 2018-11 on March 13, 2018 to award the 
on-call dangerous residential demolition contract to Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes approving this Task Agreement 2018-01, herein attached 
and incorporated to this Resolution as Exhibit B, with Earthworks Excavations and Associates, 
LLC in a not to exceed amount of $23,100.34 is beneficial to code enforcement and is in the best 
interest of the citizens. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS 
COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the Task Agreement 2018-01, herein attached and incorporated as 
Exhibit B, in a not to exceed amount of $23,100.34 authorizing the demolition of a 
dangerous residential structure located at 17502 S. Benton Drive, Belton, Missouri is 
hereby approved for the purposes described above. 

Section 2. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to sign and authorize the Task 
Agreement, on behalf of the City. 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage and approval. 

Duly read and passed this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Mayor Jeff Davis 

Approved this 13th day of March, 2018. 

Mayor, Jeff Davis 

158 



ATTEST: 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
Of the City of Belton, Missouri 

STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON )SS 
COUNTY OF CASS ) 

I, Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City 
Clerk of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was regularly 
introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 13th day of March, 2018 
and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held the 13th day of March, 2018 by 
the following vote, to wit: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 
COUNCILMEN: 

159 

Patricia A. Ledford, City Clerk 
Of the City of Belton, Missouri 



CITY OF BEL TON 
CITY COUNCIL INFORMATION FORM 

AGENDA DATE: March 13, 2018 

COUNCIL: ~ Regular Meeting 

DIVISION: Planning and Building Department 

D Work Session D Special Session 

D Ordinance ~ Resolution D Consent Item D Change Order D Motion 

LJ Agreement D Discussion D FYI/Update D Presentation LJ Both Readings 

ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 
The City Council approved first reading of Bill Number 2018-11 on February 27, 2018 and second 
reading on March 13, 2018 to award for contract for Demolition of Dangerous Residential Structures to 
Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC. The Building Commission, upon conclusion of an 
evidentiary hearing, has made the final determination to demolish the dangerous residential structure 
located at 17502 S. Benton Drive owned by Jan Bandstra. 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
Authorize approval of the attached Resolution to award the Dangerous Residential Structures 
Demolition Contract for 17502 S. Benton Drive, Belton, Missouri to Earthwork Excavation and 
Associates, LLC. 

BACKGROUND: 
There are often times when self-abatement of dangerous and dilapidated residential structures cannot be 
achieved. As a result, it becomes necessary for the City to take action to abate the dangerous structure 
following an evidentiary hearing by the Building Commission. The Resolution fully supports the City 
Council's focus and direction toward improved property maintenance and code enforcement issues 
throughout the City. 

IMPACT/ANALYSIS: 
The proposed contract to provide residential structure demolition services is in compliance with the 
City's Comprehensive Plan and will provide a much needed service to abate this dangerous and 
dilapidated residential structure within the City when the property owner fails to take action upon the 
order of the Building Commission. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION, ACTION, AND DATE: 
Staff recommends approval of the attached Resolution. 

LIST OF REFERENCE DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
Resolution and contract documents 

160 



ISSUE/RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve a Resolution in support of demolition of a dangerous residential structure in the city and 
authorize the City Manager endorse and approve the Task Agreement awarding this demolition service 
to Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC. 

PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MOTION: 
Authorize approval of the attached Resolution and Task Agreement. 

161 



!XHIBIT 

JL 
BANOSTRA PROPERTY AT 17502 S. BENTON DRlVE, BELTON, MISSOURI 

EVIDENTIARY HEARING NOVEMBER 9, 2017 

BEFORE THE BELTON BUILDING AND FIRE PREVENTION CODE 
BOARD OF APPEALS 

ORDER OF ABATEMENT WITH 
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

The Board finds the structure located at 17502 S. BENTON DRIVE is a dangerous buiJding and public 
nuisance and hereby order the property owner or Building Commissioner to demoJish the structure. 

Findings ofFact 

1. This property is owned by Jan Bandstra as evidenced by records of Cass County and death of Roger 

Bandstra on December 2, 2003. There appears to be a mortgage recorded against this property 

through a Deed of Trust. The homeowners insurance is provided by Auto Owners Insl\rance. 

2. On August 30, 2017, the Building Inspector conducted an inspection of the house foHowing a police 

department intervention and detennined in his opinion that the house was a dangerous building and 

public nuisance as defined by Chapter 10, Article III, Section C of the Belton Unified Development 
Code because of general dilapidation, unsanitary conditions, electrical panel disrepair and improper 

grounding, west wal I of house to point of collapse and inability to secure the house due to previous 

break-ins. A violation notice to abate the dangers and public nuisances was issued to make repairs 

within 30 days. 

3. On September 26, 2017, a fire occurred at the structure and on September 26, 2017, the Building 

Inspector conducted a second inspection of the house and determined in his opinion that the house 

is a dangerous building and public nuisance as defined by Chapter 10, Article IH, Section C of the 

Belton Unified Development Code and in need of emergency abatement due to the immediate 

danger to the health, safety and welfare of the general public because of additional damages caused 

by the fire and unsecured access to the damaged areas by children or oth·ers not aware of the dangers 

posed by this structure. 

4. The property owner was properly notified of the above determinations and results oftbe building 

inspections including all violations of the dangerous building and :public nuisance laws and was 

requested to repair or demolish the structure. 

5. The property owner failed tQ comply with the orders of the building inspector to repair or demolish 

the structure. 

162 



6. The property owner was properly notified of a hearing to detennine the facts and disposition of the 
structure at 17502 S. BENTON DRIVE. 

7. Prior to the hearing, the property owner expressed interest in demolishing th.e house and apparently 
has the insurance proceeds to do so but has NOT hired a contractor, demolished the structure or 
provided the building department with written plans to do so with time frames to the City Staff. 

8. The Cify is yet to notify a mortgage holder, if any, and will be obliged to provide notification prior 
to any action to demolish the building. 

Conclusions of Law 

1. There is substantial and competent evidence to conclude that the building at 17502 S. BENTON 
DRIVE constitutes a dangerous building and public nuisance under the Dangerous Buildings Codes 
of the City of Belton. 

2. The house at 17502 S. BENTON DRIVE shall be demolished pursuant to the procedures and 
Dangerous Buildings Codes of the City of Belton. 

3. If the property owner does not comply with this order within 30 days of confinned receipt of 
notification to any mortgage holder, or if there is no mortgage holder, within 30 days ofthts order, 
the City of Belton Building Commissioner is hereby instructed to take bids for the demolition of 
the structure. 

163 



EXHIBIT B 

-· 'I) 
I -

City of Belton - Planning and Building Department 
Task Agreement 

Contract: Dangerous Residential Structures Demolition Services 

Funding Amount: $23,100.34 

Resolution Number: 2018- Task Agreement No: 2018-01 Date of Schedule of 
Hourly Rates and Expenses: N/A 

Purchase Order No: NIA 

Project Title: 17502 S Benton Drive, Belton, Missouri 

Contractor/Consultant (including subs): 
Division and Staff Project Manager: Planning & Building; Jim Brown Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC 

Project Specifications reviewed: yes Attachments : 

PROJECT SCOPE: 

Demolition of a single family residence and (1) detached storage building in accordance with the contract documents and specifications and in support of 
Bill# 2018-11 . 

Staff Signatures Partner Signatures 

Building Official City Manager: Project Manager: Company Principal (if different): 
Jim Brown Alexa Barton 

Signature: Signature: Signature: Signature: 

Date: Date: Date: Date: 

Property 
Conceptual -

Project Type: Demolition X Construction Acquisition 
Problem Surveying 
Solvina 

Project Discipline(s): Building X Planning Water Wastewater Stormwater 

Report(s) Received: 
164 



Work on File: 

This Task Agreement is subject to all the provisions included in the Contract Agreement for; as needed demolition of dangerous residential 
structures, between the City of Belton and Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC effective on 13 March, 2018. 

Attach scope of work, budget, and other supporting material. 

165 



ATTACHMENT 1 TO EXHIBIT B 

Estimated Abatement Costs for: 
17502 S Benton Drive 

1. Abatement price: 
a. Non-friable asbestos 

i. $ n/a Per square foot of asbestos containing materials 
ii.$ n/a Per linear foot of asbestos containing materials 

b. Friable asbestos 
i. $ n/a Per square foot of asbestos containing materials 
ii.$ n/a Per linear foot of asbestos containing materials 

2. Unit cost of general structure demolition, clearing, and 
cleaning will be paid for as a unit price based on square footage 
of applicable structure(s): 

a. Residential structure (including attached garages and 
covered porches) 

i. $3.75 s.f. (1500 s.f.) = $5625.00 Per square foot, frame or metal 
ii.$ n/a Per square foot, masonry or other 

b. Detached structure (with foundation) 
i. $ n/a Per square foot, frame or metal 
ii.$ n/a Per square foot, masonry or other 

c. Detached structure (without foundation) 
i. $ 3.75 s.f. (270 s.f.) $1012.50 Per square foot, frame or metal 
ii.$ n/a Per square foot, masonry or other 

3. Unit cost to remove private concrete driveways/sidewalks: 
a.$ n/a Per square foot 

4. Unit cost for the followine: 
a. Backfill material as needed for excavated areas- $14.85 Per cubic yard 

cu yd (60 cu yd)= $891 
b. Landfill fee- $ 2011.96 per load x 4 = $8047.84 Per load (90 cu yd load) 

c. Temporary erosion control measures-
Silt fence (lin ft) $ n/a 
Straw, seed - sq. ft. - $ 2.21 s.f. (3000 s.f)= $6630.00 Silt fence- per lin ft.; straw, seed, per sq.ft. 

d. Temporary construction fencing-$ 2.98 1.f. (300 1.f.) = Per linear foot. 
$ 894.00 

e. Soil testing/proctor/compaction- $ n/a Provide testing fee 
5. Additional abatement cost: 

a.$ n/a Hazardous mold & lead abatement per square foot 
b. $ n/a Hazardous mold & lead abatement per linear foot 

6. The Contractor shall pay all applicable costs for landfill permits and fees. 
7. The Contractor shall pay for any applicable permits, testing, and inspection services required in connection 
with the abatement of asbestos and/or lead. 
8. The Contractor shall provide all equipment and services needed to complete the Work. 

Total cost- $23,100.34 

166 



SECTION X 
A 

167 



Government Finance Ofl1c1.~·rS Association 
203 North LaSalle Street, Suite 2700 
Chicago, lHinois 60601- 1 21 0 
312.977.9700 fa.x : 312.977.4-806 

February 13, 2018 

The Honorable Jeff Davis 
Mayor 
City of Belton 
506 Main Street 
Belton, MO 64012 

Dear Mayor Davis: 

We are pleased to notify you that your comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the 
fiscal year ended 2017 qualifies for GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in 
governmental accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant 
accomplishment by a government and its management 

When a Certificate of Achievement is awarded to a government, an Award of Financial Reporting 
Achievement (AFRA) is also presented to the individual(s) or department designated by the 
government as primarily responsible for its having earned the Certificate. This award has been 
sent to the submitter as designated on the application. 

We hope that you will arrange for a formal presentation of the Certificate and Award of Financial 
Reporting Achievement, and that appropriate publicity will be given to this notable achievement. 
A sample news release is enclosed to assist with this effort. 

We hope that your example will encourage other government officials in their efforts to achieve 
and maintain an appropriate standard of excellence in financial reporting. 

Sincerely, 

Michele Mark Levine 
Director, Technical Services Center 

168 


	I.	CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
	IV.	CONSENT AGENDA
	A.	Motion approving the minutes of the February 27, 2018, regular meeting and March 6, 2018, City Council Special Meeting.
	Paperwork


	V.	PERSONAL APPEARANCES
	VI.	ORDINANCES
	A.	Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2018-09, as amended:
An ordinance approving a renewed and upgraded service agreement between the City of Belton, Missouri and NSI Holdings of Kansas, Inc. to provide remote data backup and disaster replication services for City Hall, Annex, Fire Stations 1&2, Park, and Water/Street departments.

	Paperwork

	B. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2018-11: 
An ordinance approving a contract between the City of Belton and Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC to provide demolition of dangerous residential structures services on an as needed basis. 

	Paperwork

	C. Motion approving final reading of Bill No. 2018-12: 
An ordinance amending sections 1-5; 4-1 (d) (10); 6-4 (h); 26-4 (g); 26-5 (4); 26-8 (b); 40-1 (h); 40-3 (5); 40-4 (3); and 40-4 (14) of the Unified Development Code to eliminate inconsistencies and provide language that is easier to understand for all users of the code. 

	D.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-13:
An ordinance of the City of Belton, Missouri authorizing and approving a construction service agreement with SAK Construction, LLC for the 30”, 27”, and 18” interceptor lining in a not-to-exceed amount of $1,167,949.50.

	Paperwork

	E.	  Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-14:
An ordinance authorizing and approving the City of Belton, Missouri through its fire department to enter into a professional services agreement for medical director services with Dr. Erik J. Stamper, D.O. 

	Paperwork

	F.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-15:
An ordinance approving the proposed fiscal year 2019 City budget, as revised, and appropriating funds from the revenues of the City.

	Paperwork

	G.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-16:
An ordinance approving the participating course agreement with the Club Membership, LLC for individual and corporate club membership benefits at the Eagles’ Landing Golf Course.

	Paperwork

	H.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-17:
An ordinance amending sections: 42-36, Rates inside the City; 42-38, Water rates for approved water districts or local governments; 42-39, Rates for water consumed outside city; 42-296, Sewer system user rates; of the unified development code of the City of Belton, Missouri.

	Paperwork

	I.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-18:
An ordinance of the City of Belton, Missouri, as a participating agency, authorizing and approving a Cooperative Agreement one-year extension including Addendum #1 adding and expanding the scope of work for the City of Belton with Superior Bowen Asphalt Company, LLC for the 2017 Street Preservation Project Overlay finalized in January 2018.

	Paperwork

	J.	Motion approving first reading of Bill No. 2018-19:
An ordinance approving the reappropriation & revision of the City of Belton Fiscal Year 2018 Adopted City Budget.

	Paperwork


	VII.	RESOLUTIONS
	A.	Motion approving Resolution R2018-16:
A resolution providing an endorsement for the renovation of Granada Senior Apartments by Wallick Communities and providing a letter of support to the Missouri Housing Development Commission in the City of Belton, Cass County, Missouri.

	Paperwork

	B.	Motion approving Resolution R2018-17:
A resolution approving Task Agreement 2018-01 with Earthworks Excavation and Associates, LLC, under the contract.

	Paperwork


	X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT
	A.	Finance Department recognition
	Paperwork


	XIII.	Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining to Legal Actions, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.1, and matters pertaining to the hiring, firing, disciplining or promotion of personnel, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.3, and that the record be closed.
	XIV.	ADJOURN



